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CHAI RMAN KI SCHNER: W th that, | would like to
wel cone everyone and open the Novenber 6th, 2019,
Pl an Conm ssion neeting. The itembefore us is a
conti nuati on of Case PC 19-014. The petitioner is
Haymar ket DuPage, LLC. The owner of the property is
Pear| Hospitality, LLC, located at 860 West Irving
Park Road. The request is for a planned devel opnent
by special use with exceptions and Cass 1 site plan
approval, all in order to permt a m xed-use
residential and healthcare facility and other uses in
the B-2 community business district at 860 West
| rving Park Road.

Rol e call, please.
ESPEDI DO. Commi ssi oner Dal y?
DALY: Present.
ESPEDI DO. Conmmi ssi oner Carel |l 0?
CARELLO  Here.
ESPEDI DO. Commi ssi oner Swets?
SWETS: Here.
ESPEDI DO. Commi ssi oner Hol nes?
HOLMES: Here.
ESPEDI DO.  Conm ssi oner Drunmond?
DRUMMOND:  Her e.

55 2D DD DD

ESPEDI DO. Conmmi ssi oner Ray?
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MS. RAY: Here.
M5. ESPEDI DO Chai rman Ki schner ?
CHAI RVAN KI SCHNER: Al so here.

Wth that, | would Iike to introduce
our Plan Comm ssion attorney, Chuck Hervas, for sone
addi ti onal coments.

MR. HERVAS. (Good evening, everyone. M/ nane
Is Chuck Hervas. |I'mthe Village attorney, and |I'm
going to go over a couple of things of which |
briefly covered last tine, but it's very inportant
for you to understand the nature of the proceedi ngs
today -- or this evening.

First, please understand that this
is a legal proceeding with a |legal significance.
There is a court reporter present. However, this is
not a trial, not |ike you may have seen on
tel evision. Even though it seens to have all the
trappings of a trial, it is a public hearing for the
Pl an Comm ssion. The Plan Conm ssion will be making
a recommendation once all the testinony and all the
hearings are -- material is conpleted, and that
recomendati on goes to the Village Board. The Pl an
Commi ssion's action is a recomendation. It wll be

the Village Board that will nmake the final decision
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inthis matter. | think it's inportant that everyone
under st ands t hat process.

There will be cross-exam nation of
W tnesses tonight. There was already the testinony
of Dr. Lustig and M. Baldw n, and tonight we w ||

begi n the cross-exam nation process. Please
understand that the cross-exam nation of wtnesses is
part of a due process conponent in a Plan Conm ssion
proceedi ng which has been dictated by the Illinois
Suprene Court. So, again, the enphasis is this is a
| egal proceeding. The attorneys who are involved in
the cross-examnation wll be asking the questions,
and the witness will be providing the answers. There
may be objections and things of that nature, and |
will rule on those matters.

| do -- | wll do ny best to keep
this an orderly process, but what you need to
understand is that the public questions -- because
what wi Il happen is once the cross-exanm nation by the
attorneys and any property owner wthin 250 feet,
once that cross-exam nation process is conplete, the
public wll have a chance to ask questions. | know
that you'll have just watched a bunch of |awers do

their thing and nmaybe you think maybe this is ny
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chance to -- you are not engaged in

cross-exam nation, so, please understand, the public
IS not cross-examning the witnesses. The public

wi || be asking questions, and so there's a difference
there, and we're going to nake sure that that

di fference i s enforced.

And al so understand that for the
public questioning, both Dr. Lustig and M. Bal dw n
wi |l be presented together. | want to you understand
that that is a normal process of the Plan Comm ssi on.
Thi s whol e i dea of cross-exam nation by the attorneys
normal |y doesn't happen with the average devel opnent.
It's happening here. But when it cones to the
public's questions, the Plan Conm ssion normally has
all the parties present and then the person that's
best able to answer the question answers that
question. So | don't want you to think that the Plan
Comm ssion is departing froma normal process,
because it is not.

Al so, please understand -- and this
will be reviewed at the tine that the public asks
guestions -- this is a tine for public questions of
the witness. It is not a time for public coment.

Al right? So the natural tendency will be | want to
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make nmy coment and then ask a question. That's not
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perm ssible at this tine. There will be a tine --

there will be a tinme for public comment.

And then just to wap it up, please

understand that this is a slow and deli berate
process. |It's designed to create a record that is

appropriate for a Plan Conm ssion hearing. Please

respect the process even if you don't agree with it.

Thank you very nmuch, and I'I|l turn it back to you,
M. Chai r man.

CHAI RVAN KI SCHNER:  Thank you. Is the
petitioner's attorney ready to proceed?

MR ROTH. W are.

MS. DI CKSON:  Yes.

CHAl RMAN KI SCHNER:  Ckay. Then | would |ike
toinvite Dr. Lustig to submt hinself for
Cross-exam nati on.

M5. DI CKSON: We were going to have hi m and
Dr. Lustig at the table together.

MR HERVAS. Wiat | wanted to do is just

follow the process of how they testified, in that

order, so we'll have Dr. Lustig first, please, then.

And then the attorneys -- I'maware of three

attorneys who will be cross-examning. |If there is a
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M5. SMTH. Thank you. As was just stated,
|"'mJennifer Smth, |egal counsel for the school
district. Dr. Lustig, during this process, you have

been contacted by the school district wth questions

Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019 Page 9
property owner within 250 feet of this devel opnent,
they also have the right to -- for cross-exam nation.
However, |'m unaware of any such property owner, so
if there is one in the audience, they need to
identify thenselves with staff and sign in for
Cross-exam nati on.

So at this tine, we will open it up
for cross-exam nation, and as far as the -- what is
the order that the attorneys have agreed on in terns
of the cross-exam nation?

M5. SMTH. The school district's counsel,
Jennifer Smth. ['Il be going first.

MR DI NOLFO | believe Attorney ElIl enbecker
wi Il be going second, and | would be going third in
cross-exam nation. Steve Di Nolfo on behalf of the
Fire District.

MR. HERVAS. Ckay. Al right. So, Ms. Smth,
you wll -- you represent the Itasca School
District 10, and you will begin the
cross-exam nation. Thank you.
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regardi ng the supports you have for children in your
-- in your program is that right?
DR. LUSTIG Right.
M5. SMTH. And Superintendent Craig Benes
call ed you to ask questions regardi ng those supports;

Is that right?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

M5. SMTH. And he asked for witten foll ow up
information; is that correct?

DR. LUSTIG | do not recall that, no.

M5. SMTH. Ckay. Have you received -- on
Oct ober 25th, 2019, the school district submtted a
list of questions regarding support for children.
That was submitted by nme to your counsel, M. Roth.

DR LUSTIG  Yes.

M5. SMTH. And, to date, you have not
provi ded any response to those questions; is that
right?

DR. LUSTIG That is correct.

M5. SMTH Ckay. | want to start by asking
you cl arifying questions regardi ng the popul ati on of
children that m ght be served by -- in your program
You testified that there's two prograns where

i ndi viduals stay for a good anmount of tine. One for
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90 days and -- one for up to 90 days and one for up
to 365 days; is that right?

DR LUSTIG Both of those prograns are
recovery hones that we nenti oned.

M5. SMTH. Okay. And are individuals in both
of those prograns eligible to have children reside
wi th thenf

DR. LUSTIG Yes. The nothers are all owed
children up to the age of five to be with them

M5. SMTH. Ckay. And you clarified nothers,
both tonight and previously. Are fathers allowed to
have their children --

DR LUSTIG  No.

M5. SMTH. -- stay with then? And why is
t hat ?

DR LUSTIG Qur system was just never
designed for that. It wasn't an either/or. The

I ssue was to focus on the State's priority

popul ation, which is pregnant and postpartum wonen.
M5. SMTH Okay. So you do differentiate

based on the gender of the parent on which children?
DR. LUSTI G  Un-huh.
MR. HERVAS. Doctor, you need to answer yes or

no.
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DR, LUSTIG OCh, yes. Sorry, yes.

M5. SMTH. And can individual nothers with
nore than one child, if they have nore than one child
that's five or under, can they reside with nore than
one child in the progranf

DR, LUSTIG Up to two children.

M5. SMTH.  Up to two children, okay. And are
there any other limtations on the nunber of children
that m ght be served by the programat the Itasca
site?

DR, LUSTIG Say -- I'm-- repeat the
guestion?

M5. SMTH. Are there any Iimtations? Are
there any other qualifications for an individual to
have their child? So it nust be a wonman in one of
the longer-termprograns; is that right?

DR LUSTIG  She can be in our traditional
28-day program

M5. SMTH  Ckay.

MR LUSTIG A treatnent program yes.

M5. SMTH  Ckay.

DR. LUSTIG The goal here is to renpve any
barriers for wonen accessing care.

M5. SMTH  Ckay.
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DR, LUSTIG And oftentines what inpacts wonen
is childcare, child placenent.

M5. SMTH. Ckay. So then how many -- on an
annual basis, how many individuals in that 28-day
programw ||l the -- do you anticipate the Itasca
| ocation wll serve?

DR. LUSTIG You nean as far as the children
go or --

M5. SMTH  Just individuals or wonen -- do
you know how many wonen annual ly the 28-day
program - -

DR, LUSTIG It is a 16-bed programthat has a
vari able length of stay to it, so the turnover rate
I's based on the progress of the patient. So the
entire beds don't necessarily turn over every 28
days. Sone -- it mght turn over every 14 days,
every seven days, depending on the specific needs of
t he nom

M5. SMTH. Ckay. And are there prescribed
anmounts for males and fenal es anong those 16 beds?

DR LUSTIG Wat do you nean by "prescribed"?

M5. SMTH. |Is there alimt? So could all 16
beds be wonen or is -- are sonme reserved for nen?

DR LUSTIG Sone are reserved for nen in a
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different program not in the same program W don't
have coed prograrns.

M5. SMTH: So the 16 are for wonen?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

M5. SMTH. 16 beds, okay. And then for the
programthat goes up to 90 days, how many beds for
wonen?

DR, LUSTIG The 90-day programis the
recovery honme, so we need to separate that if it's
bet ween treatnent prograns and the recovery hones.

M5. SMTH  Ckay.

DR. LUSTIG So the recovery hones are the
ones you're talking up to the 90 days.

M5. SMTH. And they are different fromthe
365-day programor is that ultimately --

DR LUSTIG No, the 90 days can go to 365,
dependi ng on the person's specific need in the
recovery hone.

M5. SMTH. Ckay. So there's no different --
there's not a 90 day and 365? There's either the up
to 28 days or then up to 365 days; is that right?

DR. LUSTIG The 28 days, the variable |length
of stay programis treatnent, clinical treatnent.

The programthat individuals can stay up to 90 days
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or longer are the recovery hones.

M5. SMTH  Ckay.

DR LUSTIG And that's separate. So, for
exanple, let's say soneone doesn't need residenti al
treat ment but needs outpatient treatnent. They could
still stay in our recovery hones while they're
recei ving outpatient treatnent.

M5. SMTH. Ckay. And how many recovery hone
beds are avail able for wonen?

DR. LUSTIG | don't have that nunber off the
top of my head, but I think you could ask Janes
Bal dwi n t hat questi on when he cones up.

M5. SMTH. Ckay. And do you have any
estimate on the projected nunber of wonen that woul d
be served on an annual basis in recovery hones?

DR LUSTIG Again, | think that question
woul d be appropriate for Janes, who did the pro forma
on the project.

M5. SMTH.  Ckay. Your presentation
previously stated that children are referred for
devel opnent al assessnent; is that correct?

DR, LUSTIG W actually do the devel opnent al
assessnents.

M5. SMTH.  Wen you say -- well, first of
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MR. HERVAS. Any response to the objection?
M5. SMTH. Yes. The school district has an
obligation to serve children aged three to five,

i ncluding child-find devel opnental assessnents, so

Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019 Page 16
all, when you say "devel opnental assessnent,"” what
assessnents are conduct ed?

DR. LUSTIG The nanes of it? |Is that the
guestion?

M5. SM TH  Yes.

DR LUSTIG The Ages and Stages
guestionnaire.

M5. SMTH. And who conducts that?

DR LUSTIG Qur child devel opnent
speci alists, who' ve been trained on the instrunent.

M5. SMTH. And what does it -- is it a
screener or how woul d you describe the tool?

DR, LUSTIG It is a screener that has been
st andardi zed on our specific popul ation.

M5. SMTH. And what is a screener for?

DR LUSTIG Devel opnental del ays.

M5. SMTH. Wo funds the devel opnent al
assessnent ?

M5. DI CKSON: (nhjection to the rel evance of
t he questi on.
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need to -- |'masking questions along that line to
understand who is funding -- who is funding them
The district affirmatively has an obligation to fund
them so if they're not currently using district
funds, where are the funds com ng fronf

M5. DICKSON: Dr. Lustig testified that
Haymar ket does not intend to use any of the school
district's resources, period, so it shouldn't nmatter
where the funding for that programcones from

MR HERVAS. |'mnot going to go deep into
deciding what's rel evant and not relevant, and so |'m
going to apply a fairly liberal standard with respect
tothat. And I'mgoing to ask that if the w tness
under st ands the question and knows it, that he should
answer the question, unless he's directed not to.

M5. SMTH. Ckay. So should | repeat the
guesti on?

MR, HERVAS. Yes.

M5. SMTH. Wo funds the devel opnent al
assessnent ?

DR LUSTIG W have a variety of grants and
donors that help to support our wonen's and
chil dren's prograrns.

M5. SMTH. Do you access the child's health
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I nsurance?

DR LUSTIG  No.

M5. SMTH. Ckay. Wat needs -- and the
screeni ngs that you've done on your children,
residents, to date, what needs have you identified
t hrough the use of a devel opnental assessnent?

DR, LUSTIG Basically less than one percent
of our children experience the devel opnental del ays,
but | -- specifically, if your question speaks to
what are those devel opnental delays, | would have to
defer that question and get that information to you.

M5. SMTH. Ckay. And when you say the

“devel opnental del ays,"” what's the scope of

devel opnental delays? |Is it purely through the
screener tool that you nentioned or is there sone
ot her definition?

DR LUSTIG No, it's purely through the
screener.

M5. SMTH. Ckay. You testified -- or rather
your presentation previously said that children are
referred, then, to devel opnental |y appropriate
services. \What services are referenced by that term

“devel opnental | y appropriate services"?

DR LUSTIG W work with a system partner
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that, after we've identified sonmething, we transport
the patient to themwhere they work with the child.
M5. SMTH  What's an exanple of a "system
partner"?
DR LUSTIG University of Illinois.

M5. SMTH. Do you have any partners that have
educati onal expertise?

DR LUSTIG They do.

M5. SMTH. So is it -- do they have a
preschool progranf

DR. LUSTIG They have a programthat's
desi gned to address the devel opnental del ays.

M5. SMTH. Is it an educational progranf

DR, LUSTIG | do not know if that's an
educati onal program

M5. SMTH. Ckay. Have you identified any
partner that would serve the Itasca | ocation?

DR LUSTIG No. But we are very, very
excited to be able to work with, you know, any
partners that are out here to assist us. And during
that transition, we will continue to use our system
partner, U C, to address that.

M5. SMTH. What is the length of the

transportation fromthe Itasca location to UCto the
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program where you currently are serving students?

DR. LUSTIG You nean how nmany ml es?

M5. DI CKSON: (nhjection to the rel evance of
that question. What does that matter?

MR, HERVAS:. Just for the sake of the record,
| would |ike to have the objection stated and t hen
you' Il have an opportunity to respond and then |'1|
make a ruling of sone sort.

M5. SMTH. Sure. The Illinois State Board of
Educati on defi nes the appropriateness of educati onal
services provided at a different location, and if
transportation is over an hour in tinme during the
relevant tinme period a student's transported, that's
a factor for the program not being appropriate for
the student, or child in this case, for three to
five-year-olds.

MR, HERVAS. | do understand Haymarket's
position, that the testinony was that they will not
use any of their resources of the school district.
However, | think that the school district properly
can inquire with respect to | egal obligations and
things of that nature, so I'mgoing to allow the
guesti on.

M5. SMTH. Do you know the length of drive
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during the tines that students would be served from
Itasca to the U C progran?

DR, LUSTIG | do not.

M5. SMTH. And who supervises the child
devel opnent al specialists?

DR LUSTIG W -- our supervisors and
coordinators as well as our vice president of
clinical services.

M5. SMTH.  And who will be the supervisor of
the -- who will be the i medi ate supervisor of the
child devel opnental specialists at the Itasca site?

DR. LUSTIG W have not hired that person
yet, obviously.

M5. SMTH. \What would be the qualifications
for that supervisor?

DR LUSTIG They would have to have early
chi | dhood education. They would have to have further
experi ence and know edge of addictions as well as any
rel ated nental health issues.

M5. SMTH. And what are the qualifications of
the child devel opnental specialist that you' ve
referred to? And we'll start with what is the
requi red education for that position?

DR, LUSTIG Again, training in early
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chi | dhood educati on.

M. SMTH.  Are any --

DR LUSTIG And --

M5. SMTH  -- educational degrees required?

DR LUSTIG W follow the DCFS guidelines,
which | think has a master's degrees or a bachelor's
degree is required with that training.

M5. SMTH. And are any certifications
required?

DR LUSTIG  No.

M5. SMTH. Are any |licensures required?

DR LUSTIG No.

M5. SMTH. Do you enploy any certified
t eachers?

DR LUSTI G  No.

M5. SMTH. Do you hire or nmake avail abl e
occupational therapists to children?

DR LUSTI G  No.

M5. SMTH. Do you hire or nake avail abl e
physi cal therapists to children?

DR. LUSTIG  No.
M5. SMTH. Do you hire or nake avail abl e
speech | anguage therapists to children?

DR LUSTIG  No.
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M5. SMTH. Do you hire or nake avail abl e any
ot her type of specialized support for children who
have devel opnental del ays?
DR LUSTI G  No.
M5. SMTH. So is there any other access to

educational services that the three to five-year-olds
who reside at your |ocations have that we have not
di scussed yet?

DR, LUSTIG OQher than the standardi zed
curriculum the ages and stages nodel, that is all
that we provide, yes.

M5. SMTH. But the ages and stages nodel is a
screener? |It's not a curriculunt isn't that right?

DR, LUSTIG It's both.

M5. SMTH.  It's a curriculun? An educational
curricul unf

DR LUSTIG  Un- huh.

M5. SMTH. Ckay. You've testified that the
children that reside at your facility do not access
public education; is that right?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

M5. SMTH. And what's your process for
parents waiving their rights for those children to

access their right to public education?
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DR, LUSTIG W have not experienced that in
our 45 years.
M5. SMTH.  You' ve never experienced a
child -- a parent seeking to access public education
for their child?

DR. LUSTIG No, because nost of our children
that reach school age are placed within a famly.
They don't reside at Haymar ket Center.

M5. SMTH.  Wen you define "school age," what
are you --

DR. LUSTIG Five years and ol der

M5. SMTH. And are you aware, though, in the
state of Illinois for students with a disability, a
school district is responsible, starting at age
three, for educational services; correct?

DR LUSTIG Un-huh, yes.

M5. SMTH. So you do not provide educati onal
services starting at age three or facilitate that for
your popul ation of children?

DR, LUSTIG Correct.

M5. SMTH. Do you identify whet her
I ndi viduals in your program are honel ess?

DR. LUSTIG Do I identify --

M5. SMTH. \Whether they are honel ess?
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DR LUSTIG Yes.

M5. SMTH. And how do you defi ne
honel essness?

DR, LUSTIG We use prinmarily the federal
definition.

M5. SMTH. Do you track whether an individual
owns a hone?

DR LUSTIG Yes.

M5. SMTH. And what percentage of the
i ndi vidual s, the adults, the nothers specifically,
you serve own their own hones?

DR. LUSTIG In the West Loop |ocation?

M5. SMTH. Correct. O if you have
projections for Itasca?

DR, LUSTIG In our West Loop |ocation, |ess
t han one percent have their own hone.

M5. SMTH. And do you identify whether
i ndividuals in your programmaintain a | ease while in
treat nent ?

DR, LUSTIG Do we screen for that? Yes.

M5. SMTH. And how many i ndi vi dual s do
mai ntain a |l ease while in your prograns?

DR, LUSTIG | would imagi ne probably around
10 percent.
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M5. SMTH. So the vast ngjority of your
popul ation qualifies as honeless? |s that an
accurate --

DR LUSTIG Correct.

M5. SMTH. You testified before that there is
no process -- you've never CcOme across parents
seeki ng educational services for their children. Has
there been any outreach by a public school district
with information about the services they could
provide to children who are |located in your progranf

DR. LUSTIG No.

M5. SMTH. Have you ever investigated sources
of funding for educational services for the children
I n your prograntf?

DR LUSTIG W do |look at grants that cone
t hrough ACF, Adult, Children and Famlies, for ways
t o enhance our prograns.

M5. SMTH But, to date, you haven't expl ored
any public schooling support?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

M5. SMTH. And do you intend to explore
public funding support for those children that would
be at the Itasca |ocation?

DR LUSTIG  No.
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M5. SMTH. Wy not?

DR, LUSTIG W would like for grants, as
usual, to -- primarily because the goal, obviously,
is to treat the famly and any issues that relate to
that. So whether it's nom having to bond with child
for the first time is primarily the goal of what we
try to do inside treatnent, other than just,
obvi ously, the substance use disorder treatnent.

M5. SMTH. But you would agree for the
benefit of a child, educational services are critical
and critical developnentally appropriate services for
three to five-year-olds; is that correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct. And that's why we do
have prograns, |ike ages and stages curriculum that
help -- that our child devel opnent specialists use
wi th the children.

M5. SMTH. But why woul d you excl ude
consi deration of public education support for those
chi | dren?

DR, LUSTIG W would not exclude that. W' ve
just not -- we have not worked with schools in our
area, nor has there been outreach of those schools to
us.

M5. SMTH.  Well, you testified previously
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t hat Superintendent Craig Benes reached out to you
and that | reached out to you by letter. And now|'m
asking you and you've testified you have no intention
of accessing public education.

Do you have any reconsi deration of
that? Wuld you consider public education support
for the children in your |ocation?

DR, LUSTIG Absolutely. If there is, you
know, opportunities for the school system and
Haymar ket Center to work in an integrated way, we
woul d be very nuch involved in that.

M5. SMTH. But why, up to this point, have
you excluded that as part of the planning?

DR LUSTIG For Itasca or the Wst Loop?

M5. SMTH  Either.

DR, LUSTIG For Itasca, we've not identified
system partners yet, but that is on our plan to do.

M5. SMTH.  For Chicago, you said you' ve had a
45-year history of not accessing public education.
Why was that strategic decision nade?

DR LUSTIG It was not --

M5. DI CKSON: (nbjection to the rel evance of
the question. It has nothing to do with the Itasca

facility.
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M5. SMTH. That's the only -- that's their
pattern and practice of operating a facility. It's

the only evidence we have to denonstrate how we can
expect they would operate the Itasca facility, so |
can only ask about their projected practices here.

But their history that they are relying on in making
the application is their reputation and their success
at the Chicago facility.

MR. HERVAS:. The testinony of Dr. Lustig has,
I n many respects, nade conparisons to the Wst Loop
facility in many different areas, and under the
circunstances, while the direct relevance is not the
sane, the question wll be all owed.

DR LUSTIG Can you repeat the question,
pl ease?

M5. SMTH. Sure. Wy have you nade the
deci sion not to access public education support for
children in your -- at your Chicago |ocation?

DR, LUSTIG There wasn't -- there isn't a
specific decision to do that. W have worked with
curriculunms and so forth to enhance the child's
experience and as well as gone through a nultitude of
DCFS audits that never reconmmended t hat.

M5. SMTH.  You've stated that you all ow
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students to remain up to the age of five. Can you
explain the transition process for students who are
turning six?

DR LUSTIG The staff works with the extended
famlies to place the child with the extended famly.

M5. SMTH. And what is the coordination with
respect to public education for -- when
five-year-olds would be eligible for kindergarten
fromthe -- if they're in kindergarten, the
transition for six-year-olds, what processes have you
put in place to provide for that?

DR, LUSTIG Again, any time that there is a
school engagenent, the staff work with nomand famly
to place the child with famly.

M5. SMTH. | have no other questions. Thank
you.

DR. LUSTIG  You're wel cone.

MR. HERVAS. |'msorry, | -- did you say you
were finished?

M5. SMTH | am

MR. HERVAS. Ckay, thank you. That's fine.

Did you have a specific -- one of
the plan conm ssioners al so has a question.

MR. CARELLGO | do have a question that |
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think this fits in to how nost school districts
operate, and |I'm kind of curious.

M5. SMTH  Sure.

MR. CARELLO So the way Haymarket is
presenting this, as not a residential facility, ny
understanding is that even if there was children of
age in this facility, ny understanding is that they
woul d have to reside as a resident in Itasca to be in
|tasca schools. Isn't that correct anyway?

M5. SMTH. It's not, because if -- so
specifically he nentioned that up to 90 percent, it
sounds |ike, of the population is honeless. Honeless
children are residents where they are -- are
residents where they are. So all of the students who
woul d qualify under the MKi nney-Vento Act as
honmel ess woul d be served -- or would be eligible to
be served as residents by the | ocal school district.

There's other conplicating factors
as far as residency, but it's not true that -- as we
tal ked about, residency m ght have one definition for
treatnent. |t has another very specific definition
as far as schools go. And it's very possible, and
even likely, that the children we've heard about that

are three to five would be eligible for support from
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this public school or another public school m ght
fund services through this public school because thi
IS where the children are.

| s there any other questions?

MR, HERVAS. (kay, thank you. The next
attorney that will be cross-exam ning is whon?

MR. DI NOLFO You can go, that's fine.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Good eveni ng. Steve
El | enbecker on behal f of the concerned citizens of
Itasca as well as 943 WIIlow and 260 North QGak
Street. Do you guys mnd if | give thema copy of
the transcript?

Al right. Wth counsel's
perm ssion, |I'mgoing to hand Dr. Lustig a copy of
the transcript from Cctober 28th in case he needs to
refer toit. |Is that all right?

MR. HERVAS:. Yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Good eveni ng, Doctor.

DR. LUSTIG  Good eveni ng.

MR, ELLENBECKER: |'m Steve Ell enbecker, as
you heard ne introduce nyself. Wen | say "you" or
“your" tonight, I"'mgoing to be referring to you
personally as well as Haymar ket and/or Haynar ket

DuPage; is that fair enough?

S
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DR LUSTIG  Sure.

MR, ELLENBECKER: You are the president and
CEO of Haynarket; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: As a result, do you take
responsibility for all that has been filed and said
on Haymarket's behalf in its application process?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: As the applicant, do you
agree that it's your responsibility to provide the
evi dence necessary to support this application?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And you've put your best
foot forward -- or at |east you believe you have --
in putting forth that evidence; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Prior to the application
process starting, | believe you, and maybe ot hers
wWith your team net with the Village; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

what was needed to support this application; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.
MR, ELLENBECKER: You represented -- in the
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course of this application process you represented
that the Holiday Inn was an extended stay hotel;
correct?

DR, LUSTIG No. W said that there were
I ndi vidual s who were using the Holiday Inn as an
extended stay portion.

MR. ELLENBECKER: As part of your application
process, you submtted an econom c inpact study as
required by the process; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And that was prepared by
Teska & Associ ates?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR. ELLENBECKER: And are you aware that
Teska & Associ ates, on your behal f, said Haymarket
Center believes the Holiday Inn property is a match
for its needs and that the Holiday Inn currently
operates as an extended stay hotel.

Do you recall that that's what Teska
subm tted on your behal f?

M5. DICKSON: | would like to just object to
this question, because it does run afoul of what the
Chai rman suggested, which is if there are questions

that cone froma Teska report, we are presenting the
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representative from Teska, who woul d be the best
person to answer those questi ons.

Dr. Lustig, while he m ght be the
representative of Haymarket, did not author the Teska
report, so the questions relative to the Teska report
woul d be better asked of the representative of Teska.

MR. HERVAS. Response for the record?

MR, ELLENBECKER: First of all, Dr. Lustig has
said that he takes responsibility for all that was
subm tted on Haymarket's behalf. Additionally, the
Teska report was submtted to Dr. Lustig in advance
of its subm ssion to this conm ssion in support of
t hat application process.

MR. HERVAS. The issue that the Chairnman
raises is that if particular questions are unique to
the field or the specific know edge of that person,
then they should be directed at that person. In this
particul ar instance, the questionis -- he's only
aski ng whether or not the -- Dr. Lustig is aware that
it has been characterized in that fashion. |If
there's extended discussion as to what there is or is
not, we could have Teska answer it, but, so far, we
haven't gone there. So I'mgoing to allow the

guesti on.
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MR, ELLENBECKER: Do you want ne to re-ask the
guestion?

DR. LUSTIG Pl ease.

MR, ELLENBECKER. Sure. Are you aware or do
you recall that Teska, on Haynmarket's behalf, stated
t hat Haymar ket Center believes the Holiday |Inn
property is a match for its needs and that the
Holiday Inn currently operates as an extended stay
hot el ?

DR, LUSTIG | amnot aware of that. | read
the report a long tine ago. But what is -- what we
do know is that there was a percentage of clients
staying there as an extended stay so --

MR, ELLENBECKER: Do you recall the fact that
Teska went on to say that this simlarity in use,
I.e., extended stay hotel, was the deciding factor to
move forward wi th approval of Haymarket DuPage at
this site?

DR. LUSTIG | do not recall that.

MR, ELLENBECKER:  You woul d agree, though,

t hat based on what you know about extended stay
hotels, that the Holiday Inn Itasca, with no kitchens
in their roons, would not be considered an extended

stay hotel; correct?
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DR LUSTIG Correct.
MR, ELLENBECKER: On Cctober 28th,
specifically at page 50 of the transcript, you
indicated -- in fact, you said that no one could
touch a condom ni um on West Washi ngt on Boul evard for

| ess than $800,000. Do you recall that testinony?

DR LUSTI G  Yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Is that testinony -- was
that testinony given based on research you' ve done on
mar ket -- or a market anal ysis?

DR. LUSTIG No, it was based on wal king the
nei ghbor hood and | ooki ng at what was avai |l abl e.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Wbuld it shock you if |
showed you a listing of recent closures in that area
to see multiple listings for far |ess than $800, 000?

DR, LUSTIG No, it would not shock ne.

MR, ELLENBECKER: So when you nmde t hat
statement to the conm ssion here, it was based on an
anecdot al wal k around t he nei ghbor hood?

DR LUSTIG  Yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: |Is there anything else in
t he Haymar ket subm ssions to this comm ssion that was
based not on your professional judgnment and

experi ence but rather on anecdotal experiences that
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you encountered in wal ki ng around your nei ghborhood?

DR LUSTIG | -- no.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Multiple tinmes -- and |
think it canme up on October 28th. It canme up in your
filings to the comm ssion -- that you've stated or
Haymar ket stated that nearly 2000 nen and wonen from
DuPage and the collar counties were patients at
Haymar ket clinics in 2017 and '18?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And on Cctober 28th -- and
maybe it was a misstatenent. You tell ne. On
Cctober 28th at page 19, you told the conm ssion that
2000 of them were from DuPage.

DR LUSTIG | do recall also continuing that,
saying that it was also part of the collar counties.
MR, ELLENBECKER Ckay. When you have
subm tted docunentation to this comm ssion, you have

consistently referred to DuPage and the coll ar
counties as DuPage and the collar counties; correct?

DR LUSTIG  Unh- huh.

MR. ELLENBECKER: Yes?

DR LUSTIG Yes.

MR. ELLENBECKER: And | think in Schedule B to

your petition -- well, strike that.
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You were asked on Cctober 28th if
you renmenbered how many of those 2000 were from
DuPage specifically. Do you recall that?

DR LUSTIG Right, yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And | believe on that night
you coul dn't renenber.

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Do you know that nunber now?

DR LUSTIG No, | do not.

MR, ELLENBECKER Wuld it -- would you
di sagree with the nunber 376, as Haynarket
represented in Schedule B to its application?

DR LUSTIG To what is the question?

MR, ELLENBECKER: The question is how many of
the 2000 patients --

DR LUSTIG Cone from DuPage?

MR. ELLENBECKER: Correct.

DR LUSTIG Again, | would have to | ook at
t he dat a.

MR, ELLENBECKER: May | hand him a copy of the
petition for special use?

MR. HERVAS:. You want to hand it to hinf

MR. ELLENBECKER: To refresh his recollection?

MR. HERVAS. Certainly.
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MR, ELLENBECKER: And in the petition for
speci al use, and specifically Schedule B, the | ast
par agraph, do you see where it says, Haynarket Center
itself, the petitioner, served 376 DuPage County
residents?

DR, LUSTIG | do.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. And do you agree with
t hat nunber ?

DR LUSTIG If it's in here, yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. So of the 2000
patients that were served by Haymarket West Loop in
DuPage and the collar counties, only 19 percent
hai | ed from DuPage County; correct?

DR LUSTIG If that is the percentage, yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. You also said, |
believe, last tinme that Haymarket West Loop is
running at 80 percent capacity; correct? Yes?

DR, LUSTIG Primarily overall, yes.

MR. ELLENBECKER: And based on the nunbers --
and |'mnot a mathematician -- but that neans about
70 to 80 beds are avail abl e?

DR, LUSTIG Again, it depends on the program
that we're tal king about, yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And what is your turnover on
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those 70 to 80 beds? In other words, how many tines
does one person | eave and anot her person can occupy
t hat bed?

DR, LUSTIG Again, it depends on the program

MR, ELLENBECKER Ckay. It could be anywhere
as short as three to five days, all the way up to a
year; correct?

DR. LUSTIG  Again, depending on the program
yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Sure. But that's a fair
range; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Are you aware -- well,
Haymar ket has a Haymar ket DuPage website that it
started as part of this process in going forward as
part of your application; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And fairly recently, are you
aware that a video was posted on that website that
you actually are featured in?

DR LUSTIG  Yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. Do you know when t hat
vi deo was post ed.

DR LUSTIG | would inmagine it was posted at
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sone point | ast week.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. Do you renmenber when
It was videoed or when it was recorded?

DR. LUSTIG Probably about a nonth ago.

MR, ELLENBECKER  Ckay. And the reason | ask
I's because in that video, in addition to yourself,
State Representative Deb Conroy was al so featured;
correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: All right. And
Representative Conroy stated that the choice of
| tasca was not based on Itasca, it was based on the
bui |l di ng; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And you al so -- you echoed

that by saying we were drawn by the buil ding;
correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: So you weren't drawn to the
Holiday I nn Itasca because of any special features of
the areas surrounding the Holiday Inn; correct?

DR, LUSTIG Not totally correct, but we
want ed sonet hing that was al so near public

transportation.
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MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. W're going to talk
about public transportation in a second. But
Representative Conroy also said -- she didn't say it
was j ust about the building. She actually went a
step further and said it's not about the conmunity;
correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And one thing | found
interesting and the reason | asked you specifically
about how you referred to DuPage and the collar
counties is because you nade a statenent in that
video that said -- and | quote -- "and that's the
goal of Itasca, inproving care for the collar
counties." Correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR ELLENBECKER  You didn't say DuPage and
the collar counties. You said collar counties;
correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: You've made statenents

repeatedly that DuPage residents need a spot for
rehab right next door or in their neighborhood;
correct?

DR. LUSTI G Correct.
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MR, ELLENBECKER: And you i ndicated on
Cctober 28th that it doesn't make good busi ness sense
to transport a patient 32 mles; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: To your know edge, is
Naperville the largest city in DuPage County?

DR, LUSTIG | can't speak to that.

MR, ELLENBECKER: |If not one of the |argest?

DR LUSTIG | can't speak so the size of
Napervill e.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Is it |arger than \Weaton?

DR. LUSTIG Again, | can't speak to the size
of it.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Let's say it's the |argest
and Naperville has over 100,000 people in it. Last
time | drove through and | ooked at a popul ation sign,
that's what it said. You' d agree that by mathenmatics
and extrapol ation of statistics, that it would make
sense that a town |ike Naperville would have the
| argest concentration of those needi ng Haymarket's
assi stance; correct?

DR, LUSTIG | wouldn't necessarily say that,
because if you take a | ook at Haynmarket in the West

Loop, we attract people fromall over the state of
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I11inois.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. But you have a
per cent age about how many people in the conunity are
afflicted with substance use disorders; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER And let's say it's 10
percent. |'mnot saying that's your nunber. But if
you apply that 10 percent to a |l arger popul ated area,
it makes sense that 10 percent of 100, 000 woul d be
greater than 10 percent of 50, 000; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: All right. And you' re aware
that Itasca is not in Naperville's backyard; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: | nean, we're 27 to 37 mles
away, depending on where in Naperville you're |iving;
correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR. ELLENBECKER: Does it make busi ness sense
to transport patients from Naperville to Itasca?

DR LUSTIG  No.

MR, ELLENBECKER: You also testified just a
nmonment ago about public transportation; correct?

DR. LUSTI G Correct.
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MR, ELLENBECKER: And one of the reasons you
chose Itasca was for its accessibility to public
transportation; correct?

DR, LUSTIG Correct, it was one factor.

MR, ELLENBECKER: It was one factor but it was
a big one? You gave it to ne just a second ago;
correct?

DR LUSTIG It was one factor.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. \What public
transportation are you contenpl ati ng when you say one
of the features of Itasca is its accessibility to
public transportation?

DR. LUSTIG  Trains and buses.

(Audi ence tal king.)

M5. DICKSON: M. Chairman --

CHAI RVAN KI SCHNER: Pl ease, no comments from
t he crowd.

MR. ELLENBECKER: And by "trains," you're
referring to Metra; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And the Metra line runs east
to west or west to east; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: How far into DuPage County
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does our Metra line, the west |ine, go?

DR, LUSTIG | can't speak to that.

MR, ELLENBECKER: How far into Lake or WII
County does it go?

DR LUSTIG | can't speak to that.

MR, ELLENBECKER:  The ot her public
transportati on you spoke of is buses; correct? Yes?

DR LUSTIG Yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Do you know what, if any,
buses transport or have routes into Itasca?

DR. LUSTIG There was a bus stop that was
close to the hotel.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. Do you know where
t hat bus goes?

DR, LUSTIG No, | do not.

VR, ELLENBECKER:

Wuld it surprise you to

find out that that bus that goes to Spring Lake

Busi ness Park goes north to Arlington Heights?

DR LUSTIG No,
surprise ne.

MR. ELLENBECKER:
any other part of
transportati on bus,

DR LUSTIG  No,

I n DuPage County,

l|'"'mindifferent. [t woul dn't

Do you know of any bus from

public

that ends up in Itasca?

| do not.
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MR, ELLENBECKER: If a patient -- let's assune
for the noment that there isn't a bus from Naperville
or Wheaton or G en Ellyn or G endal e Heights or
El mhurst to Itasca, you' d agree that it's easier for
a patient in need in Naperville to junp on the
Naperville line into the West Loop than it is for
that sanme patient who relies on public transportation
to get on a train, go to the city, junp on another
train, and cone back here?

DR LUSTIG Not necessarily, because part of
what Haynmar ket Center does is we have vans that help
to pick up patients and transport themto the
facility.

MR, ELLENBECKER: So that's not public
transportation? That's added transportation?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: How often -- or what's the
percentage of patients you end up having to pick up
at their honme to bring to the West Loop?

DR LUSTIG | can't speak to a percentage,
but it does happen frequently. As a matter of fact,
we even pick up people from Edward Hospital currently
whenever they call us. And in answer to your other

guestion, it's not just the length of mles. It's
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al so maki ng sure that people have treatnent where
they live.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay.

DR. LUSTIG That shows strong outcones.

MR, ELLENBECKER: | agree. But Naperville
people don't live in Itasca; right?

DR, LUSTIG |'mjust commenting on that fact.
It does enhance and pronote better outcones.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. | think the nunbers
|'ve seen, and | think the nunbers remain fairly
constant, that you expect to serve in terns of
patient |oad through Holiday Inn in Itasca is 4, 750.
Do you recall that nunber?

DR, LUSTIG | don't recall that nunber, but I
think that nunber's better served by Janes Bal dw n.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. Wuld it surprise you
I f the projected nunber was in excess of 4500 at
Hol iday I nn Itasca?

DR, LUSTIG It wouldn't surprise ne, because
the issue here is that this is going to be a
phased-in program so it's going to depend on when
and what we are tal king about.

MR, ELLENBECKER: In any part of your witten

subm ssions to this conm ssion and in your testinony
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on Cctober 28th, did you present any other
rehabilitation, recovery, detoxification facilities
as large as the one contenplated here in a town as
smal|l as Itasca?

M5. DICKSON: (Objection to the rel evance of
the question. |It's this application that's rel evant.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Part of their burden is to
establish that it wouldn't overly burden the public
wel fare, health, and convenience. And | think the
size of the facility and the services offered in
conparison to the size of the town is rel evant.

MR. HERVAS. Again, I'mgoing to apply a
fairly |iberal standard on your rel evancy objections.
The comm ssi on can deci de what weight to give it,
that sort of a thing, but I'"'mnot going to decline a
guestion to be answered on grounds of rel evancy very
often, unless it's so far afield. So |I'mgoing to
ask that the witness answer the question if he's able
to.

M5. DI CKSON: But the question nmakes an unfair
assunption also. It assunes that the facility is
going to overburden the community, and | don't think
t hat assunption's been proven.

VMR, ELLENBECKER: | don't think there was an
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assunption built in. [I'Il ask the question, again
and if there was, I'll take it out.

MR. HERVAS. Let's hear the question again,
pl ease.

MR, ELLENBECKER  Doctor, as part of your
witten subm ssions to this comm ssion, as well as
your testinony on COctober 28th, did you present
anecdotally, enpirically, through case report or
articles, any facility the size that's contenpl at ed
for Holiday Inn Itasca in a town the size of |tasca?

DR. LUSTIG Not using those conparisons. But
what is also inportant to note is to conpare and
contrast what are the actual treatnent beds as
opposed to recovery hone beds.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. But, all told, |
t hi nk the nunber you gave for total beds was
approxi mately 240; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR ELLENBECKER: All right. On
Cct ober 28th -- and you nentioned to the comm ssi on,
| think you were actual ly asked sone questions about
it, that a grant of $500,000 had al ready been secured
for Itasca. Do you recall that testinony?

DR LUSTIG | did.
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MR, ELLENBECKER: And in the process of doing
that, would you work with elenentary districts, |ike

District 10 and high school districts like District
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MR ELLENBECKER: And is it your
under standing, as we sit here today on Novenber 6th,
that a grant of $500, 000 had been submitted, voted
on, and approved for the town of |tasca?

DR LUSTIG No. It was in the process of
bei ng worked on until both the mayor and
Represent ati ve Pappas chose not to nove forward with
t hat .

MR. ELLENBECKER: Right. So $500, 000 was not
I n our hand; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: All right. And even if it
were, do you have an understandi ng how t hat noney
woul d be distributed anong the taxing bodies that
benefit fromtax revenue?

DR LUSTIG W were never able to get that
far because the process was stopped.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. But you do work with
villages and towns to try to get grants? You have
said that; correct?
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108, for themto come up with ways to offset the |oss
of tax revenue as we would see if 860 Irving Park was
transfornmed into a not-for-profit entity?

DR, LUSTIG |Is your question would we work
with thenf

MR. ELLENBECKER: Yes.

DR. LUSTIG Yes, absolutely.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Have you worked with any
school districts in the past with regard to grants to
make up for lost of tax revenue?

DR. LUSTIG No, we have not.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. A big issue -- and
" mnot going to ask you a |lot of questions about
this. Hopefully I'Il avoid an objection here.

But you were at the table with
M. Baldw n when he was testifying about the inpact,
i f any, on -- of Holiday Inn Itasca on the EMS or
emer gency responders in Itasca; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And as part of that
presentation, the two of you testified for
approxi mately two-and-a-half hours, correct,

t oget her ?

DR LUSTIG Right.
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MR. ELLENBECKER: And the address that the two
of you focused on was 932 Wst Washi ngton; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR. ELLENBECKER: And the only address
affiliated with Haymarket that you and M. Bal dw n
di scussed with your | awers and the conm ssion was
932 West Washi ngton; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: But 932 West Washington is
not the only address through which Haymar ket provides
services at the West Loop facility; correct?

DR. LUSTIG That's correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: In fact, you provide
services at 120 North Sanganon; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER:  You provide services at 124
Nort h Sanganon; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: You provide services at 108
Nort h Sanganon; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR. ELLENBECKER: None of that data in terns
of FO A and affect on EMS for those other three

addresses was addressed by M. Baldw n; correct?
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DR. LUSTIG That is correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Do you have any idea why
when Haynmar ket was testifying to this comm ssion and
gi vi ng perspective nunbers of the inpact of Haymarket
| tasca on our anbul ance and police and fire, why you
would willfully sit next to himand not nention the
ot her three addresses?

DR, LUSTIG The reality to that was that we
were focusing on the data that both the Village al so
FO Aed and requested the five years of data on.
That's what we were focusing on.

MR, ELLENBECKER: But the nunber that you
ultimately gave, you testified this is going to be
t he i npact on EMS; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And it was based on a set of
data affiliated or connected with only one address;
correct?

DR, LUSTIG |'mpretty sure, but | think,
again, that question is better asked of M. Bal dw n.

MR, ELLENBECKER  Fair enough. You indicated
on Cctober 28th that Haymarket is not |icensed by the
state of Illinois; is that correct?

DR LUSTIG No, we are licensed by the state
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of I'llinois.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Can you turn to page 15?
"Il get you a line nunber. |If you go to page 15,
line 10, do you recall saying we are not state
licensed by the state of IIlinois?

DR. LUSTIG That is not correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: That's an incorrect
recordation by the stenographer?

DR LUSTIG That -- we could not be operating
wi thout a state |icense.

M5. DI CKSON: Counsel, mght I -- I"msorry
but I'm | ooking at an Cctober 28th transcript, and
"' mnot getting any of the sane information as from
yours sSo -- ours is just wong page nunberi ng.

MR. HERVAS. There mght -- there mght be two
different transcripts.

M5. DICKSON: | think that's the problem
We're using transcripts fromtwo different reporters,
so I'"'mnot able to track any of what you're asking.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Well, there shouldn't be a
difference. | think we could all agree wth that.

M5. DICKSON: Well, there's a difference in
page nunber cites.

MR. HERVAS:. Ckay.
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M5. DICKSON:. If it's two different reporters.

MR. HERVAS:. Just so the audi ence understands,
it's the right of the attorneys to understand
preci sely what the transcript says that is being
offered to the wwtness so that the witness is asked
the question about it. So we have to nmake sure that
we're both working off the sane transcript.

M5. DICKSON: Ch, hold on.

MR, ELLENBECKER  So the passage, just for the
record, so the record's clear for the court reporters
and you can take it down, what's on page 15 of the
version |I'mreading that was done by Legrand
Reporting & Video Services is page 13 on -- who wote
yours? Who recorded yours?

M5. DI CKSON: Grove & Associ ates.

MR, ELLENBECKER: On the transcript reported
by G ove & Associates, while mne says "we are not

state licensed," their version says "we are not only
state licensed.” So |I'mnot sure which one's
accurate, to be honest with you but I'll nove on.

MR. HERVAS. The only way you can do that is
to test the wtness's recoll ection.

MR, ELLENBECKER: | think he's already

answered it but let ne just revisit it.
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So, Dr. Lustig, there appears to be
a conflict in the transcripts. Are you state
i censed?
DR LUSTIG Yes, we are.
MR, ELLENBECKER: And who are you |icensed

t hr ough?
DR. LUSTIG  Through the D vision of Substance

Abuse Prevention and Recovery as well as |icensed

t hrough the Departnent of Mental Health.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Fair enough. And you're
al so, | believe, CARF accredited?

DR. LUSTIG That's correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. |Is the CARF

accreditation sonething on top of your licensing or

is it essential? Do you need to be CARF accredited?

DR LUSTIG W don't need to be CARF

accredi ted but we chose, as an organi zation, to be
gui ded by addi tional standards.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. Do you recall on
Cctober 28th -- and, hopefully, | don't get another
transcript surprise on this one -- that patients

woul d receive care for a very low length of stay at
your facility?

DR LUSTIG | don't understand the question.
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MR. ELLENBECKER: One of the issues with
regard to your applicationis -- is the issue of
residential; correct?
DR LUSTIG Correct.
MR, ELLENBECKER  Whet her your facility would

be residential?

DR, LUSTIG The issue, primarily, was focused
on the term nol ogy of what was considered residenti al
in the zoning | aws and what was consi dered
residential in the state |icensing body.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Right. And do you recall
testifying that residential in the treatnent context
nmeans patients are provided healthcare treatnent on
sitein a clinical or hospital-like environnent for a
very | ow |l ength of stay?

M5. DICKSON: Can you give a page cite?

MR. ELLENBECKER Page 20, but might be 18 if
there's any --

M5. DICKSON: It's a variable length of stay.

DR, LUSTIG That's correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Again, a discrepancy.

Movi ng past what the transcript
says, you woul d agree that your treatnent nodel in

| tasca, as you discussed with the school district's

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com

09: 05:

09: 05:

09: 05:

09: 06:



© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET

Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019 Page 60
| awyer, wll have people staying up to 365 days,
maybe | onger; correct?

DR LUSTIG Not | onger, no.

MR. ELLENBECKER: But at |east 365 days”?

DR LUSTIG That is very rare of individuals
staying in the recovery hones, if they are needed.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Right. And, if needed,
patients can stay up to 365 days; correct?

DR LUSTIG Individuals in our recovery
hones - -

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ri ght.

DR LUSTIG -- can stay up to 365 --

MR, ELLENBECKER  Ri ght.

DR LUSTIG -- if needed, yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Individuals in their
recovery honme can take up residence in your facility
for up to 365 days, if needed?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. |In terns of the
nunber of nedi cal detox beds in Chicago, ny

under st andi ng, based on Haynar ket website postings,
Is that you have 16 for nen, 16 for wonen; is that
right?

DR. LUSTIG That's correct.
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MR, ELLENBECKER: And your testinony on
Cctober 28th with regard to detox beds, you had
soci al detox and nedi cal detox beds; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And do both of those types
of beds, nedical and social, require 24-hour care?

DR LUSTI G  Yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. So with regard to
medi cal and soci al detox beds requiring 24-hour care,
Holiday Inn Itasca will also have 32, correct,
conbi ned?

DR. LUSTIG  Conbi ned, yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Were you instrunental in
Haymarket's effort to obtain a special-use permt
related to an in and outpatient facility in Weaton
I n approximately 2017 or 20187

M5. DI CKSON: (njection to the rel evance of
t he questi on.

MR. HERVAS. Well, go ahead and nmake your
ar gunent .

MR, ELLENBECKER: Yeah. | think the rel evance
Is there are parallels between representati ons nade
there and representati ons nade here and the

j uxtaposition of the size and the unequal burden that
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woul d have been i nposed there as opposed to here. So
it's for conparison purposes.

MR. HERVAS. The -- there would be Iimted
rel evancy to conparing that, and I'mgoing to |let you
proceed for now until | understand what the point is.
But this is prelimnary so let's find out where it
goes. So you may ask the questi on.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Thank you. The facility in
Wheaton is going to be 16 beds al one; correct?

DR LUSTIG Along with outpatient, yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Right. There weren't going
to be 224 additional beds?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And the nunbers | saw that
were going to be treated through the Wheaton facility
were 700, correct, split between in and outpatient?

DR LUSTIG | can't recall those nunbers.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. Wuld it surprise you
I f Haymarket represented that it was going to be able
to treat 500 patients out of that facility on an
out pati ent basis?

DR, LUSTIG Wuld it surprise ne? No.

MR, ELLENBECKER: All right. And at sone

point -- well, with regard to the outpatient aspect

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com

09: 08:

09: 09:

09: 09:

09: 09:



© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET

Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019 Page 63

of that venture, you didn't need a special -use permt
for the outpatient aspect; correct?

DR. LUSTIG No, not for the outpatient.

MR, ELLENBECKER Right. And if the 376
DuPage patients that you service through West Loop
needed out patient service, you would have had an
opportunity at this Weaton facility to serve all
376, if they needed outpatient services; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And Haymar ket wal ked away
fromthat opportunity; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

M5. DICKSON: Well, to actually --

MR, ELLENBECKER: He's answered. She's not
testifying.

M5. DICKSON: Well, that's -- actually, that's
not true. The zoning was denied in Weaton. So |
appreciate the fact that he wants to paint a
particul ar picture, but Haymarket was denied the
zoni ng opportunity. It didn't wal k away.

MR. HERVAS. Ckay. If this was a court
proceedi ng, then you wouldn't be allowed to comrent
necessarily like that, but this is not. This is a

Pl an Comm ssion proceeding, and so it's allowable for
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the attorney to nmake that representation for the
pur pose of the Plan Conmm ssion understanding that.
So your comment is noted for the

record, and the Plan Conm ssion understands that
the -- in Wieaton it was turned down. So proceed,
pl ease.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And, for the record, his
answer stands; correct?

MR. HERVAS:. Yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER  Ckay. W thout getting into
the data, because you' ve already told ne M. Bal dw n
I's the person Haymarket put up to discuss the data
and the inpact on energency responders; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: You are M. Bal dwi n's boss;
correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR. ELLENBECKER: Do you know how nuch of
M. Baldwin's daily job is spent analyzing FO A
responses and EMS dat a?

DR, LUSTIG Currently, for his job. This

MR, ELLENBECKER: Before this application

process.
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DR. LUSTIG Before the application process,
none.

MR, ELLENBECKER: None. W nentioned briefly
just a bit -- you nentioned Teska a bit ago, and |I'm
not going to delve into the report. |'mjust -- do
you know who -- and I'll ask M ke Hoffman those
questions at a later date. But do you know who nade
the decision to hire Teska?

M5. DI CKSON: njection, relevance.

MR, ELLENBECKER: May | respond?

MR. HERVAS. (o ahead, please.

MR. ELLENBECKER: The rel evance, the reason
| "' m asking the question, is because | want to know
if, if 1t's Haymarket, whether any restrictions were
put on Teska with regard to the scope and the |evel
of investigation that they were allowed to do.

MR. HERVAS:. That question would be rel evant.
The question -- the prior question was not. So |'l]
| et you get directly to the question you want to ask.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Dr. Lustig, do you know,
whether it be you or anyone else, if limtations or
restrictions were put on Teska & Associates with

regard to the investigation? Wether it be the

breadth, the scope, or the anount of noney they could
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spend?

DR, LUSTIG | do not know that.

MR, ELLENBECKER: You testified on
Cctober 28th that a market analysis had been prepared
for Haymarket as it pertains to Itasca. Do you
recall that?

DR LUSTI G  Yes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. When you referred to
a market analysis that had been prepared, were you
referring to a residential market anal ysis?

DR, LUSTIG | can't comment to that.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Have you seen a mar ket
anal ysis done for Itasca?

DR LUSTIG W have seen a financial inpact.

MR, ELLENBECKER Ri ght.

DR LUSTIG But | don't know if you
categori zed it as a market anal ysis.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Well, what were you -- when
you said that a market anal ysis had been done with
regard to a residential aspect, what were you
referring to on Cctober 28th?

DR. LUSTIG The financial inpact report.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. The one done by Teska

& Associ at es?
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DR LUSTIG Correct.
MR, ELLENBECKER: And in reading the Teska &
Associ ates -- have you read the Teska & Associ at es
econom c i npact study?
DR LUSTIG | did long tine ago.
MR ELLENBECKER | won't quiz you word by
word, then. Do you recall if Teska & Associ ates
made -- or reported the data from any market anal ysis

as it related to residential inpact?

DR, LUSTIG Again, | think it's better to ask
Teska that question.

MR. ELLENBECKER: We've tal ked a fair anount
about -- obviously we're tal king about Itasca and the
| ocati on. And have you, going out of Holiday Inn
| tasca, have you by foot wal ked out of the Holiday
Inn Itasca and wal ked to the west and wal ked to the
east and wal ked to the north?

DR LUSTIG Have | walked it?

MR, ELLENBECKER: Yes.

DR LUSTIG  No.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Have you seen where the
sidewal ks lead fromHoliday Inn Itasca down to the
train that we discussed earlier?

DR LUSTIG Through a car, not through
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wal ki ng.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. |In taking that right
turn out of Holiday Inn Itasca and goi ng down east
down Irving Park Road, do you have a recollection of
what types of businesses, activities, or venues,
public or private, that one woul d pass in wal king on
t hat sidewal k?

DR. LUSTIG No, | do not.

MR, ELLENBECKER: In driving, have you ever
driven west on Irving Park Road to see what type of
busi nesses are both east and west of Rohlw ng Road?

DR. LUSTIG |'ve seen the business in the
busi ness park. |'ve seen the businesses in the
downt own area but --

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay, |'msorry. Have you
seen that at least three strip malls on the
corners -- and | think it's the southwest, the
nort hwest, and the northeast corner of Rohlw ng and
I rving Park Road -- have video gam ng establishnents

DR, LUSTIG | have not seen that, no.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. And you woul d
acknow edge, though, that -- | nean, you know what
SAMHSA, or SA-MHS-A is; correct?

DR LUSTIG  Yes.

?
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MR, ELLENBECKER: And | think you' re actually

very active in it, aren't you?
DR LUSTIG  Yes.
MR. ELLENBECKER: For everybody here, the

comm ssi on, what is SAVHSA? 09: 15:
DR LUSTIG  The Substance Abuse and Ment al

Heal th Service Adm nistration.
MR ELLENBECKER: And SAMHSA is very active

both in substance use disorder treatnent as well as

ganbl i ng and al cohol ; correct? 09: 16:
DR LUSTIG Correct.
MR, ELLENBECKER: And you're aware that

SAVHSA' s ganbl i ng docunent states that ganbling

frequently occurs with substance use disorders;

correct? 09: 16:
DR LUSTIG Correct.
MR ELLENBECKER: In fact, in reports that

Haymar ket nmakes to the state -- | don't know if they

are voluntary or required -- you actually report that

there are patients of yours wth co-addictions being 09: 16:

ganbl i ng; correct?
DR LUSTIG Correct.
MR, ELLENBECKER: And you're aware that even

wi th rehab going successfully, exposure to a
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subst ance, ganbling, or drinking can trigger rel apse
in those other areas; correct?

DR LUSTIG  Yes.

MR. ELLENBECKER: And access to ganbling or
al cohol can di m nish success in drug rehabilitation;
correct?

DR, LUSTIG Prior or past treatnent? Because
the goal of treatnent, obviously, is to build a skill
set needed to -- because nost of the patients have to

return back to the sanme environnent that they used

i n.
MR, ELLENBECKER: Let's say during treatnent.
DR LUSTIG So can it be a trigger? Yes.
But a lot of -- but nobst patients are still in an

environnent that they get triggered early on in
treatnment, and so part of treatnent is to address
that. Does relapse occur? Yes. But, again, we
| earn, and the patient |earns, fromevery rel apse.
MR, ELLENBECKER: But you would agree that a
good or an ideal |ocation would be one in which the
fewest anount of relapse triggers exist; correct?
DR. LUSTIG | necessarily would not say that,
because many patients are faced wwth multiple

triggers in nultiple different venues, depending on
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where the patient's at.

MR, ELLENBECKER: If you could identify the
perfect rehabilitation and recovery area, would it be
next to a drinking and ganbling facility or far away
froma drinking and ganbling establishnment?

DR, LUSTIG (Cbviously the answer woul d be far
away but it's not necessarily a requirenent.

MR. ELLENBECKER: Al nost done, Doctor. You
indicate in -- | think you nentioned it in the public
hearing process as well as in papers submtted, that
patients will be submtted to background checks;
correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: | think your Power Poi nt
slide indicated that they will be submtted to netal
detector checks; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: | think | even saw nenti oned
that there will be canine searches; is that right?

DR, LUSTIG Traditionally that is randomy

done.

3

ELLENBECKER:  Ckay.

3

LUSTIG But it's not consistently done,

no.
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MR, ELLENBECKER:. Wth regard to the
background checks, though, you are doi ng background
checks to nmake sure, for one reason, that you don't
have people with violent or sexually violent
hi stories; correct?

DR, LUSTIG That's correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And if sonebody wal ks into
| tasca or Haymarket Itasca and a background check is
done and they have a violent history, they will be
turned away; correct?

DR, LUSTIG W will actually transport them
to afacility that wll take the patient.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Right. But they wll be
turned away fromtreat nent because they pose a safety
risk inthat facility; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And while turned away from
that treatnment facility because of the safety risk
they pose inside the facility, you're then turning
theminto the community, whether by van or by foot,
where they pose a safety hazard outside; correct?

DR, LUSTIG No, that is not correct.

MR, ELLENBECKER: So sonebody who -- | just

want to be clear for the record. A person with a
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violent history who poses a safety risk inside, it's
your testinony that that sane person does not pose a
safety risk outside?

DR, LUSTIG They woul d be transported out of
the facility.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Right. And wherever they're
transported to, they woul d pose that sane safety
risk; correct?

DR LUSTIG | don't think we can -- you can
draw t hat concl usi on necessarily.

MR ELLENBECKER: All right.

MR, SWETS: Can | ask a quick question? |If
sonebody wal ks in and is refused treatnent -- if
sonebody wal ks in and refuses treatnent and you want
to transport them away and they refuse your
transportation, what happens at that point? They
wal k in the building and you refuse treatnent, and
are they going to be held against their will or how
does that work?

DR. LUSTIG You know, | think what's
inportant -- |'msorry, continue.

MR, SWETS: No, no, I'mjust trying to
understand. That was a question | had last tine

on -- if sonebody refuses transportation -- if |
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wal ked in and you said | can't treat you and | want
to wal k out, what happens?

DR LUSTIG | think it's inportant to note
that nost individuals that cone to treatnment do it
voluntarily. So that's the first piece. But to
address specifically the violence piece, we would --
we have a team of case nmanagers and recovery coaches
that would work to place this patient into an
appropriate facility and work with that patient to
transport them out.

MR SWETS: And if they refuse?

DR, LUSTIG |If they refuse transportation?

MR SWETS: Yes.

DR LUSTIG Then we would try to give them
sone type of other transportation. W would call
famly nmenbers that m ght assist wth this.

MR SWETS: But there's a possibility they
coul d wal k out by thensel ves w thout you stopping it?
| woul d assune you call the police at this point
but --

DR. LUSTIG The answer is is there a chance?
Yes. Wiy we would call the police when they haven't
done anything --

MR SWETS: | nean, if they are aggravated
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or -- | nmean, if they're causing a situation, you
would call -- if they were being disorderly, | would
assune.

DR LUSTIG Qur team both clinically as well
as security, is trained to deescal ate patients, not
I ncrease the frustration of a patient. So | think
that's an inportant piece of that or an elenent to
that. But | can't recall that, when a patient's been
turned away that we would call the police on that
pati ent because they have acted out that
dramatically.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Finally, Doctor, just to
recap on October 28th and follow ng up on M. Swets'
guestion, aside fromthe background search aspect of
it, | believe you testified -- unless you're going to
tell me otherwse -- that if a patient is in
Haymar ket |Itasca or even West Loop and in the mddle
of treatnment they voluntarily | eave that treatnent,
they're not discharged for an event or contraband,
they can | eave; correct?

DR LUSTIG W do not have any | ocked
prograns, Yyes.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay, thank you. That's all

| have.
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CHAI RVAN KI SCHNER:  Thank you.

MR. HERVAS. M. D Nolfo?

MR. DI NOLFO.  Good evening, Doctor. M
nane's Steve DiNolfo, and | represent the Itasca Fire
Protection District. | guess the good news for you
I's counsel covered a |ot of what | was going to ask
you, but | do have sone clarifications. GCkay?

DR LUSTIG  Sure.

MR DI NOLFO | think you shared with us, and
| think follow ng up on what the conm ssioner was
j ust asking you about, that your programis
conpl etely voluntary?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR. DI NOLFO.  Meaning that sonebody coul d
voluntarily walk in the door; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR. DI NOLFO.  Sonebody can, once they're in
your program can voluntarily |eave?

DR, LUSTIG Correct. But it's typically not
done without a clinical intervention being done.

MR DI NOLFO. And despite your best efforts,
clinical interventions or whatever services you m ght
throw at a patient to try to convince himor her to

stay, they can still say |I'mleaving;, correct?
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DR LUSTIG Correct.
MR DI NOLFO And if they want to say | want
to walk fromthe Holiday Inn to the train station,
t hey absolutely have the right to do that, because
you can't hold them against their will; correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO | want to start back just a
little bit to get alittle bit of clarification. You
shared with us, | believe | ast week and today, that
you serve about 12,000 patients annually; correct?

DR, LUSTIG In the West Loop facility.

MR DI NOLFO That's correct. And I think
you shared with us that there's a total of 400 beds
avai |l abl e; correct?

DR. LUSTI G  Approxi mately.

MR DI NOLFO. And in order to get to those
400 beds, it's not just the West \Washi ngton address
we have to factor in. W have to factor in the
Sanganon addresses as well; correct?

DR, LUSTIG That's correct.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. And you understand that
there's different types of patients situated at each
addr ess?

DR. LUSTI G Correct.

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com

09: 23:

09: 23:

09: 23:

09: 24:



© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019 Page 78

MR. Dl

NOLFO. Requiring different services?

DR. LUSTI G Correct.

MR D

NOLFO. Experiencing different types of

medi cal situations, potentially?

DR. LUSTI G Correct.

MR D

NOLFO. Al right. And | think you

shared and counsel made it clear that between 2017

and '18, there was only 376 individuals from DuPage

County that cane to you for service?

DR. LUSTI G Yes.

MR. Dl

NOLFO. So 376 out of 24,000 -- and |I'm

not a good math -- but that's about one percent, is

it not?

DR. LUSTIG Qut of 24,0007

MR D

NOLFO Yes. |If you take ny word for

it, it's about one percent?

DR. LUSTIG Ckay.

MR D

NOLFO. Al right. So the other 99

percent that you treat, at least in the Loop

facility, cone from sonewhere ot her than DuPage

County?

DR. LUSTIG And the collar counties, yes.

MR. Dl

NOLFO. And despite the fact that you

serve 99 percent of individuals from sonewhere other
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t han DuPage, you're still only operating at about
80- percent capacity?

DR. LUSTIG Yes. But the capacity does
change, but if you want an average, it is 80 percent.

MR DI NOLFO. Sure. It could be higher and
it could be | ower than 80 percent.

DR, LUSTIG Right.

MR. DI NOLFO Now, |ast week you were --
think in your presentation and in the slides, you
made sone conversation and sonme statenents about the
nmedi cal professionals that were going to be
potentially staffed at the facility, if it's
approved?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. And | think you said -- and
correct ne if I"'mwong -- that you were going to
hire a new nedical director for the facility if it's
approved here in Itasca?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR. DI NOLFO And that doctor would not be

sonebody stationed there, obviously, 24 hours a day,
seven days a week? They woul d be responsible overall
for the facility?

DR. LUSTI G Correct.
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MR. DI NOLFO And they wouldn't necessarily
be there even every day, the nedical director; fair?

DR, LUSTIG That is not fair. It would
depend, obviously, on their schedul e but they woul d
be there full tine.

MR DI NOLFO And the nedical director has
the right to continue in their private practice as
wel |, not just solely work for Haymarket?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. So as their schedule permts,
they woul d be there, and on days they have ot her
obligations, they wll not be there?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO And | think you shared wth us
that -- let nme ask a better question and back up a
mnute. |Is there a possibility on any given day

where there's no nedical professional in one of your
facilities?

DR LUSTIG  No.

MR DI NOLFO. Is it possible in any given day
where the highest |evel of nedical professional there
s an LPN?

DR. LUSTIG No, an RN or a physician

assi st ant .
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MR DI NOLFO Ckay. And in those tinmes where
there's an energency -- and | think you shared with
us that you had entered into a contract with Elite
Anbul ance; is that correct?

DR, LUSTIG That is correct.

MR, DI NOLFO Al right. 1In tinmes where
there's an energency, who nakes the decision whether
we're going to call Elite Anbul ance or 9117

DR LUSTIG The RN

MR DI NOLFO. Ckay. And is there sone type
of witten criteria that are used to follow in order
to make that decision?

DR, LUSTIG No, it's based on their clinical
experi ence.

MR DI NOLFO. So they have to nake a -- they
have to nake judgnent call at the tine?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO And is there a review if they
decide to call 911 instead of Elite to see why they
chose 911 over Elite?

DR LUSTIG  Yes.

MR. DI NOLFO And who reviews that?

DR. LUSTIG The nedical team woul d, including
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MR DI NOLFO And if the nedical teamor the
nmedi cal director decides, oh, you should have called
Elite on that one, is there any type of discipline or
penal ty agai nst that enployee for calling 911 versus
Elite?

DR LUSTIG There would be supervision. |
woul dn't say that there's disciplinary but there's --

MR DI NOLFO Wuld they be witten up or
woul d they --

DR LUSTIG It would be a witten supervision

form
MR. DI NOLFO Days off if they do it again?
DR LUSTIG There's progressive discipline.
MR DI NOLFO. In -- | just want to nake sure,
one other clarification. |In the Itasca proposed

facility, you have 32 beds for detox; is that
correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR. DI NOLFO Now, when you deci ded about the
| ocation here in Itasca, did you consider the nunber
of anbul ances that Itasca Fire Protection D strict
had in service?

DR, LUSTIG Yes, we did. But, actually, that

nunber that was said to us isn't really an accurate
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pi cture.

MR. DI NOLFO So you would agree with ne that
the Itasca Fire Protection District has, in service,
one anbul ance?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, DI NOLFO Al right. And do you know
how -- the nunber of people they serve?

DR. LUSTIG No, | do not.

MR. DI NOLFO  Ckay.

DR LUSTIG But | also know that they're part
of a larger group of a consortium of other villages
t hat use their anbul ances.

MR, DI NOLFO Al right. Let's talk about
the consortium Wat's your understanding of -- the
consortiumis, what, the MABAS agreenent you FO Aed?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. And you understand --

DR, LUSTIG And/or the -- yes, |I'msorry.

MR. DI NOLFO And you understand that the
MABAS agreenent requires -- it's equal; right? "Il
hel p you, you help ne?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO It's not that they can

unlimtedly call any nei ghbor they want to service
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them when they're tied up handling, let's say,
hypot hetically, a call at Haynarket?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. And you understand
t he MABAS agreenent has certain restrictions and
controls on it?

DR, LUSTIG | do not know those details.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. So have you read it?

DR LUSTIG  Yes.

MR DI NOLFO. Ckay. But you don't renenber

what the requirenents are and how often you can use
it?

DR LUSTIG  No.

MR, DI NOLFO Ckay. Did you |look at the tine
frame that an anbul ance is out of service when it
gets a call and has to transport a patient?

DR LUSTIG  No.

MR. DI NOLFO Now, are you aware that the
citizens here in Itasca just passed a referendumto
help the Fire Protection District balance its budget
so it didn't have to drop its |level of service?

DR LUSTIG Yes.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. And Haymarket --

just so we are clear, | think you shared with us that
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you t hought the Holiday Inn was the best fit because
it already had set roons and things of that nature;
Is that correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO Isn't it true that Haymarket
was of fered a 250-bed w ng at the DuPage care center
known as conval escent center that had 250 beds
avai |l abl e back in July of 2018?

DR LUSTIG W weren't offered it. They
asked -- DuPage asked us to take a look at it.

MR DI NOLFO And they told you it was
avail able if you wanted it?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. And you turned that down?

DR, LUSTIG It was cost prohibitive for us to
take on that project.

MR DI NOLFO And it's a hospital? It's a
functional hospital, part of it? There's parts of it
that are still functioning?

DR LUSTIG Part of it, yes.

MR. DI NOLFO Has a kitchen?

DR LUSTIG Yes.

MR. DI NOLFO Feeds the patients that are

t here; correct?
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DR, LUSTIG | can't speak to what they do.

MR. DI NOLFO Secured facility? When you
visited it, was it secure?

DR LUSTI G  Yes.

MR DI NOLFO. Ckay. And there was 10 nore
beds there than you have available to you here in
Itasca; is that correct?

DR. LUSTIG There was not a |ayout there.

The actual portion of the facility that was shown to
us actually didn't have necessarily roons broken out.

It was in an actual state of disrepair.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. So you were here | ast
week when M. Baldwin testified that Haymarket
offered to buy the Itasca Fire Protection District an
anbul ance? You heard that testinony?

DR LUSTIG  Yes.

MR. DI NOLFO And am | correct that the only
time that Haymarket nmet with Chief Burke and a
representative fromthe fire district was May 28,
20197

DR, LUSTIG | can't recall the date.

MR, DI NOLFO But you would agree with ne in
that neeting, you and your team-- which didn't

include M. Baldwin, right, he wasn't there?
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DR. LUSTI G Correct.

MR, DI NOLFO True? Ckay. You and your team

tal ked about what the project was. At no tine in
that nmeeting did you or anybody from Haymar ket offer
Chi ef Burke or any representative fromthe fire
district to buy an anbul ance at that neeting?

DR, LUSTIG No. The goal was to try to hear
the barriers and the strengths and weaknesses t hat
t hey were experiencing.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. And as we sit here
today, you have never nmade an offer to Itasca to buy
an anbul ance -- the Itasca Fire Protection District,
to buy an anbul ance?

DR LUSTIG No, we net with the mayor.

MR DI NOLFO. Well, you understand the
mayor's different fromthe Fire Protection District?

DR LUSTIG | do.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. So offering the
mayor an anbul ance woul d be like offering the Fire
Protection District a police car, right? Doesn't
make a | ot of sense.

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR, DI NOLFO And | guess ny next question

woul d be, if your true calculations are that there's

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com

09: 30:

09: 30:

09: 31:

09: 31:



© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Page 88

only going to be 13 calls per year that your proposed
project is going to have on EMS, why woul d you offer
to buy an anbul ance?

DR, LUSTIG | think the question on the
nunbers of that anbul ance is best answered by
M. Baldw n, but the goal here was -- and let ne be
clear on this, is we are trying very hard to address
the barriers that were being presented. | nean,
there's a variety of things that were being presented
as barriers or burdens to the Village, to the Fire
Protection District. W were trying to work in good
faith to try to address those issues.

MR DI NOLFO. You're saying you're trying to
address barriers with the Fire Protection District,
but you never offered anything to the Fire Protection
District; right?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR. DI NOLFO Okay. So when M. Bal dw n got
up here under oath and testified that the Itasca Fire
Protection District was offered an anbul ance, that
was wrong?

DR, LUSTIG No, we worked with the mayor.

MR. DI NOLFO Counsel previously touched on

your statenent about not being good business to
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transport sonebody 32 mles. | appreciated your
answer. You said it wasn't good business, but it
doesn't really address the question.

s it possible that a person from
the Loop facility could be transported out to the
Itasca facility if it is approved and open?

DR LUSTIG  Never.

MR. DI NOLFO Never going to happen?

DR, LUSTIG Never going to happen.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. You would agree that --
and havi ng been through this process, | guess, in
Wheat on, as we heard from counsel asking you
guestions, that the Fire Protection District and the
Village needs to nake sure that the current EMS
services are nmi ntained and not inpacted negatively
by the proposed Haymarket project; that's fair?

DR LUSTIG That's fair.

MR DI NOLFO Okay. And if the evidence
showed that the proposed use would | essen the current
| evel of service, that would call into question the
appropri ateness of the project; fair?

DR, LUSTIG No, | don't think that's fair. |
t hi nk our goal here is obviously trying to work with

system partners to address those barriers. That's
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why the whol e concept of working with Elite Anmbul ance
services cane up. Wen you conpare and contrast this
to Wheaton, we didn't have that need in Weat on.

So it canme through neeting with
I ndi vidual s that a private anbul ance service would
address sone of that burden.

MR, DI NOLFO So | guess what | woul d gl ean
fromyour statenent, then, if you didn't have a
private anmbul ance contract, you believe that the
proposed facility would have a undue burden on the
EMS syst enf?

DR, LUSTIG | do not think that.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. So | also heard sone
testimony | think fromyou | ast week that there's
sone type of contract you believe exists with
Superior Anmbul ance. Do you renenber saying that?

DR, LUSTIG Yes, | do.

MR. DI NOLFO What contract are you referring
to?

DR LUSTIG There was a contract -- they I|i st
out the villages that Superior has contracts wth,
and lItasca was one of them

MR. DI NOLFO Not the Itasca Fire Protection

District, though; correct?
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DR, LUSTIG It didn't get that granular, no.

MR, DI NOLFO | nean, when you net with Chief
Burke, did you ask himif he had a contract with
Superior?

DR LUSTIG  No.

MR, DI NOLFO Al right. Couple others
things. You nentioned in your testinony or in your
Power Poi nt that you had up there about energency call
buttons. Were are these | ocated and who do they
call?

DR. LUSTIG They would be held at the
security desk and on sone of our prograns.

MR DI NOLFO. Are there any outside the
bui | di ng?

DR. LUSTIG  Again, that has not been desi gned
yet.

MR DI NOLFO In your Loop facility, are
there any energency call buttons outside.

DR LUSTIG No.

MR DI NOLFO Is it possible that there wll
be energency call buttons outside your facility in
| tasca?

DR. LUSTIG There may be. W have not | ooked

at that as an issue at this point. There will be --
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as we nentioned in the PowerPoint slide, there wll
be caneras and there will be videotaping of that
ar ea.

MR. DI NOLFO WII| your personnel, your
security, your nurses, your doctors, be permtted to
exit out the side of the building to treat or address
problenms out in the parking lot? O wll you call
911 for that?

DR, LUSTIG No, they wouldn't go out to the
parking lot to address that.

MR DI NOLFO Lastly, there's -- you
mentioned grants a nunber of tines, grants.

Qovi ously you acknow edge that grants are
specul ative? There's no guarantee you're going to
get thenf

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. And | think you shared wth us
t hat you have helped villages in the past get grants?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO.  You would agree with ne that
Haymar ket has not assisted any Fire Protection
District in the state to obtain a grant?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. And you would agree that grants
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that apply to villages differ greatly fromthose
available to fire districts, if you know?

DR, LUSTIG | do not know.

MR, DI NOLFO Ckay. Last thing | wanted to
tal k about, I think you and M. Baldwi n both
testified about this Elite Anbul ance contract.

Now, you would agree with ne that
the contract has the ability within it to be cancel ed
by either party followng the set-forth process;
correct?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. And you understand
that there's no obligation by you to renew t hat
contract once it expires?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR. DI NOLFO. And you understand that the
Itasca fire district and the Village of |tasca have
no authority to nmake you enter into a contract wth a
private anbul ance conpany?

DR LUSTIG Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. And you would agree with ne,
then, that if private contract is canceled or not
renewed and you don't enter into a new one, that the

burden of responding to calls at the proposed

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com

09: 36:

09: 36:

09: 36:

09: 36:



© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Page 94

facility would fall upon the Itasca Fire Protection
District?

DR, LUSTIG Again, | think that's a
specul ative question, because that is not our
intention to do that. And, matter of fact, one of
the things that our teamis looking at is |ooking at
a backup to Elite as a secondary backup.

MR DI NOLFO So -- but | understand that as
you sit here today it's not your intention, but Elite
could sit there and say, you know what, we don't want
to work with you guys anynore. In that tinme frane
where you don't have a contract to the tine you get a
new contract, those calls would have to be dealt wth
by the fire district?

DR LUSTIG That's why ny team has now been
| ooking at a second entity to address that very
I ssue, if that should occur.

MR. DI NOLFO And you're |l ooking at a second
entity because you're concerned that Elite can't
handl e the additional |oad that you're going to put
on t henf

DR, LUSTIG  Absolutely not.

MR DI NOLFO \Well, if you have a contract

with Elite and you believe they can handl e what ever
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you're going to put on themin call volune, why do
you need a backup?

DR, LUSTIG W always |like to have a Plan B.

MR. DI NOLFO That's all | have.

DR LUSTIG Let ne just finish that point.
The issue here is what you're -- you're not dealing
Wi th whether a piece of a car is made
I nappropriately. You're dealing with a human |ife.
That's why there's a Plan B. It's not like we're
trying to say, oh, Elite can or cannot do sonet hi ng.
When dealing with human |ives, you have zero
opportunities for m stakes.

MR DI NOLFO Right. And that's why it's
I nportant to understand what the EMS burden's going
to be on the Itasca fire district, right? Because

it's not just lives in Haymarket that matter. |It's
the lives of the other citizens that matter as well.

DR. LUSTIG | understand.

MR DI NOLFO And if they're tied up with you
havi ng to cover calls because you don't have a
contract wwth Elite or any other secondary anbul ance,
they may not be able to respond to citizens -- other
citizens that need hel p.

M5. DI CKSON: (bjection to the formof the
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gquestion. That was nore testinony than question. |If
he wants to provide testinony relative to how well
| tasca services its population, that's one thing.

MR HERVAS:. | don't even need a response,
M. D Nolfo. That was a question, so I'mgoing to
allowit.

MR DI NOLFO [|'Il bet you're going to say
you don't renenber what | asked you; right?

You woul d agree with ne that if the
|tasca Fire Protection District is having to deal
with calls at the Haymarket facility because you
don't have a contract with a private anbul ance and
you don't have a Plan B, that that could put the
lives of the remaining citizens at risk because
they're tied up dealing with calls with you guys?

DR LUSTIG | think the question is too
specul ative for ne to answer.

MR. DI NOLFO Fair enough. Thank you.

MR. HERVAS: Hold on. Let ne consult wth the
Chai rman for a nonent.

(Di scussion off the record.)

CHAI RVAN KI SCHNER: Ckay. So at this tine,

we're going to take a 10-m nute break.

(Recess taken.)
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CHAI RVAN KI SCHNER:  First order of business, |
have a question for the petitioner's attorney. This
docunent was |left here presunmably by sonmeone with
Haymarket. WAs it sonething that you wanted to enter
I nto evidence?

MR. ROTH. W did offer that into evidence.

M5. JARMUSZ: Yeah, so | didn't actually
clarify at that point. Those were passed out to you
today. They were handed over in a stack fromthe
| ast neeting fromthe attorneys, so we just
di stributed them so that you woul d have them per them
provi di ng them

CHAl RMAN KI SCHNER: Ckay. |Is there a nunber
assigned to that?

MR ROTH |t was No. 20.

CHAI RMAN KI SCHNER: 20? Thank you.

Ckay. Before we nove on to the next
witness, | would |like to ask if there are any ot her

attorneys within 250 feet of the property? |If so,

pl ease cone forward. Ckay. Seeing none, | would
like to invite M. -- | just forgot your nane, |I'm
sorry -- Baldwin to the stand.

MR. BALDWN:. You've got it.
CHAI RMAN KI SCHNER: Thank you. You may
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pr oceed.

MR. ROTH. M. Chairman, are we keeping the
sanme order of counsel?

MR DI NOLFO No, I'll be going first.

MR. HERVAS. You nmy proceed.

MR DI NOLFO. | do have one question. Wo is
the gentleman up there with hinf

MR, BALDWN. Oh, I'msorry. This is our
director of finance, Robert Edstrom W prepared
sone slides out of anticipation to sone questions.
He will be working the slides, if it pertains to the
question. W felt like it would really add if -- to
really clarify, because sone of these are really
data-fuel ed questions, and | think it could really
help clarify the testinony.

MR DI NOLFO. Wwell, obviously, M. Hervas,
|"mgoing to object to any slides being used to
answer questions, nunber one. Nunber two is | don't
have a problemwth himsitting there as | ong as he
doesn't offer any guidance or information to

M. Bal dwi n.
MR. ROTH. May | understand what the nature of
the objection is to his using a slide, if necessary?

Why woul d you object?
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MR. DI NOLFO Because he needs to answer
questions like he did last tinme with the one slide up
there. |If he needs -- you can do whatever you need
to do in your case.

MR, ROTH. Thank you.

MR DI NOLFO If he didn't use them before,
then | don't see the need to use them now so --

MR. HERVAS: Since this is cross-exam nation,
we don't know what the question's going to be. So if
we're tal king about a supplenent to the presentation
of last tine, that's a different situation, and
that's not going to -- we're not going to use the
Cross-exam nati on process as an opportunity to add to
the initial presentation. That's not really fair to
t he cross-exam ner.

So if -- the cross-examner wl |
| ead the cross-exam nation, and if he gets the answer
that he's | ooking for, he doesn't need a slide.
kay? So I'mgoing to |let the cross-exam ner guide
how t he cross-exam nation goes. |[|f you're saying
that you need to suppl enment sonething with this
W tness's testinony, that's a different matter, and
then all the people who are cross-exam ning have a

right to review the docunentation or at |east see it
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before the cross-exam nation takes pl ace.

So, to clarify, if it's
suppl enental, then that's one thing, but if they're
anticipating the question and the cross-exam ner
says, fine, let ne see the slide, that's up to the
cross-examner. So if we're clear here, | don't see
this i mediate need to have a slide unless the
Cross-exam ner requests to see the information.

MR. ROTH. Well, there's not an imedi ate need
to see the slide. The questions wll be asked, and
if the witness feels that he can clarify and
illustrate to the comm ssion, then he's going to ask
for the right to do so. And if you want to deny him
t hat opportunity, then deny him

MR. HERVAS. Ckay. |I'mnot going to go that
far. What |'mgoing to suggest, then, is that the
cross-exam nation take place, and if you feel it's
appropriate that -- after the cross-exam nation that
this information is provided in sone sort of a
response, then it can be done. But they would
then -- the witness would then subject hinself to
addi ti onal cross-exam nation based on that additional
mat eri al .

MR ROTH. This isn't a court of | aw
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MR. HERVAS. | understand that, but I'mtrying
to be -- the whole point of cross-exam nation is due
process.
MR. ROTH. Right.
MR. HERVAS. So | can't have the

cross-exam ner gui ded by the predeterm ned answers.

MR. DI NOLFO Like that slide there.

MR. EDSTROM  Sorry, | apol ogi ze.

MR HERVAS. So let's start with the regul ar
Cross-exam nation process, and let's see where it
goes. But I"'mjust letting you know i n advance how
|'"'mviewng this idea of predetermned slides at this
point. Let's see what happens.

So, M. Di Nolfo, you now know who
the gentleman is who is sitting there. Are you still
willing to proceed?

MR. DI NOLFO As long as he's not offering
any testinony or guidance to M. Baldwin, | have no
pr obl em pr oceedi ng.

MR. HERVAS. Ckay. Let's go.

MR DI NOLFO. Good evening, M. Baldwin. As
you know, mnmy nane's Steve Di Nolfo. | represent the
Itasca Fire Protection District. It's ny

under st andi ng that you were produced by Haymarket as
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a wWtness to present evidence of the inpact, if any,
of the proposed facility on the Itasca Fire
Protection District and Itasca Police Departnent.
Did you understand that to be your charge?

MR. BALDW N  Yes.

MR DI NOLFO. And just by way of background,
you're a CPA;, correct?

VR. BALDW N: Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. Do you have any background as a

paranmedic, firefighter, police officer?

MR. BALDWN. | do not.

MR. DI NOLFO And your goal, obviously, when
you got up here to testify was to do it in a
transparent nmanner so that your data woul d be as
accurate as you could nmake it given the data you had
avai | abl e?

MR BALDWN: Correct.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. And in order to be
accurate and transparent, you had to anal yze data
about how Haymar ket uses anbul ance services and
police services at its downtown facility?

MR. BALDWN: Correct.

MR. DI NOLFO And the data you anal yzed was
only for 911 calls nade to 932 West WAshi ngt on;
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correct?

MR. BALDWN:. No, it also included 120 North
Sanganon.

MR DI NOLFO Ckay. Did you include 124
Nort h Sanganon?

MR. BALDWN. W did not. That's not our
of fi cial business address.

MR DI NOLFO Are 911 calls nade to the
Haymar ket facility at 124, 120, and 108 North
Sanganon?

MR. BALDWN. | don't know that.

MR DI NOLFO Well, wouldn't you want to know
that in order to give us an accurate picture of the
anmount of calls that are generated by Haymarket in
the city so that you can nake a conpari son out here
in Itasca?

MR. BALDWN:. Sure, absolutely. W're willing
to work with you.

MR, DI NOLFO Well, your opportunity to do
this was | ast week when you testified, wasn't it?

MR. BALDWN:. Qpportunity for what? To work
Wi th you?

MR, DI NOLFO To get a conplete picture of
the 911 calls placed by Haymarket in the city and
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sonehow equate that to what the inpact is going to be
out here in Itasca? That was what you were supposed
to do?

MR. BALDWN. Correct, and to concl ude what
t he inpact woul d be.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. So | understand
your testinony, your analysis did not take into
account all of the calls to the Sanganon | ocati ons;
true?

MR BALDWN:. It did not, but we don't know --
we didn't anticipate there would be many calls but
the Village did not either. Qur two official
busi ness addresses are 932 West Washi ngton and 120
Nort h Sanganon. And when a call originates from our
busi ness, they would give that address to respond to.

MR DI NOLFO. Ckay. Let's go through sone
docunents, then. | want to show you what 1'Ill mark
as ltasca Fire District Exhibit No. 1 for
i dentification purposes.

(Fire District Exhibit No. 1
identified.)

MR. DI NOLFO For the record, M. Hervas,
these are docunents that were FO Aed fromthe Gty of

Chicago for fire calls only to the 932 West
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Washi ngt on addr ess.

MR. HERVAS. Ckay. Do you have copies for the

Pl an Conm ssi on?

MR DI NOLFG Yeah. You want ne to hand them

up each tine? Hang on one second.

MR. HERVAS. Yes, please do.

MR DI NOLFO | want to show you what is
Itasca Fire Protection District Exhibit No. 2.

(Fire District Exhibit No. 2
identified.)

MR. DI NOLFO For the record, M. Hervas,
these are fire calls only to 120 North Sanganon
Street.

MR. HERVAS. So that we're clear, No. 1 was
932 West Washington and Exhibit 2 was 120 North
Sanganon; correct?

MR. DI NOLFO That's correct.

MR. HERVAS: Thank you.

MR. DI NOLFO Next | want to show you what's
been marked as Exhibit No. -- Itasca Fire Protection
District Exhibit No. 3.

(Fire District Exhibit No. 3
i dentified.)
MR. DI NOLFO For the record, M. Hervas,
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these are fire calls to the 124 North Sanganon Street
address. Showi ng you what 1'll mark as Exhibit No. 4
for identification purposes.
(Fire District Exhibit No. 4
identified.)

MR DI NOLFO These are the fire calls for
108 North Sanganon. And, just so we're clear, when |
say "fire calls,” it's fire and EMS

Now, if | heard you correctly, you
said you did not consider the 124 address and the 108
address, because you didn't think there would be very
many calls there; is that correct?

MR. BALDWN:. No. W didn't consider them
because they were not part of our official addresses,
and we followed the Village's lead and that's al so
the date they FO Aed.

MR. DI NOLFO Well, you understand that you
have the burden here; correct? The Village doesn't
have the burden. You have the burden.

MR. ROTH. (bjection, he's arguing with the
wtness. It's a question of |aw

MR. HERVAS: That's -- that will be sustained
in the formof the question -- to the formof the

guesti on.
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MR. DI NOLFO You understand that you are the
one presenting the testinony as to the inpact of your
project on the EMS systemhere in Itasca, not the
Village?

MR. BALDWN: | do understand that.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. So if you |ook at
Exhibit No. 3 for identification purposes, you agree
that while it may not be an official business
address, 124 North Sanganon, as you heard Dr. Lustig
testify to, is one of the buildings used by Haymarket
to help provide services to it's 12,000 peopl e
annual | y?

MR. BALDWN: That's correct.

MR DI NOLFO. Al right. And you would agree
by | ooking at this that if you go to the |ast page,

It indicates that in a five-year period, Novenber 4th
of 2015 to Novenber 4th of 2019, there were 649 calls
to that | ocation?

MR. BALDWN:. | do see the total.

MR. ROTH. (bjection. bjection. The wtness
didn't testify to a five-year period.

MR. HERVAS:. Okay. Well --

MR. ROTH. It's beyond the scope of his

testinmony. If he's going to go back four or five
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years beyond what the witness testified to, it's
beyond t he scope.

MR. DI NOLFO May | respond?

MR ROTH: And it's irrelevant.

MR D NOLFO M. Baldwin testified that he
was endeavoring to go back a five-year period Iike
the Village requested to get that information, and he
spent a great deal of tine tal king about things he
could or couldn't get fromthe fire district. So |
went back to the five-year period, just like he said
he was endeavoring to do when he |ast testified here.

MR. HERVAS: The fire district's offer of this
information for five years nmay not be directly
contradictory in any way with respect to what the
Wi tness testified to. However, it is just additional
information and it won't be barred. It can be
handl ed by the witness in terns of what he did | ook
at and what he didn't look at, and so I'mgoing to
allow the exhibit to proceed and the question to
st and.

MR DI NOLFO. Do you renenber the question?

MR. BALDWN. Pl ease repeat it.

MR. DI NOLFO  Shocking. Al right. The

docunent you have in front of you at the top
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indicates that it's a date range between
Novenber 4th, 2015, to Novenber 4th of 2019. Do you
see that on the first page?

MR. BALDWN. | see that.

MR DI NOLFO. Al right. And if we go
through, at |east at the very end of the page, the
| ast page of this docunent indicates 649 calls;
correct?

MR. BALDWN:. It does.

MR DI NOLFO. Al right. And you would agree
with ne that the docunent you're |ooking at doesn't
have those codes that you were tal king about | ast
week? None of those codes are on here?

MR. BALDWN:. Wsat are you referring to?

MR, DI NOLFO Well, you spent a |lot of tine
testifying that you had to parse through codes and
that there were nultiple codes for calls that sonehow
di m ni shed the actual nunber of calls to your
facility downtown. Do you renenber that testinony?

MR. BALDWN:. | do, yes. 911 data can be
duplicated, particularly when anbul ance is conbi ned
wi th police.

MR DI NOLFO Right. And you said there was

codes you were | ooking at to get to that deci sion,
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that there was duplicates; correct? Things were
upgraded and | think there was even di scussion from
Comm ssi oners about how does sonet hing get upgraded;
it could be going froma heart attack to sonething
different. Do you renenber all that testinony?

MR BALDWN:. Oh, yes, yes, yes.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. You would agree with ne
that this thing you're | ooking at does not have any
of those codes you had to parse through? You don't
see t henf?

MR. BALDWN. | nean, | can't, but we'd have
to take the tine to anal yze this.

MR DI NOLFO  Sinple question. Do you see
the codes that you had to parse through that you
testified to | ast week on this docunent, Exhi bit
No. 37

MR. BALDW N:. What codes are you referring to?

MR. DI NOLFO The ones you testified to, sir.
| don't know what you were tal king about, so that's
what |' m aski ng you about.

MR. ROTH. (bjection. Counsel just presented
the witness with volunes of data that he has not
shared with us previous, and now he's asking him

vague questions without reference to specific lines
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and specific information.

MR. HERVAS. Al right. So with respect to
this docunent, | understand that the w tness hasn't
seen the docunent, but the question is rather sinple
and direct as to whether or not it contains any of
the codes that were testified to last tine. So the
Wi t ness shoul d have an opportunity to review the
docunent -- to provide the answer to the question.

Soif he -- if he's able to | ook at the docunent and

see if it has any of the codes, he's able to respond.

MR. ROTH: But this is a docunment that was
created by either counsel or the Fire Protection
District.

MR. DI NOLFO Not at all.

MR. HERVAS. | think that he stated that it
was a docunent generated through a FOA --

MR DI NOLFO  Correct.

MR. HERVAS. -- to the city.

MR. DI NOLFO That's correct.

MR. HERVAS. So if the witness would take a
nmonment to | ook at the docunent and then respond to
t he question, please.

MR. BALDWN. Well, | can at |least respond to

typically when -- at the very last colum it says
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"unit."” Wen a unit is not dispatched, that -- then
it's not dispatched. Typically that code is related
to sonmething el se apart of one event.

MR DI NOLFO. | heard your answer, but ny
guestion was a little different.

MR. BALDWN: Okay.

MR. DI NOLFO The codes that you tal ked about
| ast week, are those codes on Exhibit No. 3? Yes or
no?

MR. BALDWN. On, | don't know. | would have
to spend sone tinme | ooking at this report.

MR. DI NOLFO So take a nonent and | ook at
the first page of Exhibit 3, and let ne know if you
see any of those codes that indicate nmultiple codes
for the sane tine frane.

MR. BALDW N: Yes, when there's blanks in
di sposition or unit.

MR DI NOLFO Well, is that a nmultiple call
or that no unit was sent, if you know?

MR BALDWN. W'd have to analyze it. W'd
have to go line by line to recreate events.

MR DI NOLFO So let nme be fair to you, then.
Let's take out the blank |ines where there's no unit

sent, and you can take ny word for it, it's 63 tines.
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Ckay? Because | counted them tw ce.

MR. ROTH. Can we see where that is?

MR DI NOLFO. Sure. So, for instance, if you
go down on the first page, the third |ine down, it
says "unit," there's no units assigned to it? On the
ri ght-hand colum where it says "unit"? Good?

MR. HERVAS. Yes. |f the w tness understands
the question, that's the key here.

MR. DI NOLFO But all the other ones seemto
i ndicate that units were sent to that |ocation,
right? One line, one tine, one |ocation, one event
type, one disposition, and then one address.

MR. BALDWN: Ckay.

MR DI NOLFO. So ny question is very sinply,
on the first page you don't see any of those codes
that you spent a bunch of tine tal ki ng about | ast
week on that page; correct?

MR. BALDWN. | still see the blank codes. W
woul d have to count those, and | -- honestly | can't
take your word for it, there's 63.

MR. DI NOLFO  Ckay.

MR. BALDWN. | want to count them

MR DI NOLFO  Ckay.

MR, BALDWN:. But we would have to anal yze
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t hem

MR, DI NOLFO Let's go through all these,

then, just so | can get it on the record at |east.
If | were to show you --

MR ROTH. M. Chairman, this is a zoning
hearing. | nean, to spend our tinme now going through
the 63 codes that he's throwing at the w tness now,

Wi t hout any notice what soever?

MR. DI NOLFO | never said | was going
t hrough 63 codes.

MR. ROTH. You just did.

MR DI NOLFO | really didn't.

MR. ROTH. You said let's go through them

MR DI NOLFO. | said let's go through the
remai ni ng docunents, is what | said.

So may | proceed, M. Hervas?

MR. HERVAS. Yes, you nmy proceed.

MR DI NOLFO So if | were to show you and
ask you to look at Exhibit No. 1 for identification
pur poses, your answer would be you'd have to anal yze
this to see if those codes were in there; correct?

MR. BALDWN: Correct.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. And if | were to
show you Exhi bit No. 2, that woul d be the sane
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answer? You woul d have to go through each docunent ?

MR. BALDWN. Honestly, right, with alittle
time, sure.

MR. DI NOLFO And the sane --

MR. BALDWN:. The truth is we want to work
with you. And, honestly, we know where this ends up,
of the use of a private anbul ance service at
90 percent, with the capacity the Itasca Fire
Protection District, the conclusion would still stand
but --

MR. DI NOLFO Could he just answer ny
gquestions and not -- my question was do you need tine
to look at it? It's really a yes or no question.

MR BALDWN. O course | do. You just gave
it to ne.

MR DI NOLFG Al right. On Exhibit No. 4,
you woul d not be able to tell ne if you see those
codes on it? You would need nore tinme to look at it,
yes?

MR BALDWN:. | would need tine to analyze
t hese new reports you're giving ne. And would you
have themin Excel by any chance? It's alittle
easi er to nmanage.

MR DI NOLFO. I'lIl work on that for you.

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com

10: 14:

10: 14:

10: 14:

10: 15:



© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET

Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019 Page 116
MR. BALDWN. Ckay.
MR DI NOLFO O you could just FOA it.
They m ght send it to you that way, too.
MR. BALDW N  Sure.
MR DI NOLFO. Ckay. Regardless of your

opportunity to exam ne, can we take as true that at
| east it appears fromthose docunents that anbul ances
and fire apparatus were sent to all the Sanganon
addr esses?

MR, BALDWN:. Sure, units being dispatched,
that's usual |y what happens.

MR DI NOLFO Right. And not only did they
get dispatched to 932 West Washi ngton, they get
di spatched to 108 North Sanganon, 120 North Sanganon,
and 124 North Sanganon?

MR. BALDWN: Ckay.

MR DI NOLFO Fair?

MR. BALDWN:. Fair.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. And when you went
t hrough the process of producing that chart, your
chart only focused on 932 and 120 North -- well, 932
West Washi ngton and 920 North -- 120 North Sanganon;
correct?

MR. BALDW N: Correct.
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MR, DI NOLFO Ckay. So you made the
consci ous decision not to analyze data for the other
two buil dings that Haymarket uses to provide services
toits 12,000 patients?

MR. BALDWN:. W did not make a consci ous
decision. W wanted to be in line with how the
Village prepared their report. They used our two
mai n busi ness addresses, and we did the sane, to be
right inline wth the sane analysis. W wanted to
work with the sane dataset as the Village expert
report.

MR. DI NOLFO Being an accountant and wanti ng
to be able to share with us quantitatively the
potential nunber of calls that woul d be generated
fromthat facility, would it not be inportant to
anal yze all the 911 data for every building that you
provide services in to give a nore accurate picture?

MR. BALDWN. Sure. W want to give as
accurate a picture as possible.

MR, DI NOLFO Al right. And even though it
woul d be probably w se, that wasn't done in this case
because you're claimng you wanted to be in line with
the Village?

MR. BALDWN. We wanted to work fromthe sane
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dat aset so we coul d conpare our anal ysis.

MR DI NOLFO Ckay. So if |I were to tell you

that there was a total of 1466 calls to all the
Sanganon addresses in that five-year period, you
woul dn't know one way or another; fair?

MR. BALDWN:. Fair. And we would be | ooking
to try and do it for a one-year period, because
that's what we wanted to conpare, along with the
Vil |l age.

MR, DI NOLFO Ckay. And in addition to | ast
week, | think you started your chart by saying that
you wanted to | ook at the 863 nunber that was tal ked
about, | think, on websites and in conversations; is
that fair?

MR. BALDWN:. Fair.

MR DI NOLFO. And it was your analysis, you
deci ded that the 863 nunber was not accurate;
correct?

MR. BALDW N. For those two addresses, it
m scharacterized the nunber of actual calls.

MR, DI NOLFO | want to show you what [|'II
mark as lItasca Fire District Exhibit No. 5.

(Fire District Exhibit No. 5
identified.)
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MR DI NOLFO | know there's too many, |
apol ogi ze.

But when you anal yzed the calls on
the 120 Sanganon address, was that the chart that you
| ooked at to cone to your determ nation as to the
nunmber of calls? And, for the record, this is a
docunent that was FO Aed fromthe Gty of Chicago.

MR. BALDWN. | can't tell for sure. | would
have to conpare it to the docunents we have.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. Does it -- and
think 1"mgoing to know your answer. Does it have
t hose codes you were tal king about |ast week on it?

MR BALDWN:. It certainly has codes on it,
yes.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. And what do you -- when
you use the word "codes," what are you referring to,
just so I'mon -- maybe | can actually figure this
out ?

MR. BALDWN:. It could be the event type, the
di sposition, the unit dispatched. | nean, these are
i nes of code.

MR DI NOLFO Ckay. |I'mgoing to show you
what 1'Il mark as Itasca Fire Protection District

Exhi bit No. 6.
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(Fire District Exhibit No. 6
identified.)

MR DI NOLFO This is the nunber of fire
call s at Sanganon back fromJuly 8th of '18 to July
9th of '19. Does this ook famliar as to the
docunent you m ght have revi ewed when comng to your
deci sion that the 863 nunber was not correct?

MR. BALDWN. | can't tell for sure. You keep
giving ne these docunents. | need to conpare it to
what we've worked with.

MR DI NOLFO Sure. In all fairness, your
counsel was saying |I'mspringing things on us, but
you never actually showed anybody here what you
| ooked at to cone up with that nunber; correct? Wat
data you actually | ooked at? It wasn't in any slide
that you showed the ot her day?

MR. BALDWN. It was the sanme dataset the
Village used in their expert report, yeah, so
we're -- |I'mnot springing anything. The Village,
we're using the sane dataset.

MR, DI NOLFO I'Il show you Exhibit No. 7 for
i dentification purposes.

(Fire District Exhibit No. 7
identified.)
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MR DI NOLFO |I've got to ask the question,
even though I know what your answer's going to be.
Do you know if this is one of the docunents you
| ooked at in comng to your nunber?
MR BALDWN:. | can't say that. |'mjust
| ooking at it right now | need to conpare it to the

data we have.
MR. DI NOLFO  Under st ood.
MR. HERVAS. M. D Nolfo, could you pl ease
make sure you identify the docunent for the record?
MR. DI NOLFO | apol ogi ze. Thank you,
M. Hervas. So Exhibit No. 7 is the fire report
for -- dated July 1 of 2018 to July 1 of 2019 that
was FO Aed fromthe City of Chicago. Exhibit 6 is
the FO A docunent for fire fromJuly 8th of 2018 to
July 9th of 2019, and, if | didn't do Exhibit 5, it
Is the police fromJuly 6th to July 9th, the sane
time frame, '18 to '109.
From your analysis, were you able to

determ ne where that 863 nunber came from of calls?

MR. BALDWN: Yes, that's the dataset the
Village's expert report used.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. And being an

accountant, maybe you can do this, maybe you can't.
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If we can go to the | ast page of Exhibit 7, where it
says "188" and we go to the | ast page of Exhibit 6
whi ch says "172" and if we go to the | ast page of --

MR. BALDWN. Sir, | can't total these nunbers
as you're saying them

MR DI NOLFO. Let nme finish ny question and
you can say that to ne. Just let nme finish ny
guestion. Ckay?

| f you go to Exhibit 5 and | ook at

the | ast page where it says "269," would you be able
to add that up and show that it equals 863? |If you
can't, you can't.

MR BALDWN:. Not on the fly like this,

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. Now --

MR. DALY: Excuse ne, | have a question for
counsel. On Exhibit 7 --

MR. HERVAS:. Can you speak into the
m cr ophone.

MR, DALY: Well, I'"'msick. |"'msorry.

On Exhibit 7, service location is

not specific to a physical address.

MR DI NOLFG It is. Wen we FOAed it, it
was 932, and that's how they produced it back to us

wth the x"s init. | can't answer why. | asked for
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a clarification, and I couldn't get it fromthe city.
But the FOA was restricted solely to 932.

MR. DALY: kay, thank you.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. Well, we won't
spend any nore tinme on the data because you haven't
had a chance to | ook at it.

MR. BALDW N. That exact report | believe we
did get back a report that said 932 on it so --

MR DI NOLFO. |I'msorry?

MR BALDWN:. | believe we got back a report
fromour FO A that said 932.

MR DI NOLFO It's the Cty of Chicago. |
can't answer all the questions, you know.

Let's tal k about your testinony |ast
week. | think, if | heard you correctly, you nade
sone conmment when you were prefacing your testinony
t hat sonehow you were m ssing data or there was
I nconpl ete data. And | think you said that the
Village hadn't given you data and the Fire Protection
District hadn't given you data. Do you renenber that
testi nony?

MR BALDWN: | do.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. And you're aware that

Haymar ket, or Haymarket through their counsel, sent
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six FOAs to the Itasca Fire Protection District?

MR. BALDW N:. That sounds about right.

MR DI NOLFO |I'magoing to show you what's
been marked as Exhibit No. 9 for identification
pur poses.

(Fire District Exhibit No. 9
i dentified.)

MR. DI NOLFO For the record, M. Hervas,
thisis a-- the FOA that was received from Janes
Bal dwi n of Haymarket sent to the Itasca Fire

Protection District.
Do you recogni ze that docunent?

MR BALDWN:. | do.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. And fromthat, you
listed all the anbul ance di spatches between 7/1/2018
and 6/30/2019; correct?

MR BALDWN: Correct.

MR, DI NOLFO Wth the designation codes, and
you list the codes. They sent you this response;
correct?

MR BALDWN: Correct.

MR. DI NOLFO Anything mssing on that from
the Fire Protection District in response to that?

VR. BALDW N: | don't believe so.
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MR DI NOLFO Al right. ['mgoing to show
you what has been marked as Exhibit No. 10 for
identification purposes.
(Fire District Exhibit No. 10
identified.)

MR DI NOLFO This is a FOA that was sent to
the Itasca Fire Protection District. It has your
name on it; correct?

MR BALDWN: Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. Do you recognize this?

MR. BALDWN. | do.

MR DI NOLFO And in that, you ask for
audited financials; correct?

MR BALDWN:. Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. Al right. And they sent you a
docunent; correct?

MR BALDWN: Correct.

MR. DI NOLFO Anything mssing in response to
t hat ?

MR. BALDW N:  No.

MR. DI NOLFO No? Kkay.

MR. HERVAS. M. D Nolfo, we don't have a
No. 8. D d you intend not to have an 8? W went

from7 to 9.
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MR DI NOLFO | didn't want to waste the
time. 8 is another docunent he's probably not going
to be able to identify.

MR. HERVAS. kay, that's fine. | just --
want to make sure there's no confusion.

MR, DI NOLFO I'Il double-check. 1"l put it
in the record in a mnute, M. Hervas. Thank you.

"1l show you what's been nmarked as
Exhibit No. 11 for identification purposes.
(Fire District Exhibit No. 11
i dentified.)

MR, DI NOLFO This is another FO A sent by
you to the Itasca Fire Protection District?

MR. BALDW N:  Yes.

MR. DI NOLFO Has your nane on it?

MR. BALDW N  Yes.

MR. DI NOLFO You ask for the current annual
oper ati ng budget; correct?

MR. BALDWN: Correct.

MR. DI NOLFO  Anything m ssing in that
response?

MR. BALDWN. It doesn't appear so.

MR DI NOLFO [|I'mgoing to show you what's
been marked as Exhibit No. 12.

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com

10: 27:

10: 27:

10: 27:

10: 27:



© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET

Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019 Page 127
(Fire District Exhibit No. 12
identified.)
MR DI NOLFO  Anot her FO A request by you,;
correct? Your nane's on it?
MR BALDWN. It is.

MR. DI NOLFO And you asked for a |list of
calls of service to the Holiday Inn Itasca, 860 \West
II'linois 19, Itasca; correct?

MR BALDWN: Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. And they provided you that
docunent ati on; correct?

MR. BALDWN. They did.

MR. DI NOLFO Nothing m ssing fromthat
ei ther; correct?

MR. BALDWN. Well, when we -- when we
scheduled this out, it did seema little odd. It
seened |ike data was mssing in this dataset.

MR. DI NOLFO And what did you base that on?

VMR. BALDWN. Well, when we |ooked at it for
the Holiday Inn over an annual basis, they averaged
probably around two calls a nonth. But then from
Cct ober through nost of January of -- in our analysis
in -- over 2018, there were -- there was a gap, there

were no calls, and then it picked up again with two
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cal | s averagi ng per nonth.

MR. DI NOLFO Wat docunents did you | ook at
to show that -- the two calls average per nonth?

MR. BALDW N:. Thi s one.

MR DI NOLFO This one? WlIl, the total
nunmber of calls listed on this is what, if you know?

MR. BALDWN. | don't know off the top of ny
head.

MR DI NOLFO. If | were to tell you that it's
53 over a 68-nonth period, does that sound about
right?

MR. BALDWN. | don't know, because we only
| ooked at the one-year period.

MR. DI NOLFO Well, you asked for it for the
whol e tine period, didn't you?

MR. BALDW N.  Sure.

MR DI NOLFO. Al right. So they provided
you data goi ng back for 68 nonths, at your request,
that showed 53 calls over that tine period, which,
you woul d agree with ne doing the math, is | ess than
one a nont h?

MR BALDWN:  Okay.

MR. DI NOLFQ Correct?

MR. BALDWN:. Correct. But it was trending
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up. | nean, there could be nore calls nore recently.
W want to give an accurate picture of the nost
recent annual picture to provide a baseline.

MR DI NOLFO Well, is that providing an
accurate picture or is that selecting data to help
mani pul at e nunbers?

MR. BALDW N:. No, we picked our nost recent
annual fiscal year and we did the sanme with this
dat a.

MR DI NOLFO. You would agree that if we took
the full data that you requested and analyzed it, it
woul d be less than two a nonth, as you say?

MR. BALDWN:. W agreed with the Village on
this, where they found that only anal yzi ng one year
woul d suffice for this project.

MR DI NOLFO. Not ny question. M question
was a little different. You would agree with ne that
I f you analyzed all the data you requested, it would
not conme out to two calls a nonth?

MR. BALDWN. | can't say that. | haven't
anal yzed thi s data.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. Even though you asked
for it; correct?

MR. BALDWN: Asked for it in reference. |t
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coul d be possi ble down the road.
MR DI NOLFO |[|'mgoing to show you what |
mar ked as Exhibit No. 13 for identification purposes.
(Fire District Exhibit No. 13
identified.)
MR DI NOLFO. Was this in any way related to
anybody you know at Haymarket? Janet Kruse or Kruse,
however you want to say it?

MR, BALDW N:  No.

MR DI NOLFO. Ckay. D d you at any tine FO A

the mutual aid agreenent fromthe Itasca Fire

Protection District from 1989?

MR. BALDWN. Qoviously ny nane is not on this

FA A
MR DI NOLFO Did you ever -- | nean, just

because your nane isn't on it doesn't nean you didn't

get the information attached; fair? You could have
gotten it?

MR. BALDWN. Onh, yeah, it was sent to ne.
DI NOLFO. Okay. Wo sent it to you?
BALDWN: | think Chief Burke sent it.

2 33

DI NOLFO. Okay. So you asked for that
docunent and he sent it to you?

VR. BALDW N: | did not ask for this docunent
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and he sent it to ne.

MR DI NOLFO So -- and maybe | asked a bad
guestion. | do that sonetinmes. It sounds good up
here, but by the tine it gets out, it doesn't make
any sense.

You sent an e-mail to Chief Burke
sayi ng, hey, could you send ne the nutual aid
agreenent, and he said, here you go. |Is that how it
happened? You're not saying that Chief Burke deci ded
one day just to send you the nutual aid agreenent?

MR. BALDWN. Actually, I think he did in this

case.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. Al right.

MR BALDWN:. | FO Aed different things and
sonehow this was attached to his e-mail, which was
fine.

MR DI NOLFO. Al right. [|'mshow ng you

what |'ve marked as Exhibit No. 14 for identification
pur poses.
(Fire District Exhibit No. 14
identified.)
MR DI NOLFO This is a FOA you sent;
correct?

MR BALDWN: Yes, this is one | sent.
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MR DI NOLFO Al right. And you got a
response; correct?
MR. BALDW N:  Yes.
MR DI NOLFO And from what you can see,
there's nothing mssing on that; correct?

MR. BALDWN:. It appears like this is it.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. So at |least from
the FO As where your naned appeared and you asked for
data, you got everything you asked for?

MR. BALDW N:  Yes.

MR, DI NOLFO Ckay. So when you testified
that the Itasca Fire Protection District didn't
provide you with data that you requested, that woul d
be incorrect?

MR. BALDWN:. That was referring to what
seened statistically unlikely of mssing calls for
t he Holiday I nn.

MR DI NOLFO So you're --

MR. BALDWN. And we -- also referring back to
t hi s Addi son Consolidated D spatch annual report for
2018 that did reference there was m ssing data from
the Itasca Fire Protection District,

MR DI NOLFO Did you --

MR. BALDWN:. It could be a coincidence, but
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It just seenmed unlikely that

m ssing fromthat dataset.

-- why calls were

That was the basis for

why | made that statenent.

MR DI NOLFO. So you threw out a few things

there. Nunber one, you said that from| ooking at the

data that the Itasca Fire Protection District sent

you, you believe, one, that they didn't give you all

the data, statistically speaking?

MR. BALDWN:. Right, it seened unlikely.

MR DI NOLFO  Cbviously you acknow edged at

the start of this that you have no experience in the

fire service; correct?

MR BALDWN: Correct.

MR. DI NOLFO. And whet her you know it or not,
could there be Iulls where there's calls -- nore

activity at a location for a period of tine and it
stops for a period of tinme? Does that make | ogical
sense?

MR, BALDW N:

Sur e. It could have been a

coi nci dence, but it seened very unlikely.
MR. DI NOLFO. And then you referenced the
ACDC, which is Addison Consolidated Di spatch Center;
correct?

MR. BALDW N: Correct.
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MR. DI NOLFO You understand that's separate

fromthe Itasca Fire Protection District?
MR BALDWN: | do.
MR DI NOLFG And when did the Itasca Fire

Protection District join Addison Consolidated

Di spat ch?
MR, BALDWN. I'mnot entirely sure. Was it
in 2018?
MR DI NOLFO |'mjust asking what you know.
MR. BALDWN:. | don't know.

MR, DI NOLFO Ckay. Did you bother asking
for information fromthe center where they were
before they joi ned Addi son Consol i dated D spatch
Center so there wasn't any data m ssing?

MR. BALDWN. W did FOA the Itasca Fire
Protection District, and we attenpted to FO A the
Addi son Consol i dated, but they did not respond.

MR DI NOLFO Ckay. D d you FO A DU CcOmwr?

MR. BALDWN. We did not.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. W can, | think, clear
this up pretty quick, | think, but maybe |I'm
overestimating it.

The comment you nade where you

testified that Haymarket offered to buy the Itasca
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Fire Protection District an anbul ance and the Itasca
Fire Protection District turned it down, you heard
fromDr. Lustig isn't quite accurate; fair?

MR. BALDWN. Fair. That cane fromthe team
and | guess he referred to he was talking to the
mayor .

MR DI NOLFO Right. And I think you now
understand that the mayor is in no way affiliated
wth the fire district? They're separate units of
gover nnent ?

MR. BALDWN:. W do understand that now. |
believe at the tine when they net with him it was
uncl ear that they were conpletely different entities,
and just coming in with open arns trying to be a good
part ner.

MR DI NOLFO. | appreciate the open arns. |
do. But ny questionis a little bit nore. You
personal |y have never had a neeting with Chief Burke;
fair?

MR. BALDWN:. Fair.

MR, DI NOLFO Al right. And the one neeting
they had, you weren't even a part of ? You weren't
doi ng any presentations, nothing; correct?

MR. BALDW N: Correct.
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MR DI NOLFO Al right. |If we take as true
that for sone reason you offered an anmbul ance to the
Village and not the fire district, were you doi ng
t hat because you knew that the inpact of the proposed
facility would necessitate the need for a second
anbul ance?

MR. BALDW N. No, obviously an anal ysis was
not done at that tine. It was just a nice gesture to
try and be a good partner.

MR. DI NOLFO Just so | understand, so
Haymar ket, not having any anal ysis, having no
I nformation, just decided to go and offer to buy a
$350, 000 ambul ance, not knowi ng whet her it was needed
or not? That's what you're telling ne?

MR. ROTH. (bjection. Were is the evidence
on the 350, 0007

MR DI NOLFG |'lIl change the question.

MR. ROTH. Counsel's maki ng suggesti ons.

MR DI NOLFO I'Il wi thdraw the questi on.

Fair enough. |[|f you nade the offer --

MR, ROTH. He's interrupting --

MR. HERVAS. Hold on. | just want to make
sure that the record's clear. M. Roth, if he

wi t hdraws the question, can we nove on, or do you
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have - -

MR. ROTH. Yeah, that's fine.

MR DI NOLFO. So Haynmarket, not know ng any
information, decided to offer to buy an anbul ance for
the Itasca Fire Protection District with no basis to
support its need, is what |'m understanding you're
sayi ng; correct?

MR, BALDWN:. | nean, |1'd be -- trying to
pi cture what Dan was thinking at the tinme, but |
I magi ne he wanted to be a good partner and he was
responding to the concern he was hearing that was
I mredi ate; that there would be all these anbul ance
calls.

MR DI NOLFO. So in response to the concern,
the answer is, yes, wthout any data they decided to
offer to buy an anbul ance to the Village; correct?

MR. BALDWN:. As a gesture to be a good
part ner.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. Wuld logic also
possibly dictate that the offer was nade because the
i npact will necessitate a second anbul ance needed to
handl e the calls?

MR. BALDWN:. | do understand the Itasca Fire

Protection District has one active anbul ance and one
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reserve anbul ance?

MR. DI NOLFO True, a backup in case the main
one breaks; right? |Is that your understandi ng?

MR. BALDW N  Yes, | suppose.

MR DI NOLFO. Well, wouldn't it be inportant
to know what the resources are of the entity that's
going to provide services there in order to help
deci de the inpact or no?

MR BALDWN:. | don't -- why would it be --
that's a bad thing to try and nake a nice gesture?
| s that what you're trying to say?

MR. DI NOLFO That wasn't ny question. You
said they had a reserve anbul ance -- | had asked you
if that was a reserve anbul ance, and you said, |
guess. \What |I'masking you is would it be inportant
to you in doing your analysis to determ ne the
I npact, the potential inpact, Haymarket woul d have on
the Fire Protection District to know how it actually
oper at ed?

MR. ROTH. (njection. That question's been
asked and answered several tines. How nmany tines is
he going to ask the question?

MR DI NOLFO | don't think I've asked it

bef ore, because he said "l guess."
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MR. ROTH: It has. Then that's the answer.
He answered it then. It's been asked and nowit's
been answer ed.
MR HERVAS. | -- let's get an answer to the
guestion, and then we'll nove on fromthere.

MR, ROTH:. Agai n.

MR. HERVAS. Are you able to answer the
guestion?

MR. BALDWN:. | can't truly speak to the
offer, but also, in the course of doing our research,
we do understand that anbul ances can be an asset to
any Fire Protection District. The reality is, an
anbul ance generates profit. That's the whol e reason
private anbul ances exist. If anything, we are
offering to buy sonething that the Itasca Fire
Protection District could generate nore revenue from

MR DI NOLFO Can | get an answer to ny
question, though, M. Hervas? Wuld it help to know
how t he departnent operates in order to understand
the inpact Haymarket would have on the Fire
Protection District? That was ny questi on.

MR. HERVAS. Al right. That question wll
stand. Can you pl ease answer the question.

VR. BALDW N: | do not know the ins and outs
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exactly of how Fire Protection Districts operate.

MR. DI NOLFO Fromyour information you had
avail able to you, would -- did Haymarket nake any
offer to pay for the six additional paranedics it
woul d take to operate this anbul ance they were
wlling to buy seven days a week, 365 days a year?

MR, ROTH. (bjection; suggests facts that
aren't in evidence. Counsel's testifying again. |If
he has sone basis of evidence to substantiate these
questions, then let himbring it forth rather than
suggest facts when they're not in evidence.

MR, DI NOLFO \Were they going to buy an
anbul ance just to park it there? Sonebody has to
fill it up, so, | nmean, | think that's a fair
questi on.

MR ROTH. Well, that's the point. |[|f he has
a wtness to testify to that, then bring them
f orwar d

MR DI NOLFO M only question is did they
make an offer. That's it.

MR. HERVAS. Hold on. The objection to the
formof the question is sustained.

MR. ROTH. Thank you.

MR. HERVAS. Al right? So you can re-ask it
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wi t hout the assunmed facts. You have to give him--
you have to give a foundation to the question.

MR DI NOLFO.  Sure. You obviously -- if you
were willing to buy an anmbul ance, you would
understand it would take paranedics to fill the seats
to be able drive it and respond to calls?

MR. BALDWN:. | do understand that.

MR. DI NOLFO And you understand -- | think
you asked for the collective bargaining -- did you
ask for the collective bargai ning agreenent fromthe
Itasca Fire Protection District?

MR BALDWN. W did not.

MR DI NOLFO. Ckay. Do you know how many
peopl e they have on duty on any given day?

MR BALDWN:. | do not. Although we do know
there's around 30 staff at the Itasca Fire Protection
District, and half of themare dedicated to the
anbul ance servi ce.

MR. DI NOLFO  Anbul ance and fire; correct?

MR, BALDW N:.  Anbul ance.

MR DI NOLFO. So it's your understanding that
half of the staff is dedicated just to the anbul ance
portion of the services provided by the Itasca Fire

Protection District?

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com

10: 40:

10: 41:

10: 41:

10: 41:



© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET

Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019 Page 142

MR. BALDWN: Yes, that's fromthe annual
report.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. And you understand
that they work shifts?

MR BALDWN:. | do.

MR. DI NOLFO And you understand that the way
the shifts are, they have enough to keep both pieces
of apparatus staffed 24 hours a day, seven days a
week?

MR. ROTH. (nbj ection.

MR. DI NOLFO Is that your understandi ng?

MR. ROTH. Sane objection, counsel. Counsel
is testifying. These facts are not in evidence.
He's testifying.

MR. HERVAS: He's laying a proper foundation.

MR. ROTH: No, he's not.

MR. HERVAS: He's able to ask whether the
W t ness has an understanding of certain facts that
exist within the Fire Protection District. Unless
you' re suggesting that he's nmaking this up or
sonething, | think that he's |aying an appropriate
f oundati on.

MR. ROTH. |'m suggesting that his facts are

his own testinony.
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MR. HERVAS. Ckay. |If the witness is able to
under stand and answer the question, the witness wl|
be directed to answer the question, unless his
counsel directs himnot to. Let's nove on.

MR DI NOLFO. Do you have an answer?

MR. BALDW N:. Pl ease repeat the question.

MR DI NOLFO Sure. Do you know how many
peopl e each day work to keep the engine and the
anbul ance operating 24 hours a day, seven days a
week?

MR. BALDWN. | do not.

MR DI NOLFO Al right.

MR. BALDWN:. But half of 30 staff could
definitely sustain operation of that one anbul ance.

MR. DI NOLFO The one that's in service
already? O the one you offered to buy?

MR. BALDWN:. Correct, the one that's in
servi ce.

MR DI NOLFO  Sure.

MR. BALDWN:. And then also respond to 2.3
di spat ches per day.

MR, DI NOLFO Sure, | appreciate that. But
in order -- once we got another anbul ance, you would

agree we woul d need sonebody to staff that anbul ance;
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right?

MR. BALDW N. Actually, under the analysis we
did, Itasca does not need anot her anbul ance.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. So when you nade --

MR BALDWN:. It has plenty of capacity right
now to handle all of its calls and, including on our
report, it could handle our calls.

MR. DI NOLFO | understand your testinony,
but nmy question was a little different. The
anbul ance that you offered to buy, had it been
accepted, you would understand they woul d have to get
people to staff that anbulance so it could be
operational out on the street? That's all | want to
know.

MR. BALDWN. It could be another reserve
anmbul ance.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. Are we good on tine?

MR, HERVAS. Yes.

MR. DI NOLFO Sorry. You testified about the
contract that Haymarket entered into with Elite
Anbul ance; correct? You renenber that testinony?

MR. BALDWN. | do.

MR DI NOLFO And | think you said to us that

it was going to cover 90 percent of the calls at your
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proposed facility; correct?

MR. BALDWN. That's what they told us.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. And you entered into a
contract wth them because -- well, the reason you
entered into that contract is to alleviate the burden
on the Itasca Fire Protection District that would be
generated by the proposed facility; true?

MR. BALDWN. As an option, yes.

MR. DI NOLFO. And have you ever had a private
anbul ance contract with any of the other facilities
you oper ate?

MR BALDWN:  No.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. Wat is the length
of the contract?

MR. BALDWN:. | believe there's no term nation
dat e.

MR. DI NOLFO  Ckay. But you understand, and
| think you heard Dr. Lustig testify, that it could
be canceled by you or Elite at any tine as long as it
foll owed the procedure in the contract?

MR BALDWN: Correct.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. And you agree
there's no obligation for Haynmarket to continue into

the contract; correct? No |egal obligation?
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MR. BALDWN. No |egal obligation, sure,
that's right.

MR. DI NOLFO. And you understand that the
Village and the Itasca Fire Protection District don't
have the power to force you to enter into a contract
with a private anbul ance service?

MR. BALDWN:. | understand that.

MR. DI NOLFO And you al so woul d acknow edge
that if you didn't renew the contract or you cancel ed
the contract or the contract ceased to be in
exi stence, that the calls for services at your
proposed facility would fall onto the Itasca Fire
Protection District?

MR. BALDWN. W wouldn't want to do that. W
woul d have no reason to.

MR DI NOLFO. M question was very sinple.
| f you didn't renew the contract, you canceled the
contract, or the contract ceased being in existence
for any reason with Elite, to handle the calls at
that facility would fall on the Itasca Fire
Protection District; correct?

MR. BALDWN. |If we did not enter into another
contract wwth a different anbul ance servi ce.

VR. DI NOLFO Sur e.
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MR. BALDWN. Sure.

MR, DI NOLFO Ckay. And you testified that
Elite's goal was 90 percent of the calls; correct?

MR. BALDWN. Not their goal. That was their
fair and conservative estimate. They could handl e
all the calls, but they thought 90 percent was fair
just in case of an energency where Itasca could
respond faster.

MR DI NOLFO And it's not a guarantee that
they're going to nake 90 percent, is it?

MR. BALDWN. No, they gave a fair a
conservative estimate.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. |Is there any pending
provision in the contract that if Elite does not neet
the 90 percent estinmate?

MR, BALDW N  No.

MR DI NOLFO. And you' d agree that every
percent that Elite falls bel ow 90 percent, that
percent's going to have to be picked up by the Itasca
Fire Protection District as things sit today?

MR. BALDWN. Sure, it would, and Itasca has
the capacity to handle it.

MR DI NOLFO And | think you shared with us

I n your testinony, you also referenced that Elite had
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contracts with neighboring communities. | think you

said Itasca was one of them and you know themto have
contracts with Carol Stream Bl oom ngdale, things of

that nature; correct.

MR. BALDW N:. They have other clients around
DuPage and in Itasca. Actually Forestview Nursing
Hone is one of their clients, it's 144 beds, and they
actually considered that nursing honme to have nore
calls than us.

MR. DI NOLFO Ckay. And the carol -- did you
know -- | think | saw a slide of -- one of your
docunents said that you understood they had themin
Carol Stream at Wndsor and another facility? Are
you famliar with that?

MR. BALDW N:. Say that again?

MR. DI NOLFO. Do you understand that they
also -- Elite provides services to sone facilities in
Carol Strean?

MR. BALDW N. They coul d.

MR DI NOLFO I'Il show you what |'ll mark as
Exhibit No. 15 for identification purposes.

(Fire District Exhibit No. 15
i dentified.)
MR, DI NOLFO If you could go into Exhibit
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No. 15, which is a PowerPoint from Haymarket .
MR. HERVAS. M crophone.
MR DI NOLFO. Ckay. Do you have a copy?
MR. BALDWN:. Yes, | have one, thanks.
MR DI NOLFO. Al right. You would agree

fromlooking at this, this appears to be a Power Poi nt
of Haymar ket ?

MR. BALDWN:. It does appear that way.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. And if | ask you to

go in one, two, three -- fourth page in on the back

side, | believe -- let ne nake sure |I"'mright there

so |l don't mslead you. I'msorry, it's six pages

in. It says -- about the private anbul ance service?
MR. BALDWN. |'mthere.

MR, DI NOLFO Al right. This indicates it's
t he second | argest anbul ance conpany in the state of
I111nois?

MR. BALDWN:. That's what it says.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. And this is a
docunent from Haymarket; correct?

MR. BALDW N:. Say that again?

MR DI NOLFO It's a docunent from Haynarket,
Is it not?

MR. BALDW N: Yes.
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MR DI NOLFO Ckay. And you list in there
that the conpany currently serves clients. You list
| tasca, d endal e Heights, Roselle, Bloom ngdale,
Carol Stream Elk Grove, and Hanover Park; correct?

MR BALDWN: Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. And in Carol Stream vyou I|ist
Bel nont Village and W ndsor Park; correct?

MR. BALDW N: Correct.

MR DI NOLFO. And in Bl oom ngdale, you |ist
one, two, three, four, five different facilities?

MR BALDW N  Yes.

MR. DI NOLFO As part of your due diligence
to see if Elite could neet your goal of 90 percent,
did you inquire of the Carol Stream Fire Protection
District to find out that they actually responded 605
times to those two facilities, sir, by Elite between
January 1 and COctober 22nd, 2019?

MR. ROTH. (Objection; counsel's testifying
again. W don't have these nunbers, and they don't
appear in the docunent that he's show ng the w tness.

MR. DI NOLFO If he knows.

MR. ROTH. No, not if he knows. |If counsel
has a basis for this kind of testinony, then let him

bring forth a wwtness to do so or swear hinself in.
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MR. HERVAS. Response, M. Di Nolfo?

MR. DI NOLFO |'m asking what the individual
knows or doesn't know. If he doesn't know, he
doesn't know.

MR. ROTH. The 605, where does that nunber
conme fronf

MR. HERVAS. |If the -- the formof the
guestion assunes that to be a fact and so --

MR DI NOLFO I'Il rephrase it, then. That's
fine.

MR HERVAS:. Ckay.

MR DI NOLFO Did you do any due diligence to
see the nunber of tines the Carol StreamFire
Protection District has to respond to those two
facilities, even though they have a contract with
El i te Anbul ance?

MR BALDWN. W have not yet. |It's very
early in the process.

MR DI NOLFO \Well, you signed a contract
wth them right? That's what you told ne?

MR. BALDW N:  Yes.

MR, DI NOLFO Ckay. So the contract's
si gned?

MR. BALDW N: These anbul ance contracts are
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easy to get. People are very interested in this
busi ness. W have one signed, certainly as an
option, and if we ever wanted to open up this
facility, like we want, we would have to do nore
research and due diligence.

MR DI NOLFO Did you do any due diligence
into how many tinmes the Bl oom ngdale Fire Protection
District has to respond to those five entities that
Elite services?

MR, BALDW N  No.

MR, DI NOLFO Ckay. Now, | think you
nmentioned that the anbul ances were going to be stored
at two | ocations? 290 and Thorndal e and 355 and Arny
Trail ?

MR. BALDWN. That's correct.

MR DI NOLFO. And is it your understanding --
well, first off, it's your understanding that those
anbul ances aren't just dedicated to Haymarket ?
They're subject to calls from anyone?

MR. BALDW N: Yes, we understand that.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. And so there's not
going to be one of these Elite anbul ances parked all
the time at the Haymarket facility, if it's granted;

correct?
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MR BALDWN: Correct.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. So those anbul ances
that -- the two anbul ances that you discussed Elite
woul d make available to you would be eligible to
handl e other calls, and they, | assune, would al so be
the ones servicing Carol Stream Bl oom ngdal e,
Rosel l e, Itasca, et cetera?

MR. BALDWN:. | don't know.

MR. DI NOLFO Wbuld that be sonething
i nportant for you to know so you can determne if
they could neet that 90-percent estimte?

MR. BALDWN. Down the road, | nmean, we can do
nmore due diligence into this, but right now Elite is
the second largest in Illinois. They are respected.

MR. DI NOLFO Fair enough. Wat type of
calls wll you tell your people to call Elite to
handl e versus 9117

MR. BALDWN. Elite could handle all of our
cal | s.

MR DI NOLFO. Are there any calls that you
woul d tell your people not to call -- never to call
911, to call Elite first? O are there calls you're
going to tell your people to absolutely call 911 and

not Elite? Does that nake sense?
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MR. BALDWN. That's nore of a clinical
gquestion around the training, but | believe it's been
contenpl ated that we could have all of our calls
routed to Elite, and the Elite dispatch would | et our

clinical staff knowif 911 would be a better option.

MR DI NOLFO [I'mtrying to understand what
you said, and, | apol ogi ze, maybe it's getting a
little late in the night. 1'mnot sure.

Your goal, then, is to have your
enpl oyees call Elite for every energency that occurs
at the proposed facility, should it be granted?

MR. BALDWN. | know Elite could handle all of
our calls.

MR. DI NOLFO That's not ny question.

MR. BALDWN:. And as far as the training, that
guestion's better directed to Dan.

MR DI NOLFO. Wll, you're the one here
that's testifying about the inpact that this
facility's going to have, so | guess | need to
under st and when can 911 expect a call from Haymar ket
to handl e an energency versus Elite? And you don't
know t hat answer; fair? Ask Dan?

MR. BALDWN. No, around training, but we do

know fromElite, they can handle all of our calls.
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And through a call with our clinical teamand Elite,
I f there was an energency that needed a very fast
response and Elite was not the closest, they would
refer and prefer that our staff call 911.

MR DI NOLFO. Al right. WlIl, you would
agree wwth ne that the two [ ocations that you told
me, 355 and Arny Trail and 290 and Thorndal e, the
Itasca Fire Protection District's always going to be
closer; right? | nmean, just logically?

MR BALDW N:  Sure.

MR DI NOLFO Sure. So if location and tine
to respond is going to be a factor, the Itasca Fire
Protection District is going to win out on that
anal ysis given their |ocation?

MR. BALDWN. That would al so nean that

anbul ance is sitting idol and avail abl e.

MR DI NOLFO. Right, or just the engine could

be --

MR, BALDWN. O it goto a nutual aid
part ner.

MR DI NOLFO Let ne ask another question.
You said the anbul ance. But what's your
under st andi ng of how the engine there at Itasca is

set up? Does it respond to energency calls as well
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for nedical services?
MR. BALDWN. | can't speak to how the Itasca

Fire Protection District responds to energency calls.

MR DI NOLFO Ckay. And you would
acknow edge that the wait tinme for Elite Anbul ance
has been told to you to be anywhere between 10 to 20
m nut es?

MR. BALDWN. | think that was in nore of a --
in a range of the high end. It could be what they
really want to respond to, but obviously, if they're
cl oser, their response tine would be faster.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. Let's go to Exhibit
No. 15 again, which is your PowerPoint, sanme slide.

If we ook on there, it says, "Response tine, |ess
than 20 m nutes, nost 10 mnutes.” Right?

So if I read that, the response tine
Is between 10 and 20 m nutes? At least that's what's
witten there. | didn't wite it but that's what's
witten there?

MR. BALDWN:. | don't think that woul d excl ude
respondi ng in under 10 m nutes.

MR DI NOLFO Ckay. Al right. W'Ill go
with that, sure. |Is this a good point to stop? |

mean, | can keep going. | have a little bit nore to
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go.
CHAI RVAN KI SCHNER:  You have got about --

MR, DI NOLFO 10 m nutes?

CHAI RMAN KI SCHNER: -- eight m nutes.

MR DI NOLFO. I'Il try to get through it,
then, so the next counsel can go next tine.

Your enpl oyees are going to be asked
when they call Elite to ask what the response tine is
going to be; correct?

MR. BALDW N. They woul d descri be the
situation in front of them on how t hey have been
clinically trained to know what it is and to work
with that dispatch on the appropriate way to respond.

MR DI NOLFO  What dispatch?

MR. BALDWN:. Elite's dispatcher.

MR DI NOLFO. So ny question was, though, you
are going to train -- or you're going to train your
folks to ask Elite howlong is it going to take for
an anbul ance to get here, because you need to know
who is going to be able to respond qui cker, as you
sai d?

MR. BALDWN. They would be trained to
di agnose the situation in front of them and anything

further on training would be good for Dan.
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MR DI NOLFO Al right. So just really
qui ck, so you don't know if they're going to be told
to ask Elite for an estimated response tine? You
don't know? Ask Dan?

MR BALDWN:. | know they would be trained to
know the situation in front of them work with that
di spatch to understand what woul d be an appropriate
way to handl e that situation.

MR. DI NOLFO Wio nmakes the ultimate deci sion
what's the appropriate way to dispatch? |s that
Elite or your nedical professionals at your facility?

MR. BALDW N. The nedi cal professionals.

MR DI NOLFO Al right. Gve ne one m nute.
|"mgoing to get Exhibit 8 in the record.

(Fire District Exhibit No. 8
identified.)

MR DI NOLFO For the record, Exhibit 8 is
sone additional docunents FO Aed fromthe City of
Chicago. I'mgoing to streamline this. You would
have to analyze this to know whether it applies or
doesn't apply; true?

MR. ROTH. Applies to what?

MR. DI NOLFO To the analysis of the nunber

of calls that are experienced by your facility
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downt own?
MR ROTH  Where downt own?
MR. D

| don't care if he understands it.

it?

MR ROTH | --

MR. HERVAS. Hold on. Hold
t he objection, please.

VR. ROTH:

because it's vague and it's not understandabl e.

W t ness --
know what the question is and what

counsel 's asking himfor.

MR. HERVAS. Ckay. Let's --
MR, ROTH. And it's unclear.
MR HERVAS. Al right. Let
re-ask the question, and then we'l]|

W t ness understands it.

MR. Dl

docunent over a period of tine to be able to tell

if the calls listed on here apply t
facility downt own?
MR. ROTH. That's better.

MR. BALDW N: Yes.

in fairness to the w tness,

NOLFO Do you understand the question?

Do you under st and

on. Let ne hear

| "' m objecting to the question

The
he needs to

i nformati on

's ask -- please

see if the

NOLFO. Wul d you need to exam ne that

nme

o the Haynar ket
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MR, DI NOLFO Ckay. M last question, |
hope. Do you agree with nme that to truly get an
accurate estimate of the nunber of calls a proposed
facility would generate, you need to include all the
Haymar ket downt own buildings in use to serve the
12,000 patients you serve annual |l y?

MR. BALDWN. O course we want to take all
data points into account, conpare themwth the other
expert report, which was the Village's. It is
unfortunate that apparently you are not working with
the Village's expert when they prepared their report.
And then we would conpare it to the current capacity
that the Itasca Fire Protection District has. And
currently they are only having 2.3 calls per day for
over half their staff of 30 dedicated to it. They
have plenty of capacity.

MR DI NOLFO. Are those total calls or just
EMS cal | s?

MR. BALDW N EMS responses --

MR DI NOLFO  Thank you.

MR. BALDWN:. -- of the anbul ance.

MR. DI NOLFO Thank you. That's all | have.

CHAI RMAN KI SCHNER:  Thank you.

MR. HERVAS. Just to understand, we have two
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additional attorneys that need to do
cross-exam nation. M. Smith, wll you have
guestions for this wtness?

M5. SMTH | do

MR HERVAS. And, M. Ellenbecker, wll you
have questions for this wtness as well?

MR, ELLENBECKER: | will.

MR HERVAS.: |'msorry, yes?

MR. ELLENBECKER: Yes.

CHAl RMAN KI SCHNER: Ckay. So at this tine,

iIt's alnpbst 10:00 o' clock, we're not going to start
up with another one of the counselors. Wat | would
like to do at this point is ask one of the

comm ssioners to -- for a notion to continue the
public hearing to Novenber 13th at 7:00 p.m, in this
building? |s that correct?

M5. JARMUSZ: Yes, here at Peacock.

CHAI RVAN KI SCHNER: Here at Peacock.

MR, SWETS: Mdtion to continue the public
heari ng on Novenber 13th at 7:00 p.m here at
Peacock.

M5. DRUVMOND: Second.

CHAI RVAN KI SCHNER:  Second. All in favor?

(Chorus of ayes.)
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STATE OF ILLINOS )
) SS.
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

I, Lynette J. Neal, CSR No. 84-004363, RPR
do hereby certify that | reported in shorthand the
proceedi ngs had at the public hearing of the
above-entitl ed cause and that the foregoing Report of
Proceedi ngs, Pages 1 through 163, inclusive, is a
true, correct, and conplete transcript of ny
shorthand notes taken at the tine and pl ace
af or esai d.

| further certify that I am not counsel for
nor in any way related to any of the parties to this
suit, nor aml in any way, directly or indirectly
interested in the outcone thereof.

This certification applies only to those
transcripts, original and copies, produced under ny
direction and control; and | assune no responsibility
for the accuracy of any copies which are not so
pr oduced.

IN WTNESS WHEREOF | have hereunto set ny hand

e

b
e

this 25th day of Novenber, 2019.

s,

Certified Shorthand Reporter

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: $350,000..932

$

$350,000 136:13
$500,000 51:22 52:3,9
$800,000 37:6,15

188 122:2

19 38:1240:12 120:5
121:18 127:8

19-014 4:4
1989 130:12

1 4:8104:18,20 105:14
114:19 121:13 150:17
163:7

10 9:19 25:24 45:6,8,9,10
52:24 56:4 86:5 125:2,4
156:6,15,17,21 157:3

10-minute 96:23
100,000 44:15 45:9

108 53:154:19 103:9
106:7,10 116:14

10:00 161:11
11 126:9,10
12 126:24 127:1

12,000 77:10 107:11
117:4 160:6

120 54:14 103:2,9 104:13
105:12,15 116:14,21,22
119:4

124 54:16 103:4,9 106:1,
10 107:9 116:15

13 57:1388:1130:3,4
13th 161:15,20

14 13:16 131:18,20
144 148:7

1466 118:3

15 56:2,357:11 148:21,
22 149:1 156:13

16 13:20,22 14:3,5 60:22
62:9

16-bed 13:12
163 163:7
172 1223

18 38:859:17 78:8 120:4
121:18

2 105:8,9,15 114:24
2.3 143:20 160:14

20 59:17 97:15,16 156:6,
15,17

2000 38:6,13 39:2,15
40:10

2015 107:17 109:2
2017 38:8 61:16 78:7

2018 61:16 85:8 121:13,
15127:23 132:21 134:8

2019 4:210:12 86:20
107:17 109:2 121:13,16
150:17 163:21

224 62:12

22nd 150:17

24 79:21 142:8 143:9
24,000 78:11,14
24-hour 61:6,9

240 51:17

250 6:209:1 85:7 97:19
250-bed 85:6

25th 10:12 163:21
260 32:10

269 122:10

27 45:15

28 13:15 14:21,22 86:19
28-day 12:18 13:4,10

28th 32:15 37:2 38:4,10,
12 39:1 44:2 50:1 51:7,
20 55:22 56:12 58:20
61:2 66:4,21 75:13

290 152:13 1557

3

3 105:21,22 107:7 110:16
112:8,13

30 141:16 143:13 160:15
32 44:361:10 82:16 89:1
350,000 136:16

355 152:13 155:7

365 11:2 14:16,20,21
60:1,4,8,12,17 140:6

365-day 14:15
37 45:15

376 39:11 40:4 63:4,8
78:8,11

649 107:17 109:7
68 128:18
68-month 128:10
6th 4:252:2121:17

7 120:21,23 121:12
122:1,16,20 125:24

7/1/2018 124:15
70 40:2141:1
700 62:16

7:00 161:15,20

8

4

4 106:2,4 115:16
4,750 49:12

400 77:13,17

45 24:2

45-year 28:19
4500 49:17

4th 107:16,17 109:2

8 125:23 126:2 158:14,
15,17

80 40:17,21 41:1 79:4,6
80-percent 79:2
84-004363 163:3

860 4.6,11 53:2 1277

863 118:12,17 120:7
121:20 122:11

8th 120:4 121:15

5

5 118:22,23121:16 122:9
50 37:3

50,000 45:10

500 62:20

53 128:10,19

6

6 119:24120:1121:14
122:2

6/30/2019 124:16
605 150:15 151:5

63 112:24 113:20 114:7,
10

9 124:4,6 125:24

90 11:114:6,13,16,20,24
31:11 115:8 144:24
147:3,6,10,15,18 150:13

90-day 14:8

90-percent 153:11

911 81:8,19,20 82:4 92:8
102:24 103:8,24 109:20

117:16 153:17,22,23
154:5,20 155:4

920 116:22

932 54:2,7,9 102:24
104:13,24 105:15
116:13,21 122:23 123:2,
8,11

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com



IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: 943..application

943 32:10
99 78:18,24
9th 120:5121:16,17

A

ability 93:8
above-entitled 163:6

absolutely 28:853:7
77:494:22 103:17
153:23

Abuse 58:8 69:6
accepted 144:11

access 17:24 23:5,19,24
24:4 29:17 70:4

accessibility 46:2,11

accessing 12:2328:4,
19

account 104:8 160:8

accountant 117:12
121:24

accreditation 58:14
accredited 58:11,15,17
accuracy 163:18

accurate 26:357:20
82:24 102:15,19 103:13
117:17,19 118:17 129:2,
5135:3 160:3

ACDC 133:22
ACF 26:16

acknowledge 68:22
92:13 146:8 156:5

acknowledged 133:10
across 26:6

Act 31:15

acted 75:10

action 5:23

active 69:2,8 137:24
activities 68:5
activity 133:16

actual 51:1386:9,11

109:18 118:20

actually 15:22 41:20
43:4 51:21 63:13,16
69:1,19 72:11 82:23
86:10 97:7 119:17
120:13,15 131:11 138:18
144:2 148:6,8 150:15

add 98:12 99:13122:11
added 48:15
addictions 21:18

Addison 132:20 133:22
134:5,13,17

addition 42:6 118:10

additional 5:658:18
62:12 94:20 100:22
108:15 140:4 158:18
161:1

Additionally 35:10

address 19:12,22 54:1,
4,10 55:17 70:16 74:6
77:17,23 88:7,12,14
89:3,24 90:6 92:6,10
94:16 103:7 104:15
105:1 106:2,10,11 107:9
113:12 119:4 122:21

addressed 54:24

addresses 54:24 55:7
77:19 104:13 106:14
116:9117:8 118:4,19

Administration 69:7
Adult 26:16
adults 25:10
advance 35:11 101:11
affect 54:23

affiliated 54:555:17
135:8

affirmatively 17:3
afflicted 45:4

afield 50:17
aforesaid 163:10
afoul 34:22

after 19:1100:18
again 6:10 15:16 21:24

30:12 39:18 40:22 41:4,8
44:12 50:12 51:1,3 55:20
59:21 67:10 70:17 82:12
91:15 94:3 127:24 139:6
140:8 148:15 149:21
150:19 156:13

against 73:18 77:5 82:4

age 11:924:7,9,14,18
30:1 31:7

aged 16:23

ages 16:6 23:10,12
27:14

aggravated 74:24

agree 8:8 27:9 33:10
36:20 40:7 44:17 48:4
49:5 56:21 59:23 70:19
83:2 86:22 89:10 92:20,
24 93:7,21 96:9 107:7,14
109:10 110:7 128:20
129:10,17 143:24 145:22
147:17 149:5 155:6
160:2

agreed 9:9129:13

agreement 83:15,20
84:5 130:11 131:8,10
141:10

ahead 61:1965:11

aid 130:11 131:7,10
155:19

alcohol 69:10 70:5
alleviate 145:5
allowable 63:24

allowed 11:8,11 29:13
63:22 65:16

ambulance 55:581:4,8
83:4 84:15 86:15 87:6,
12,13,19 88:3,5,20 90:1,
5,9,16 93:6,19 95:21
96:12 102:20 109:21
115:7 124:15 135:1
136:2,6,13 137:4,12,16,
21,24 138:1,13,14
139:13 140:5,13 141:4,
18,19,20,22 143:9,14,23,
24 144:3,10,12,16,21
145:10 146:6,23 149:13,
16 151:16,24 155:16,22
156:5 157:19 160:21

ambulances 82:21
83:12 116:7 139:11,14
152:12,18,22 153:2,3

among 13:20 52:14

amount 10:24 65:24
67:12 70:21 103:14

amounts 13:20

analysis 37:10 66:4,9,
10,13,17,19 67:8 104:7
117:9118:1,16 121:19
127:22 136:7,11 138:16
144:2 155:14 158:23

analyze 102:19 110:12
112:20 113:24 114:20
115:20 117:2,16 158:20

analyzed 102:23 119:3
129:11,18,21

analyzing 64:19 129:14
and/or 32:23 83:18
anecdotal 37:19,24
anecdotally 51:8

annual 13:4 15:15
126:17 127:20 129:3,8
132:20 142:1

annually 13:1077:10
107:12 160:6

answer's 121:2

answers 6:13 7:16
101:6

anticipate 13:5104:11
anticipating 100:4
anticipation 98:10
anymore 94:11

apologize 101:8 119:2
121:11 154:7

apparatus 116:8 142:8
apparently 160:10
appeared 132:8

appears 58:1116:7
132:6 149:6

applicant 33:9

application 29:7 33:7,
11,17,22 34:1,7 35:13

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: applies..bring

39:12 41:16 50:6 59:2
64:23 65:1

applies 158:20,22
163:15

apply 17:12 45:8 50:12
93:1 158:21 159:21

appreciated 89:1

appropriateness 20:10
89:21

approval 4:936:17

approved 52:479:13,18
89:6

approximately 51:17
53:22 61:16 77:15

area 27:22 37:14 45:8
68:14 71:3 92:3

areas 29:11 42:2170:2
arguing 106:20
argument 61:20
Arlington 47:18
arms 135:14,16
Army 152:13 155:7
articles 51:9

asks 7:21

aspect 62:24 63:2 66:20
75:14

assessment 15:21
16:1,18 17:20 18:6

assessments 15:23
16:2,24

asset 139:11
assigned 97:14 113:5
assist 19:20 74:16
assistance 44:21
assistant 80:24
assisted 92:21

Associates 34:12,15
57:15,17 65:22 66:24
67:3,7

assume 48:174:19 75:3
153:5 163:17

assumed 141:1
assumes 50:21 151:8
assumption 50:21 51:1
assumption's 50:23
attached 130:17 131:15
attack 110:4
attempted 134:16

attorney 5:5,8 8:12 9:13
32:6 64:197:2

attorneys 6:11,20 7:11
8:23,24 9:9 57:3 97:10,
19 161:1

attract 44:24
audience 9:4 46:14 57:2
audited 125:13

audits 29:23

author 35:4

authority 93:18
average 7:12 79:4 128:3
averaged 127:20
averaging 128:1
avoid 53:14

aware 8:23 24:12 34:14
35:19 36:4,10 41:13,19
45:12 69:12,23 84:18
123:23

ayes 161:24

B

B-2 4:11
bachelor's 22:6

back 8:948:970:10 77:7
80:15 85:8 107:24 108:6,
10 120:4 122:23 123:8,
10 128:18 132:19 149:10

background 71:11
72:2,8 75:14 102:6,9

backup 94:7 95:2 138:2
backyard 45:13
bad 131:2138:10

balance 84:20

Baldwin 6:57:8 15:12
49:15 53:16 54:5,24
55:20 64:11 86:13,24
88:6,18 93:5 97:22,23
98:8,21 101:18,21 102:5,
8,11,17,22 103:2,6,11,
17,21 104:4,10 106:13
107:5,13,19 108:5,22
109:4,9,14,20 110:6,11,
17 111:23 112:6,10,16,
20113:13,18,22,24
114:22 115:2,5,14,20
116:1,4,10,16,18,24
117:5,18,24 118:6,15,19
119:8,13,19 120:8,17
121:5,21 122:4,13 123:7,
10,22 124:2,10,13,17,21,
24 125:9,11,14,17,20
126:14,16,19,22 127:5,9,
12,15,19 128:4,7,12,16,
22,24 129:7,13,20,24
130:9,13,19,21,24
131:11,14,24 132:3,6,10,
15,19,24 133:9,13,19,24
134:3,7,10,15,19 135:4,
11,20,24 136:7 137:8,17,
23 138:4,9 139:9,24
141:7,12,15,20 142:1,5
143:6,11,13,17,20 144:2,
5,15,22 145:2,8,12,15,21
146:1,7,14,22 147:1,4,
11,16,21 148:5,15,19
149:4,8,14,18,21,24
150:5,8,11 151:17,21,24
152:10,15,20 153:1,8,12,
18 154:1,12,15,23
155:10,15,19 156:2,8,20
157:10,15,22 158:5,12
159:24 160:7,19,21

Baldwin's 64:15,19
bargaining 141:9,10
barred 108:16

barriers 12:23 87:8
88:8,10,14 89:24

base 127:18

based 11:21 13:14 36:21
37:9,11,18,23 40:19
42:12 55:16 60:21 81:13
100:22

baseline 129:3

Basically 18:7

basis 13:4 15:15 62:21
127:20 133:2 137:5
140:9 150:23

bed 41:3

beds 13:15,20,23 14:5,6
15:9 40:21 41:1 51:13,
14,16 60:20 61:2,3,6,9
62:9,12 77:13,17 82:16
85:7 86:6 148:7

before 4:3 26:5 64:23
65:1 97:17 99:6 100:1
134:13 138:24

begin 6:69:19

behalf 9:1532:9 33:7
34:15,20 35:10 36:5

believes 34:16 36:6
Belmont 150:7
benefit 27:1052:15
Benes 10:428:1
bet 96:7

big 46:6 53:12

bit 65:4 77:8 135:17
156:24

blank 112:23113:18
blanks 112:16

Bloomingdale 148:3
150:3,9 152:7 153:6

Board 5:22,24 20:9
bodies 52:14
body 59:10
bond 27:5
boss 64:15
bother 134:11
Boulevard 37:5
breadth 65:24
break 96:23
breaks 138:3
briefly 5:1065:3

bring 48:19 140:10,17
150:24

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: broken..collar

broken 86:10
budget 84:20 126:18
build 70:8

building 42:13,16 43:4
73:17 91:14 92:6 117:16
161:16

buildings 107:10117:3
160:5

built 51:1
bunch 6:23113:16

burden 50:7,8 61:24
90:6,10 93:24 106:18,19
145:5

burden's 95:14
burdens 88:10

Burke 86:18 87:591:3
130:21 131:6,9 135:18

bus 47:11,14,17,21,23
48:2

buses 46:13 47:7,10

business 4:11 44:2
45:19 47:18 68:12,13
88:24 89:2 97:1 103:7
104:13,15 107:8 117:8
152:2

businesses 68:5,11,13
buttons 91:9,18,21

buy 86:14 87:6,11,13
88:3 134:24 136:12
137:4,16 139:15 140:6,
12 141:4 143:16 144:10

C

calculations 87:24

call 4:13 48:23 74:15,19,
2275:2,9 81:8,16,19
83:24 84:2,16 89:20
91:8,10,18,21 92:7 95:1
104:14 112:18 153:16,
21,22,23 154:10,20
155:1,4 157:8

called 10:582:2
calling 82:4

calls 88:193:24 94:13
95:20 96:11,15 102:24
103:8,14,24 104:8,11,24
105:12 106:1,6,8,12
107:17 109:7,17,18
117:14 118:3,20 119:3,6
120:4 121:20 127:7,21,
24 128:1,3,6,19 129:1,19
132:16 133:1,15 137:13,
22 141:6 144:6,7,24
146:11,19 147:3,6 148:9
152:19 153:5,16,19,20,
22 154:3,13,24 155:24
156:3 158:24 159:21
160:3,14,17,18

cameras 92:2

canceled 93:8,22
145:19 146:9,17

canine 71:19

capacity 40:17 79:2,3
115:8 144:5 147:22
160:12,16

car 67:24 87:20 95:7

care 12:23 43:13 58:22
61:6,9 85:6 159:4

Carello 4:16,17 30:24
31:4

CARF 58:11,13,15,16

carol 148:3,10,13,18
150:4,6,14 151:13 153:6

case 4:4 20:15 32:15
51:8 74:7 99:4 117:21
131:12 138:2 147:7

categorized 66:17
causing 75:1
ceased 146:10,18

center 24:8 28:10 34:16
36:6 40:3 48:11 85:6,7
133:22 134:12,14

CEO 333
certification 163:15
certifications 22:8
certified 22:13 163:24
certify 163:4,11

cetera 153:7

Chairman 4:15:2,3
8:10,11,15 34:23 35:14
46:15,16 76:1 96:20,22
97:1,13,16,24 98:2 114:5
157:2,4 160:23 161:10,
18,23

chance 6:22 7:1 74:21
115:22 123:6

change 79:4 136:17
characterized 35:20
charge 102:4

chart 116:20,21 118:11
119:4

check 72:8
checks 71:11,16 72:2,3

Chicago 28:18 29:8,18
60:20 104:24 119:7
121:14 123:12 158:19

Chief 86:18 87:591:2
130:21 131:6,9 135:18

child 12:3,5,1513:2 16:9
19:2 20:15 21:4,11,21
24:4,5 27:5,10,15 30:5,
14

child's 17:24 29:21
child-find 16:24
childcare 13:2
childhood 21:17 22:1

children 10:1,13,22
11:6,9,12,21 12:6,7,8
13:7 15:20 16:23 18:4,8,
20 22:17,20,23 23:2,19,
23 24:6,19 26:7,10,13,
16,22 27:16,19 28:7
29:18 31:6,13,23 32:3

children's 17:23
choice 42:11
chorus 161:24

chose 46:252:758:17
81:20

Chuck 5:5,8
circumstances 29:12
cite 59:16

cites 56:23

citizens 32:9 84:19
95:17,22,23 96:14

city 44:6 48:8 103:15,24
104:23 111:18 119:7
121:14 123:1,12 158:18

claiming 117:22

clarification 77:8 82:15
123:1

clarifications 76:7
clarified 11:10

clarify 97:8 98:13,15
100:2,11

clarifying 10:21
Class 4:8

clear 57:10 72:24 78:7
84:24 88:7 100:6 105:14
106:7 134:20 136:23

clients 36:12 148:5,7
150:2

clinical 14:23 21:8 59:14
76:20,22 81:13 154:1,5
155:1

clinically 75:4 157:12
clinics 38:8

close 47:12

closer 155:9156:11
closest 155:3
closures 37:14
co-addictions 69:20
coaches 74:7

code 112:2119:21

codes 109:12,13,16,17,
24 110:9,14,17 111:6,10
112:7,8,14 113:15,18
114:7,10,21 115:18
119:12,13,16 124:18,19

coed 14:2

coincidence 132:24
133:20

collar 38:7,15,18,19
40:12 43:10,13,17 78:22

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: collective..created

collective 141:9,10
column 111:24 113:6

combined 61:11,12
109:21

comment 7:238:1,3
63:22 64:3 66:11 123:16
134:23

commenting 49:7
comments 5:6 46:16

commission 4:35:5,19
6:8 7:10,14,18 8:7 35:12
37:18,22 38:5,12,17
49:24 50:14 51:6,20 54:6
55:3 63:24 64:2,4 69:5
100:12 105:3

Commission's 5:23

commissioner 4:14,16,
18,20,22,24 76:10

commissioners 30:23
110:3 161:14

communities 148:1

community 4:11 43:5
45:350:22 72:20

company 93:19 149:16
150:2

compare 51:12 90:2
118:1,8 119:9 120:9
121:6 160:8,12

comparing 62:4

comparison 50:11 62:2
103:15

comparisons 29:10
51:11

complete 6:21 103:23
163:8

completed 5:21

completely 76:12
135:13

complicating 31:18
component 6:8
concentration 44:20
concept 90:1
concern 137:11,14

concerned 32:994:19
conclude 104:4
conclusion 73:10 115:9
condominium 37:5
conducted 16:2
conducts 16:8
conflict 58:2
confusion 126:5
connected 55:17
Conroy 42:7,11 43:3
conscious 117:2,5
conservative 147:5,12
consideration 27:18

considered 36:23 59:8,
9 148:8

consistently 38:18
71:23

Consolidated 132:20
133:22 134:5,13,17

consortium 83:11,14,
15

constant 49:11
consult 96:19
contacted 9:24

contemplated 50:3
51:9 154:3

contemplating 46:10
context 59:12
continuation 4:4

continue 19:21 73:21
80:7 145:23 161:14,19

continuing 38:14
contraband 75:19

contract 81:3 90:9,15,
18,20 91:3 93:6,8,14,18,
22 94:12,13,23 95:21
96:12 144:20 145:4,5,10,
14,20,24 146:5,9,10,17,
18,23 147:14 151:15,19

contract's 151:22

contracts 90:21 148:1,3
151:24

contradictory 108:14
contrast 51:13 90:2
control 163:17
controls 84:6
convalescent 85:7
convenience 50:9
conversation 79:10
conversations 118:13
convince 76:23
coordination 30:6
coordinators 21:7
copies 105:2 163:16,18

copy 32:11,14 39:20
149:3

corner 68:18
corners 68:17

correct 10:7,9,19 14:4
15:21 23:21 24:15,20
25:13 26:4,20 27:12,13
31:9 33:3,4,8,12,15,16,
19,20,22,23 34:3,9,10,13
36:24 37:1 38:9,19 39:7,
17 40:13,17 41:7,11,12,
16,17 42:8,9,13,14,17,
18,21,22 43:6,7,14,15,
18,19,23,24 44:3,4,21
45:4,5,10,11,13,14,17,
18,23,24 46:3,4,7,19,20,
22,23 47:7 48:16 51:17,
18 52:10,11,20,21 53:18,
19,22 54:2,3,7,8,11,12,
14,15,17,18,20,21,24
55:1,14,15,18,23 56:6
58:12 59:3,4,20 60:2,8,
18,24 61:3,4,10 62:9,13,
16 63:2,8,9,11,12 64:8,
13,14,16,17 67:1 68:23
69:10,11,15,16,21,22
70:2,6,21 71:12,13,16,17
72:5,6,10,15,16,21,22
73:8 75:20 76:13,15,16,
19,24 77:1,5,6,10,12,14,
19,20,24 78:2,5 79:14,
16,19,24 80:9,13 81:4,5,
17 82:17,18 83:5,16,22
84:3 85:3,4,13,24 86:7,

17 87:1,22 88:17 90:24
92:16,19,23 93:10,11,15,
20 102:7,8,17,22 103:1
104:4 105:16,17 106:12,
18 107:13 109:8 110:1
111:17,19 113:17
114:21,22 116:23,24
118:18 120:7,14 124:16,
17,20,21 125:8,9,13,14,
16,17 126:18,19 127:4,8,
9,11,14 128:23,24
129:23 131:23 132:2,5
133:12,13,23,24 135:23,
24 137:7,16 141:19
143:17 144:21 145:1,21,
24 146:21 147:3 148:4
149:20 150:4,5,7,8
152:15,24 153:1 157:9
161:16 163:8

correctly 106:9 123:15
cost 85:15

counsel 9:11,22 10:14
56:11 76:6 78:7 88:23
89:12 98:3 110:21
111:12 120:12 122:16
123:24 142:12 143:4
150:22 157:6 163:11

counsel's 32:13 136:18
140:8 150:18 159:13

counselors 161:12
count 113:19,22
counted 113:1

counties 38:7,15,19
40:12 43:11,14,17 78:22

County 40:4,13 44:6
46:24 47:4,22 78:9,21
163:2

couple 5:991:6

court 5:156:1057:10
63:21 100:24

cover 95:20 144:24
covered 5:10 76:6
CPA 1027

Craig 10:4 28:1
create 8:6
created 111:12

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: criteria..diligence

criteria 81:11
critical 27:10,11

cross-examination
6:3,6,7,12,19,21 7:2,11
8:17 9:2,6,8,10,15,20
99:8,13,17,20 100:1,17,
18,22 101:2,10 161:2

cross-examiner 99:15,
16,19 100:4,6,8 101:6

cross-examining 7:3
8:24 32:6 99:23

crowd 46:17
CSR 163:3
curious 31:2

current 89:14,19 126:17
160:12

curriculum 23:10,13,15,
16 27:14

curriculums 29:21

D

daily 64:19

Daly 4:14,15122:15,19
123:3

Dan 137:9 154:16,22
157:24 158:4

data 39:19 54:22 55:9,
10,17 64:11,12,20 67:8
102:14,15,19,23 109:20
110:22 117:2,16 120:15
121:7 123:5,17,18,19,20
127:17 128:18 129:5,9,
11,18,21 132:9,13,21
133:6,8 134:14 137:15
160:8

data-fueled 98:14

dataset 117:10118:1
120:17,20 121:21 127:17
133:2

date 10:16 18:5 26:18
65:7 86:21 106:16 109:1
145:16

dated 121:13

day 14:20 79:21 80:2,16,
20120:16 131:10 141:14

142:8 143:8,9,21 160:14
163:21

days 11:1,2 13:16,17
14:6,13,16,21,22,24 41:6
60:1,4,8,17 79:22 80:11
82:12 140:6 142:8 143:9

DCFS 22:529:23

deal 96:10 108:8
dealing 95:6,8,11 96:15
dealt 94:13

Deb 42:7

decide 50:14 81:19
138:8

decided 82:19 118:17
131:9 136:12 137:4,15

decides 82:2
deciding 17:11 36:16

decision 5:24 28:20
29:17,20 65:8 81:7,12
109:24 117:2,6 120:7
158:9

decline 50:15

dedicated 141:17,22
152:18 160:15

deep 17:10
deescalate 75:5
defer 18:11
define 24:9 25:2
defines 20:10

definition 18:16 25:5
31:20,21

degree 22:7
degrees 22:4,6

delays 16:16 18:8,10,13,
14 19:12 23:3

deliberate 8:5
delve 655
demonstrate 29:3
denied 63:17,19
deny 100:13,14
departing 7:18

department 58:9 102:3
139:19

depend 49:21 80:4

depending 13:17 14:17
41:8 45:16 70:24

depends 40:22 41:4
describe 16:12 157:10
designation 124:18

designed 8:6 11:17
19:12 91:15

desk 91:12

details 84:7
detector 71:16
determination 119:5

determine 121:20
138:16 153:10

detox 60:2061:2,3,9
82:16

detoxification 50:2

development 4:7 7:12
9:116:9 27:15

developmental 15:21,
2216:1,16,17,24 17:19
18:6,8,10,13,14 19:12
21:5,11,21 23:3

developmentally
18:21,23 27:11

DI 9:13 32:7 76:3,9,14,
17,21 77:2,7,12,16,21
78:1,3,6,11,15,18,23
79:5,8,15,20 80:1,6,10,
14,20 81:1,6,10,15,18,22
82:1,8,12,14,19 83:2,6,9,
13,17,19,23 84:4,8,10,
14,18,23 85:5,11,14,17,
21,23 86:2,5,12,17,22
87:2,10,15,18,23 88:13,
18,23 89:8,10,18 90:7,
13,18,23 91:2,6,13,17,20
92:4,11,17,20,24 93:4,
12,16,21 94:8,18,23
95:4,13,19 96:7,18 98:4,
6,16 99:1,6 101:7,17,21
102:6,9,12,18,23 103:4,
8,12,19,23 104:6,16,22
105:4,7,11,17,19,24
106:6,17 107:1,6,14

108:3,5,21,23 109:5,10,
15,23 110:7,13,18
111:14,17,19 112:4,7,12,
18,22 113:3,9,14,21,23
114:2,9,12,14,18,23
115:4,11,16,24 116:2,5,
12,17,19 117:1,12,20
118:2,10,16,21 119:1,10,
15,22 120:3,11,21 121:1,
8,11,23 122:6,14,22
123:4,9,12,23 124:3,8,
14,18,22 125:1,6,10,12,
15,18,21 126:1,6,12,15,
17,20,23 127:3,6,10,13,
18 128:2,5,9,14,17,23
129:4,10,16,22 130:2,6,
10,15,20,22 131:2,13,17,
22 132:1,4,7,11,18,23
133:4,10,14,21 134:1,4,
9,11,18,20 135:7,16,21
136:1,10,17,19 137:3,14,
19 138:2,5,12,23 139:17
140:2,12,19 141:3,8,13,
19,21 142:3,6,11 143:5,
7,12,15,19,22 144:4,8,
17,19,23 145:3,9,13,17,
22 146:3,8,16,24 147:2,
9,13,17,23 148:10,16,20,
24 149:3,5,9,15,19,22
150:1,6,9,12,21 151:2,9,
12,19,22 152:6,11,16,21
153:2,9,15,20 154:6,14,
17 155:5,11,17,21 156:4,
12,22 157:3,5,14,16
158:1,9,13,17,23 159:3,
19 160:1,17,20,22

diagnose 157:23

DICKSON 8:14,18 16:19
17:6 20:3 28:22 34:21
46:15 50:5,20 56:11,17,
2257:1,8,1559:16,19
61:17 63:13,16 65:9
95:24

dictate 137:20
dictated 6:9
differ 93:1

difference 7:4,6 56:21,
22

differentiate 11:20

diligence 150:12 151:12
152:5,6 153:13

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com



IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET

Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019 Index: diminish..Ellenbecker

diminish 70:5
diminished 109:18

Dinolfo 9:15 76:2,4 96:5
101:14,22 121:9 125:22
151:1

direct 29:12 111:5

directed 17:1535:17
143:3 154:16

direction 163:17

directly 65:19 108:13
163:13

director 79:17 80:2,6
81:24 82:2 98:9

directs 143:4
disability 24:13
disagree 39:11
discharged 75:19
disciplinary 82:7
discipline 82:3,13
discrepancy 59:21
discuss 64:12

discussed 23:854:6
59:24 67:23 153:3

discussion 35:21 96:21
110:2

disorder 27:8 69:9
disorderly 75:2
disorders 45:4 69:14

dispatch 132:20 133:22
134:6,13 154:4 157:13,
14 158:7,10

dispatched 112:1,2
116:10,13,14 119:20

dispatcher 157:15

dispatches 124:15
143:21

disposition 112:17
113:12 119:20

disrepair 86:11
distributed 52:14 97:11
district 4:11 9:16,19,23,

24 10:12 16:22 17:3,4
20:19,20 24:14 26:8
31:17 52:24 76:5 82:21
83:3 84:20 86:14,19
87:6,12,16,20 88:11,14,
16,20 89:13 90:24 92:22
93:17 94:2,14 95:15
96:10 101:23 102:3
104:18,20 105:8,9,21,22
106:4 108:9 111:13
115:9 118:22,23 119:23
120:1,23 123:20 124:1,6,
11,23 125:4,7 126:10,13
127:1 130:4,12 131:20
132:12,22 133:6 134:2,5,
16 135:1,2,9 136:3
137:5,24 138:18 139:12,
16,21 141:11,17,24
142:19 145:6 146:4,13,
21 147:20 148:22 150:15
151:14 152:8 155:13
156:3 158:15 160:13

district's 9:1117:8
59:24 108:12 155:8

districts 31:152:23,24
53:9 93:2 140:1

Division 58:7

doctor 11:23 32:18 51:5
71:8 75:12 76:3 79:20

doctors 92:5

document 69:13 97:3
108:24 109:7,11 110:15
111:3,4,8,9,11,16,21
115:1119:7 120:6
121:10,15 124:12 125:16
126:2 130:23,24 149:20,
22 150:20 159:20

documentation 38:17
99:24 127:11

documents 104:17,23
114:15 116:7 119:9
120:9 121:3 128:2
148:12 158:18

donors 17:22
door 43:22 76:15
double-check 126:6

downtown 68:14
102:21 109:19 159:1,2,
22 160:5

dramatically 75:11
draw 73:10

drawn 42:16,19
drinking 70:171:4,5
drive 20:24 141:6
driven 68:10
driving 68:9

drop 84:21

drove 44:16

drug 70:5

Drummond 4:22,23
161:22

DU 163:2
DU-COMM 134:18

due 6:8101:2 150:12
151:12 152:5,6 153:13

Dupage 4:532:24 36:17
38:7,13,18,19 39:3,16
40:4,12,13 41:14 43:10,
16,21 44:6 46:24 47:22
63:5 78:8,20 79:1 85:6,
10 148:6

duplicated 109:21
duplicates 110:1
duty 141:14

E

e-mail 131:6,15
earlier 67:23

early 21:16,24 70:15
151:18

easier 48:4 115:23

east 46:21,22 67:17
68:3,11

easy 152:1
echoed 42:15

economic 34:8 67:4
Edstrom 98:9 101:8

education 20:10 21:17,
23 22:1 23:20,24 24:4
27:18 28:4,6,19 29:17

30:7

educational 19:7,13,15
20:10 22:4 23:6,15
24:15,17 26:7,13 27:10

Edward 48:22
effort 61:14
efforts 76:21
either/or 11:17
element 75:7
elementary 52:23

eligible 11:6 30:8 31:16,
24 153:4

Elite 81:3,8,19,20 82:3,5
90:1 93:6 94:7,9,19,24
95:10,21 144:20 145:19
146:19 147:14,18,24
148:17 150:13,16 151:16
152:9,22 153:3,13,16,18,
22,24 154:4,10,12,21,24
155:1,3 156:5 157:8,18
158:3,11

Elite's 147:3 157:15
Elk 150:4

Ellenbecker 9:13 32:8,
9,18,20 33:2,5,9,13,17,
21,24 34:7,11,14 35:8
36:1,4,14,20 37:2,8,13,
17,21 38:3,10,16,21,23
39:5,8,10,14,17,20,23
40:1,7,10,15,19,24 415,
10,13,18,22 42:2,5,10,
15,19 43:1,8,16,20 44:1,
5,8,11,14 45:2,6,12,15,
19,22 46:1,5,9,18,21,24
47:3,6,9,13,16,21 48:1,
14,17 49:3,5,9,16,23
50:7,24 51:5,15,19 52:1,
9,12,18,22 53:6,8,12,20
54:1,4,9,13,16,19,22
55:2,12,16,21 56:2,7,20
57:9,16,23 58:5,10,13,19
59:1,5,11,17,21 60:4,7,
11,13,15,19 61:1,5,8,13,
2162:8,11,14,18,23
63:4,10,14 64:7,10,15,
18,23 65:3,10,12,20
66:3,8,12,15,18,23 67:2,
6,12,19,21 68:2,9,15,21
69:1,4,8,12,17,23 70:4,
12,19 71:2,8,14,18,22

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: Ellyn..fewest

72:1,7,13,17,23 73:6,11
75:12,23 161:5,7,9

Ellyn 48:3
Elmhurst 48:4

emergency 53:18 64:13
81:2,7 91:8,18,21 147:7
154:10,21 155:2,24
156:3

emphasis 6:10
empirically 51:8
employ 22:13

employee 82:4

employees 154:10
157:7

EMS 53:17 54:23 55:14
64:20 88:2 89:14 90:11
95:14 106:8 107:3
160:18,19

encountered 38:1
end 48:18 109:6 156:9
endeavoring 108:6,11
ends 47:23115:6
enforced 7:6
engaged 7:1
engagement 30:13
engine 143:8 155:17,23

enhance 26:17 29:21
49:8

enter 93:18,23 97:4
146:5,22

entered 81:3 144:20
145:3,5

entire 13:15
entities 135:13 152:8

entity 53:3 94:16,19
138:6

environment 59:14
70:10,15

equal 83:20
equals 122:11
equate 104:1

ESPEDIDO 4:14,16,18,
20,22,24 5:2

essential 58:15
establish 50:8
establishment 71:5
establishments 68:19

estimate 15:14 147:5,
12,15 153:11 160:3

estimated 158:3

evening 5:7,12 32:8,18,
19 76:3 101:21

event 75:19 112:3
113:11 119:19

events 112:21

evidence 29:333:11,15
89:18 97:5,6 102:1
136:15 140:8,9,11
142:13

exact 123:7
examine 116:6 159:19
Excel 115:22
exceptions 4:8
excess 49:17
excited 19:19

exclude 27:17,20
156:20

excluded 28:13
Excuse 122:15

exhibit 104:18,20 105:8,
9,15,20,21,22 106:2,4
107:7 108:19 110:15
112:8,13 114:19,24
115:16 118:22,23 119:24
120:1,21,23 121:12,14,
16 122:1,2,9,16,20
124:4,6 125:2,4 126:9,
10,24 127:1 130:3,4
131:18,20 148:21,22,24
156:12 158:14,15,17

exist 70:21139:14
142:19

existence 146:11,18
exists 90:15

exit 92:6

expect 29:4 49:11
154:20

experience 18:821:18
29:22 37:24 81:14
133:11

experienced 24:1,3
158:24

experiences 37:24
experiencing 78:387:9

expert 117:10 120:18
121:22 160:9,11

expertise 19:7
expires 93:14
explain 30:2
explore 26:21
explored 26:18
exposure 69:24

extended 30:4,5 34:2,6,
18 35:21 36:8,13,16,21,
23

extrapolation 44:18

=

faced 70:23
facilitate 24:18

facilities 50:2 80:18
145:10 148:17 150:10,16
151:15

facility 4:10 23:19 28:24
29:2,4,8,11 31:5,7 48:13
50:10,21 51:9 54:11
58:23 59:5 60:16 61:15
62:8,15,20 63:7 71:4
72:12,15,18,19 73:5 74:9
77:11 78:20 79:12,17,23
82:16 86:2,9 89:5,6
90:1091:17,21 94:1
96:11 102:2,21 103:9
109:19 117:15 136:5
145:1,7 146:12,20
148:13 152:4,23 154:11
158:11,24 159:22 160:4

facility's 154:19

fact 36:14 37:4 48:21
49:7 54:13 63:18 69:17
78:23 94:5 151:8

factor 20:14 36:16 46:4,
5,8 77:18 155:12

factors 31:18

facts 140:7,11 141:1
142:13,18,23

fair 32:24 41:10 55:21
58:10 67:12 80:2,3
89:16,17,21,22 96:18
99:14 112:22 116:17,18
118:5,6,14,15 130:17
135:3,4,19,20 136:20
140:14 147:5,6,11
153:15 154:22

fairly 17:12 41:18 49:10
50:13

fairness 120:11 159:11
faith 88:12

fall 94:1 146:12,20
falls 147:18

familiar 120:5 148:14
families 26:16 30:5

family 24:7 27:4 30:5,13,
14 74:16

fashion 35:20

fast 155:2

faster 147:8 156:11
fathers 11:11
favor 161:23
featured 41:20 42:7
features 42:20 46:11
federal 25:4
Feeds 85:23

feel 100:17

feels 100:11

feet 6:209:197:19
felt 98:12

females 13:20
fewest 70:21

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: field..Haymarket

field 35:16
figure 119:17
filed 33:6

filings 38:5

fill 140:14 1415
final 5:24
Finally 75:12
finance 98:9
financial 66:14,22
financials 125:13
find 47:17 62:6 150:15

fine 30:21 32:7 100:5
126:4 131:16 137:2
151:10

finish 95:5 122:6,7
finished 30:19

fire 9:16 55:5 76:4 82:21
83:3 84:20 86:14,19
87:5,12,16,19 88:10,14,
15,19 89:13 90:23 92:21
93:2,17 94:1,14 95:15
96:10 101:23 102:2
104:18,20,24 105:8,9,12,
20,22 106:1,4,6,8 108:9,
12 111:12 115:8 116:8
118:22,23 119:23 120:1,
3,23121:12,15123:19
124:1,6,10,23 125:4,7
126:10,13 127:1 130:4,
11 131:20 132:12,22
133:6,12 134:2,4,15
135:1,2,9 136:3 137:5,23
138:18 139:12,15,20
140:1 141:11,16,19,23
142:19 145:6 146:4,12,
20 147:20 148:22 150:14
151:13 152:7 155:8,12
156:3 158:15 160:13

firefighter 102:10
fiscal 129:8

fit 85:1

fits 31:1

five-year 107:16,21
108:6,10 118:4

five-year-olds 20:16
23:6 27:12 30:8

fly 122:13
focus 11:18

focused 54:2 59:7
116:21

focusing 55:9,11

FOIA 54:23 64:19 111:16
116:2 121:15 123:2,11
124:9 125:6 126:12
127:3 130:10,14 131:22
134:15,16,18

FOIAED 55:10 83:15
104:23 106:16 119:7
121:14 122:22 131:14
158:18

FOIAS 124:1132:8
folks 157:18

follow 8:21 22:581:11
follow-up 10:8

foot 33:14 67:15 72:20
force 146:5
foregoing 163:6
Forestview 148:6
forgot 97:21

form 82:11 95:24 106:23
140:22 151:7

forma 15:17

forward 33:14 36:17
41:1552:7 97:20 140:18

found 43:8129:14

foundation 141:2
142:15,22

fourth 149:10

frame 84:1594:11
112:15121:18

frequently 48:21 69:14

front 108:24 157:11,23
158:6

frustration 75:6
full 80:5129:11
functional 85:18

functioning 85:19

fund 17:332:2
funding 17:2,9 26:13,22
funds 16:17 17:5,19

G

gambling 69:10,13,21
70:1,471:4,5

gaming 68:19
gap 127:23

gave 46:6 51:16 55:13
115:14 147:11

gender 11:21
generate 139:16 160:4

generated 103:14
111:16 117:14 145:7

generates 139:13
gentleman 98:7 101:15

gesture 136:8 137:17
138:10

give 32:1150:14 59:16
74:14 103:13 104:15
117:17,18 129:2 133:7
141:1,2 158:13

giving 55:4 115:21
120:9

glean 90:7
Glen 48:3
Glendale 48:3 150:3

goal 12:22 27:3,6 43:13
70:8 87:7 88:6 89:23
102:12 147:3,4 150:13
154:9

good 5:7 10:24 32:8,18,
19 44:2 70:20 76:3,5
78:12 88:11,24 89:2
101:21 113:6 131:3
135:14 136:9 137:10,17
144:17 156:23 157:24

government 135:10
grant 51:22 52:3 92:22
granted 152:23 154:11

grants 17:21 26:15 27:2
52:19 53:9 92:12,13,18,

24

granular 91:1

great 108:8

greater 45:10

greatly 93:1
grounds 50:16
group 83:11

Grove 57:15,17 150:4
guarantee 92:14 147:9

guess 76:587:23 89:11
90:7 135:5 138:15,24
154:19

guidance 98:20 101:18
guide 99:19

guided 58:18 101:6
guidelines 22:5

guys 32:11 94:11 96:15

H

hailed 40:13

half 141:17,22 143:13
160:15

hand 32:14 39:20,22
52:10 105:4 163:20

handed 97:9

handle 94:20,24 137:22
144:6,7 146:19 147:5,22
153:5,17,18 154:12,21,
24 158:8

handled 108:17
handling 84:1
Hang 105:5

Hanover 150:4

happen 6:19 7:12 48:21
89:8,9

happened 131:9
happening 7:13
hard 88:7

Haymarket 4:517:7
24:8 28:10 31:4 32:23

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: Haymarket's..intend

33:3 34:15 35:4 36:6,17
37:22 38:6,8 39:11 40:3,
11,16 41:14 44:23 48:11
54:5,10 55:3,4,22 60:21
62:19 63:10,19 64:12
65:14 66:5 69:18 72:8
75:17 80:8 84:2,23 85:5
86:13,18 87:4 89:16
92:21 95:16 96:11 97:4
101:24 102:20 103:9,14,
24 107:10 117:3 123:24
124:10 130:7 134:24
136:11 137:3 138:17
139:20 140:3 144:20
145:23 149:1,7,20,22
152:18,23 154:20 159:21
160:5

Haymarket's 20:17
33:7 35:10 36:5 44:20
61:14

hazard 72:21
head 15:11 128:8

health 17:24 21:19 50:9
58:9 69:7

healthcare 4:1059:13
hear 51:387:7 159:7

heard 31:23 32:21 86:15
89:12 90:13 106:9 107:9
112:4 123:15 135:2
145:18

hearing 5:18 8:7 71:10
114:6 137:11 161:15,20
163:5

hearings 5:21
heart 110:4

Heights 47:18 48:3
150:3

held 73:1891:11
helped 92:18
hereunto 163:20

Hervas 5:5,7,8 8:20 9:17
11:23 16:21 17:10,18
20:5,17 29:9 30:18,21
32:5,17 35:7,14 39:22,24
50:12 51:3 56:15,24
57:2,21 61:19 62:3 63:21
64:9 65:11,17 76:2 96:4,
19 98:5,16 99:8 100:15

101:1,5,9,20 104:22
105:2,6,11,14,18,24
106:22 107:22 108:12
111:2,15,18,20 113:7
114:16,17 121:9,12
122:17 124:8 125:22
126:4,7 136:22 139:4,7,
18,22 140:21,24 142:15,
17 143:1 144:18 149:2
151:1,7,11 159:7,14,16
160:24 161:5,8

hey 131:7

high 52:24 156:9
higher 79:5
highest 80:21

hire 22:16,19,22 23:1
65:8 79:17

hired 21:12
histories 72:5

history 28:19 29:6 72:9
73:1

Hoffman 65:6

hold 57:8 77:5 96:19
136:22 140:21 159:7

Holiday 34:2,5,16,17
36:6,8,22 42:20,21
49:12,18 51:10 53:17
61:10 67:14,15,22 68:3
77:3 85:1127:7,20
132:17

Holmes 4:20,21

home 14:9,18 15:8 25:7,
16 48:19 51:14 60:16
148:7,8

homeless 24:22,24 26:2
31:12,16

homelessness 25:3

homes 11:4 14:10,12
15:1,6,15 25:11 60:6,10

honest 57:20
honestly 113:19 115:2,6
hope 160:2

hospital 48:2285:17,18
hospital-like 59:14

Hospitality 4:6

hotel 34:2,18 36:9,16,24
47:12

hotels 36:22
hour 20:12

hours 53:22 79:21 142:8
143:9

human 95:8,11
hypothetically 84:2

i.e. 36:16
idea 7:1155:2 101:12
ideal 70:20

identification 104:19
106:3 107:7 114:19
120:22 124:4 125:3
126:9 130:3 131:18
148:21

identified 18:519:1,16
28:16 104:21 105:10,23
106:5 118:24 120:2,24
124:7 1255 126:11
127:2 130:5 131:21
148:23 158:16

identify 9:524:21,23
25:17 71:2 121:10 126:3

idol 155:16

Illinois 6:9 19:5 20:9
24:13 45:1 55:23 56:1,5
127:8 149:17 153:14
163:1

illustrate 100:12

imagine 25:23 41:24
137:10

impact 34:8 53:16 55:4,
14 64:13 66:14,22 67:4,9
102:1 104:1,5 107:2
136:4 137:21 138:8,17
139:20 154:18

impacted 89:15
impacts 13:1

important 5:10 6:1
51:12 73:21 74:3 75:7

95:14 117:15 138:5,15
153:10

imposed 62:1
improving 43:13
inappropriately 95:8

include 86:24 103:4
160:4

included 103:2

including 16:24 81:23
144:6

inclusive 163:7
incomplete 123:18
incorrect 56:7 132:14
increase 75:6
indifferent 47:19
indirectly 163:13

individual 12:2,14 25:6
151:2

individuals 10:24 11:5
13:4,9 14:24 24:22
25:10,18,21 34:5 60:5,9,
15 74:4 78:8,24 90:5

information 10:9 18:11
26:9 56:13 98:20 100:8,
19 108:7,13,16 111:1
130:17 134:12 136:12
137:4 140:2 159:12

initial 99:14

Inn 34:2,5,16,17 36:6,8,
22 42:20,21 49:12,18
51:10 53:17 61:10 67:14,
16,22 68:3 77:3 85:1
127:7,20 132:17

inquire 20:21 150:14
ins 139:24

inside 27:7 72:19 73:1
instance 35:18 113:3
instrument 16:10
instrumental 61:13
insurance 18:1
integrated 28:10
intend 17:7 26:21

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF

HAYMARKET

Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: intention..lost

125:23

intention 28:394:5,9
interested 152:1 163:14
interesting 43:9
interrupting 136:21
intervention 76:20
interventions 76:22
introduce 5:4 32:21
investigated 26:12
investigation 65:16,23
invite 8:16 97:21
involved 6:1128:11
irrelevant 108:4

Irving 4:6,12 53:2 68:4,
10,19

issue 11:18 35:14 49:20
53:12 59:2,7 91:24 94:17
95:6

issues 21:19 27:459:1
88:12

Itasca 9:18 12:9 13:5
19:17,24 21:2,11 25:14
26:23 28:14,16,23 29:4
31:8,9 32:10 36:22
42:12,20 43:13 45:13,20
46:2,11 47:10,23 48:4
49:6,12,18 50:4 51:10,23
52:4 53:17,18 55:5 59:24
61:10 66:5,13 67:13,15,
16,22 68:3 72:8 75:17
76:4 79:18 82:15,20,21
83:3 84:19 86:7,14
87:11,12 88:19 89:6
90:22,23 91:22 93:17
94:1 95:15 96:3,10
101:23 102:2,3 103:16
104:2,18 105:8,20 107:3
115:8 118:22 119:23
124:1,10 125:7 126:13
127:7,8 130:11 132:12,
22 133:6 134:2,4,15,24
135:1 137:5,23 139:15
141:11,16,23 144:3
145:6 146:4,12,20 147:7,
19,21 148:2,6 150:3
153:7 155:8,12,23 156:2
160:13

item 4:3

James 15:11,17 49:15
124:9

Janet 130:7

January 127:22 150:17
JARMUSZ 97:7 161:17
Jennifer 9:12,22

job 64:19,21

join 134:5

joined 134:13
judgment 37:23 81:16

July 85:8 120:4 121:13,
15,16,17

jump 48:5,8

juxtaposition 61:24

K

keeping 98:2

key 113:8

kind 31:2 150:23
kindergarten 30:8,9

Kischner 4:15:2,38:11,
15 46:16 76:1 96:22
97:1,13,16,24 157:2,4
160:23 161:10,18,23

kitchen 85:21
kitchens 36:22
knew 33:21 136:4
knowing 136:13 137:3

knowledge 21:18 35:16
44:5

Kruse 130:7

Lake 47:3,17
language 22:23

large 50:3
larger 44:11 45:8 83:11

largest 44:6,8,14,20
149:16 153:14

Lastly 92:11

late 154:8

law 100:24 106:21
laws 59:9
lawyer 60:1
lawyers 6:23 54:6
laying 142:15,21
layout 86:8

lead 67:22 99:17 106:15
learn 70:18
learns 70:18
lease 25:18,22

leave 41:2 75:18,20
76:18

leaving 76:24
left 97:3

legal 5:146:11 9:22
20:21 145:24 146:1

Legrand 57:12

length 13:13 14:22
19:23 20:24 48:24 58:22
59:15,19 145:13

lessen 89:19
letter 28:2
letting 101:11

level 65:1580:21 84:21
89:20

liberal 17:1250:13
license 56:10

licensed 55:22,24 56:5
57:18,19 58:3,5,8

licensing 58:14 59:10
licensures 22:11
life 95:8

limit 13:22

limitations 12:8,13
65:21

limited 62:3

lines 110:24 112:23
119:21

list 10:13 90:20 124:19
127:6 150:1,2,6,9

listed 124:15 128:6
159:21

listing 37:14

listings 37:15

live 49:2,6

lives 95:11,16,17 96:14
living 45:16

LLC 45,6

load 49:12 94:20
local 31:17

located 4:6 26:10 91:9

location 13:6 19:17,24
20:11 25:12,15 26:23
28:7 29:18 67:14 70:20
82:20 107:18 113:10,11
122:20 133:16 155:11,14

locations 23:7 104:8
152:13 155:6

locked 75:21
logic 137:19
logical 133:17
logically 155:9

long 36:11 67:598:19
101:17 145:19 157:18

longer 15:160:2,3
longer-term 12:16

looked 44:16 91:23
119:5 120:14,15 121:4
127:19 128:13

Loop 25:12,1528:14
29:10 40:11,16 44:24
48:6,19 54:11 63:5 75:17
77:11 78:19 89:5 91:17

loss 53:1
lost 53:10

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com



IN RE: THE MATTER OF

HAYMARKET

Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: lot..mutual

lot 53:13 70:14 76:6
87:21 92:7,10 109:15

low 58:22 59:15
lower 79:6
LPN 80:22
lulls 133:15

Lustig 6:57:88:16,19,
22 9:23 10:3,7,10,15,19
11:3,8,13,16,22 12:1,6,
11,17,20,22 13:1,7,12,
21,24 14:4,8,12,16,22
15:3,10,16,22 16:3,6,9,
13,16 17:6,21 18:2,7,17,
24 19:5,8,11,14,18 20:2
21:3,6,12,16,24 22:3,5,
10,12,15,18,21,24 23:4,
9,14,17,21 24:1,6,11,16,
20,23 25:1,4,8,12,15,20,
23 26:4,11,15,20,24
27:2,13,20 28:8,14,16,21
29:9,14,19 30:4,12,17
32:14,19 33:1,4,8,12,16,
20,23 34:4,10,13 35:3,8,
11,19 36:3,10,19 37:1,7,
11,16,20 38:2,9,14,20,22
39:4,7,9,13,16,18 40:6,9,
14,18,22 41:4,8,12,17,
21,24 42:4,9,14,18,22
43:7,15,19,24 44:4,7,9,
12,22 45:5,11,14,18,21,
24 46:4,8,13,20,23 47:2,
5,8,11,15,19,24 48:10,
16,20 49:4,7,14,19
51:11,18,24 52:5,11,16,
21 53:4,7,11,19,24 54:3,
8,12,15,18,21 55:1,8,15,
19,24 56:6,9 58:1,4,7,12,
16,24 59:4,7,20 60:3,5,9,
12,14,18,24 61:4,7,12
62:10,13,17,22 63:3,9,12
64:14,17,21 65:1,20
66:2,7,11,14,16,22 67:1,
5,10,18,20,24 68:8,12,
20,24 69:3,6,11,16,22
70:3,7,13,22 71:6,13,17,
20,23 72:6,11,16,22
73:4,9,20 74:3,12,14,21
75:4,21 76:8,13,16,19
77:1,6,11,15,20,24 78:2,
5,10,14,17,22 79:3,7,14,
19,24 80:3,9,13,19,23
81:5,9,13,17,21,23 82:6,
10,13,18,23 83:5,8,10,

16,18,22 84:3,7,9,13,17,
22 85:4,9,13,15,20,22
86:1,4,8,16,21 87:1,7,14,
17,22 88:4,17,22 89:7,9,
17,22 90:12,17,20 91:1,
5,11,15,19,23 92:9,16,
19,23 93:3,11,15,20
94:3,15,22 95:3,5,18
96:16 107:9 135:3
145:18

Lynette 163:3

M

MABAS 83:15,20 84:5

made 28:20 29:10,16
37:17 43:11,20 61:22,23
65:7 67:8 78:7 79:10
87:11 95:7 102:24 103:8
117:1123:15 133:3
134:23 136:20 137:20
144:4

main 117:8 138:2
maintain 25:18,22
maintained 89:15
majority 26:1

make 5:24 7:5 8:1 20:8
22:16,19,22 23:1 44:2,18
45:19 53:10 57:6 61:19
64:1 72:3 81:12,15,16
82:14 87:21 89:14 93:18
102:15 103:15 117:5
121:10 126:5 131:4
133:17 136:22 138:10
140:3,20 147:10 149:11
153:4,24

makes 45:9 50:20 69:18
81:7 158:9

making 5:19 29:6 49:1
136:18 142:20

males 13:20
malls 68:16
manage 115:23
managers 74:7
manipulate 129:6

manner 102:14

mark 104:17 106:2
118:22 119:23 148:20

marked 105:20 124:4
125:2 126:8,24 130:3
131:18

market 37:10 66:4,9,10,
12,17,19 67:8

master's 22:6
match 34:16 36:7
material 5:21 100:23
math 78:12 128:20
mathematician 40:20
mathematics 44:17

matter 6:117:8 20:4
48:21 94:5 95:16,17
99:22

matters 6:15

mayor 52:6 87:14,19
88:22 135:6,8

mayor's 87:16
Mckinney-vento 31:15
Meaning 76:14
means 40:20 59:13

medical 60:20 61:3,6,9
78:4 79:11,17 80:2,6,17,
21 81:23,24 82:1,2 156:1
158:11,12

meet 147:14 150:13
153:11

meeting 4:3 86:23 87:4,
6 90:4 97:10 135:18,21

members 74:16

men 13:23,24 38:6 60:22
mental 21:19 58:9 69:6
mention 55:6

mentioned 11:4 18:15
31:11 51:20 65:3,4 71:9,
18 91:7 92:1,12 152:12

met 33:19 86:18 87:14
91:2 135:12

metal 71:15
Metra 46:19,21 47:1

microphone 122:18
149:2

middle 75:17
Mike 65:6

miles 20:2 44:3 45:15
48:24 89:1

mind 32:11
mine 57:17

minute 80:16 126:7
158:13

minutes 156:7,15,17,21
157:3,4

mischaracterized
118:20

mislead 149:12

missing 123:17 124:22
125:18 126:20 127:13,17
132:5,16,21 133:2
134:14

misstatement 38:11
mistakes 95:12
mixed-use 4:9
model 23:10,12 59:23
mom 13:18 27:5 30:13

moment 45:23 48:2
96:20 111:21 112:12

money 52:13 65:24

month 42:4 127:21
128:1,3,21 129:12,19

months 128:18

mothers 11:8,10 12:2
25:10

motion 161:14,19

move 36:17 52:7 57:20
97:17 136:24 139:5
143:4

Moving 59:22

multiple 37:15 38:3
70:23,24 109:17 112:14,
18

multitude 29:22
mutual 130:11 131:7,10

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com



IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: name's..option

155:19

N

name's 76:4 101:22
127:4

named 132:8
names 16:3

Naperville 44:6,10,15,
19 45:16,20 48:2,5,6
49:5

Naperville's 45:13
natural 7:24

nature 5:11 6:14 20:22
85:2 98:22 148:4

Neal 163:3

necessarily 13:15
44:22 48:10 63:23 70:22
71:7 73:10 80:1 86:10

necessitate 136:5
137:21

needed 33:2260:6,7,14,
17 63:6,8 70:9 136:13
137:21 155:2

needing 44:20
negatively 89:15
neighbor 83:24

neighborhood 37:12,
19 38:1 43:22

neighboring 148:1
news 76:5

nice 136:8 138:10
night 39:5154:8

NOLFO 9:13 32:7 76:3,
9,14,17,21 77:2,7,12,16,
2178:1,3,6,11,15,18,23
79:5,8,15,20 80:1,6,10,
14,20 81:1,6,10,15,18,22
82:1,8,12,14,19 83:2,6,9,
13,17,19,23 84:4,8,10,
14,18,23 85:5,11,14,17,
21,23 86:2,5,12,17,22
87:2,10,15,18,23 88:13,
18,23 89:8,10,18 90:7,
13,18,23 91:2,6,13,17,20

92:4,11,17,20,24 93:4,
12,16,21 94:8,18,23
95:4,13,19 96:7,18 98:4,
6,16 99:1,6 101:7,17,21
102:6,9,12,18,23 103:4,
8,12,19,23 104:6,16,22
105:4,7,11,17,19,24
106:6,17 107:1,6,14
108:3,5,21,23 109:5,10,
15,23 110:7,13,18
111:14,17,19 112:4,7,12,
18,22 113:3,9,14,21,23
114:2,9,12,14,18,23
115:4,11,16,24 116:2,5,
12,17,19 117:1,12,20
118:2,10,16,21 119:1,10,
15,22 120:3,11,21 121:1,
8,11,23 122:6,14,22
123:4,9,12,23 124:3,8,
14,18,22 125:1,6,10,12,
15,18,21 126:1,6,12,15,
17,20,23 127:3,6,10,13,
18 128:2,5,9,14,17,23
129:4,10,16,22 130:2,6,
10,15,20,22 131:2,13,17,
22 132:1,4,7,11,18,23
133:4,10,14,21 134:1,4,
9,11,18,20 135:7,16,21
136:1,10,17,19 137:3,14,
19 138:2,5,12,23 139:17
140:2,12,19 141:3,8,13,
19,21 142:3,6,11 143:5,
7,12,15,19,22 144:4,8,
17,19,23 145:3,9,13,17,
22 146:3,8,16,24 147:2,
9,13,17,23 148:10,16,20,
24 149:3,5,9,15,19,22
150:1,6,9,12,21 151:2,9,
12,19,22 152:6,11,16,21
153:2,9,15,20 154:6,14,
17 155:5,11,17,21 156:4,
12,22 157:3,5,14,16
158:1,9,13,17,23 159:3,
19 160:1,17,20,22

normal 7:10,18

north 32:10 47:18 54:14,
17,20 67:17 103:2,5,9
104:14 105:12,15 106:1,
7 107:9 116:14,15,21,22

northeast 68:18
northwest 68:18
not-for-profit 53:3

note 51:12 74:3
noted 64:3
notes 163:9
notice 114:8

November 4:252:2
107:16,17 109:2 161:15,
20 163:21

number 12:8 15:10,14
39:8,11 40:8 45:7 49:13,
14,17 51:16 55:12 56:3,
23 60:20 82:20,24 83:7
92:12 97:13 98:18
109:18 117:14 118:12,
17,20 119:6 120:3,7,14
121:4,20 128:6 133:5
151:5,13 158:23 160:3

number's 49:15
numbering 56:14

numbers 40:19 49:9,10
55:4 62:14,17 88:5 122:4
129:6 150:19

nurses 92:5

nursing 148:6,8

O

Oak 32:10

oath 88:19

object 34:2198:17,24
objecting 159:9

objection 16:19,21
20:3,6 28:22 50:5 53:14
61:17 65:9 95:24 98:23
106:20 107:20 110:21
136:15 138:20 140:7,21
142:10,12 150:18 159:8

objections 6:14 50:13

obligation 16:2317:3
93:13 145:23,24 146:1

obligations 20:21 80:12
obtain 61:14 92:22
occupational 22:17
occupy 41:2

occur 70:17 94:17

occurs 69:14 154:10

October 10:12 32:15
37:2 38:4,10,12 39:1
44:2 50:1 51:7,20 55:22
56:12 58:20 61:2 66:4,21
75:13 127:22 150:17

odd 127:16

offer 87:4,11 88:2 97:6
98:20 108:12 136:12,20
137:4,16,20 139:10
140:4,20

offered 50:10 57:5 85:6,
9 86:14 88:15,20 134:24
136:2 143:16 144:10

offering 87:18,19
101:17 139:15

officer 102:10

official 103:7 104:12
106:14 107:8

offset 53:1
oftentimes 13:1
older 24:11

one's 57:19
one-year 118:7 128:13

open 4:29:7 89:6
135:14,16 152:3

operate 29:4 31:2 140:1,
5145:11

operated 138:19

operates 34:18 36:8
139:19

operating 29:256:9
79:1 126:18 143:9

operation 143:14
operational 144:13

opportunities 28:9
95:12

opportunity 20:7 63:7,
11,20 99:13 100:14
103:19,21 111:7 116:6

opposed 51:14 62:1

option 145:8 152:3
154:5

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: order..prefacing

order 4:98:229:9 77:16
81:11 97:1 98:3 102:18
103:13 138:7 139:19
143:23

orderly 6:17
organization 58:17
original 163:16
originates 104:14
outcome 163:14
outcomes 49:4,8

outpatient 15:5,7 61:15
62:10,16,21,24 63:2,3,6,
8

outreach 26:8 27:22
outs 139:24
overburden 50:22
overestimating 134:22
overly 50:8

owner 4:56:209:1,3

owns 25:7

P

p.m. 161:15,20
pages 149:12 163:7
paint 63:18
papers 71:10
Pappas 52:7
paragraph 40:3
parallels 61:22
paramedic 102:10

paramedics 140:4
141:5

parent 11:21 24:4
parents 23:23 26:6

park 4:7,12 47:18 53:2
68:4,10,13,19 140:13
150:4,7

parked 152:22
parking 92:7,10

parse 109:16 110:9,14

part 6:828:13 34:7 38:15
41:15,16 47:22 48:10
49:23 50:7 51:5 53:20
70:16 83:10 85:18,20
106:14 135:22 150:12

parties 7:15163:12

partner 18:24 19:4,17,
22 135:15 136:9 137:10,
18 155:20

partners 19:6,20 28:17
89:24

parts 85:18
party 93:9

pass 68:6
passage 57:9
passed 84:19 97:8

past 53:959:22 70:7
92:18

patient 13:14 19:2 44:3
48:1,5,7 49:12 70:18
72:12 74:8,9 75:6,10,16
76:23 84:16

patient's 71:175:8

patients 38:7 39:15
40:11 45:20 48:12,18
58:21 59:13 60:8 62:20
63:5 69:20 70:9,14,23
71:11 75:5 77:10,22
85:23117:4 160:6

pattern 29:2
pay 140:4

PC 44

Peacock 161:17,18,21
Pearl 4:6

penalty 82:4
pending 147:13

people 44:1524 45:3
48:22 49:1,6 60:1 72:4
83:7 99:23 107:11
141:14 143:8 144:12
152:1 153:16,21,23

percent 18:7 25:16,24
31:11 40:12,17 45:7,8,9,

10 78:12,16,19,24 79:4,6
115:8 144:24 147:3,6,10,
15,18 150:13

percent's 147:19

percentage 25:9 36:12
40:14 45:3 48:18,20

perfect 71:3

period 17:8 20:13
107:16,21 108:6,10
118:4,7 128:10,13,15,19
133:16,17 159:20

permissible 8:2
permission 32:14
permit 4:961:14 63:1
permits 80:10
permitted 92:5

person 7:1521:12 35:2,
16,17 41:2 64:12 72:24
73:2 89:4

person's 14:17

personally 32:23
135:18

personnel 92:4
perspective 55:4
pertains 66:5 98:11

petition 38:24 39:21
40:1

petitioner 4:4 40:4
petitioner's 8:12 97:2
phased-in 49:21
physical 22:20 122:21
physician 80:23
pick 48:12,18,22

picked 127:24 129:7
147:19

picture 63:19 83:1
103:13,23 117:17,19
129:2,3,5137:9

piece 74:5,6 75:7 95:7
pieces 142:7

place 30:5,11,14 74:8
100:1,17 163:9

placement 13:2

plan 4:3,85:5,19,22 6:8
7:10,14,17 8:7 28:17
30:23 63:24 64:2,4 95:3,
996:13 105:3

planned 4:7
planning 28:13
plenty 144:5160:16

point 28:12 42:1 62:5,24
73:16 74:19 91:24 95:5
97:8101:2,13 140:16
156:23 161:13

points 160:8

police 55:574:19,22
75:9 87:20 102:3,10,21
109:22 121:17

populated 45:8

population 10:2111:19
16:14 24:19 26:2 31:12
44:16 96:3

portion 34:6 86:9
141:23

pose 72:14,19,21 73:2,7
poses 73:1

position 20:18 21:23
possibility 74:17 80:16
possibly 137:20
posted 41:19,23,24
postings 60:21
postpartum 11:19
potential 117:14 138:17
potentially 78:4 79:12
power 146:5

Powerpoint 71:14 91:8
92:1 149:1,6 156:13

practice 29:2 80:7
practices 29:5
precisely 57:4

predetermined 101:6,
12

prefacing 123:16

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: prefer..quote

prefer 155:4
pregnant 11:19
preliminary 62:6

prepared 34:1166:4,9
98:9 117:7 160:11

preschool 19:10
prescribed 13:19,21

present 4:155:157:15
50:151:7 102:1

presentation 15:19
18:20 53:21 79:9 99:10,
14

presentations 135:23

presented 7:988:8,9
110:21

presenting 31:5 34:24
107:2

president 21:7 33:2
pretty 55:19 134:21
Prevention 58:8
previous 110:23

previously 11:11 15:20
18:20 27:24 88:23

primarily 25:4 27:3,6
40:18 59:7

prior 33:17 65:18 70:7
priority 11:18

private 68:6 80:7 90:5,9
93:19,22 96:12 115:7
139:14 145:9 146:6
149:13

pro 15:17

problem 56:17 98:19
101:19

problems 92:7
procedure 145:20

proceed 8:12 62:5 64:5
98:1,5101:16 108:19
114:16,17

proceeding 5:14 6:9,11
63:22,24 101:19

proceedings 5:11

163:5,7

process 6:2,6,8,17,21
7:10,18 8:6,8,21 9:23
23:22 26:6 30:2 33:7,18
34:1,8,9 35:13 41:15
52:5,17,22 64:24 65:1
71:1089:11 93:9 99:13
101:3,10 116:20 151:18

processes 30:10

produced 101:24
122:23 163:16,19

producing 116:20

professional 37:23
80:17,21

professionals 79:11
158:11,12

profit 139:13

program 10:2,22 12:5,9,
18,20 13:5,11,12 14:1,6,
8,15,23,24 17:9 19:10,
11,13,15 20:1,14 21:2
24:22 25:18 26:10,14
40:22 41:4,8 49:21
76:11,18

programs 10:23 11:3,6
12:16 14:2,10 17:23
25:22 26:17 27:14 75:22
91:12

progress 13:14
progressive 82:13
prohibitive 85:15

project 15:18 85:16 87:3
88:2 89:16,21 107:3
129:15

projected 15:14 29:5
49:17

projections 25:14
promote 49:8
proper 142:15
properly 20:20

property 4:56:209:1,3
34:16 36:7 97:19

proposed 82:1588:1
89:16,19 90:10 93:24
102:2 136:4 145:1,7
146:12 154:11 160:3

Protection 76:582:21
83:3 84:20 86:14 87:12,
16,20 88:11,14,15,20
89:13 90:23 92:21 94:1
96:10 101:23 102:3
105:8,20 111:12 115:9
119:23 123:19 124:1,11,
23 125:7 126:13 130:12
132:12,22 133:6 134:2,5,
16 135:1,2 137:5,24
138:18 139:12,16,21
140:1 141:11,16,24
142:19 145:6 146:4,13,
21 147:20 150:14 151:14
152:7 155:8,13 156:3
160:13

proven 50:23

provide 23:11 24:17
26:10 30:11 33:10 54:13,
16,19 96:2 107:11 111:8
117:3,17 129:3 132:13
138:7

provided 10:17 20:11
59:13 100:19 127:10
128:17 141:23

providing 6:1397:12
129:4

provision 147:14

public 5:18 6:18,22 7:2,
3,8,21,22,23 8:3 23:20,
24 24:4 26:8,19,22 27:18
28:4,6,19 29:17 30:7
32:1,2 42:23 43:2 45:23
46:2,9,12 47:6,22 48:7,
14 50:8 68:6 71:9
161:15,19 163:5

public's 7:14
purely 18:14,17
purpose 64:2

purposes 62:2 104:19
106:3 107:7 114:20
120:22 124:5 125:3
126:9 130:3 131:19
148:21

put 30:11 33:13 64:12
65:15,22 94:20 95:1
96:13 126:6

putting 33:15

Q

qualifications 12:14
21:14,20

qualifies 26:2
qualify 31:15
quantitatively 117:13

question 7:16,17 8:1
12:12 15:12,16 16:4,20
17:14,15,17 18:9,11
20:4,23 28:23 29:13,14
30:23,24 34:22 35:18,24
36:2 39:13,14 48:24
50:6,16,18,20 51:1,3
53:4 55:20 57:6 58:24
61:18 62:7 65:13,17,18,
19 67:11 73:12,23 75:14
80:15 87:23 88:4 89:3,20
94:4 96:1,5,16 97:2 98:6,
12 100:4 106:21,23,24
108:19,21 110:13 111:4,
8,22 112:5 113:8,14
115:12,13 121:1 122:6,8,
15129:16 131:3 135:17
136:17,19,24 138:12,22
139:5,8,18,21,22,23
140:15,19,22 141:2
143:2,3,6 144:9 146:16
151:8 154:2,14 155:21
157:16 159:3,9,12,17
160:1

question's 99:9 138:20
154:16

questioning 7:8
questionnaire 16:7

questions 6:12,18,22
7:4,14,22 9:24 10:5,13,
17,21 17:1 30:15 32:4
34:23 35:2,5,1551:21
53:13 65:7 89:13 98:10,
14,18 99:2 100:10
110:24 115:12 123:13
140:10 161:3,6

quick 73:12 134:21
158:2

quicker 157:20
quiz 67:6
quote 43:12

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: raises..respond

R

raises 35:15
randomly 71:20
range 41:11 109:1 156:9
rare 60:5

rate 13:13

Ray 4:245:1

re-ask 36:1140:24
159:17

reach 24:7
reached 28:1,2

read 36:10 67:3 84:8
156:16

reading 57:12 67:2
ready 8:12
reality 55:8 139:12

reason 42:543:965:12
72:3136:2 139:13 145:4
146:15,19

reasons 46:1

recall 10:10 34:19 36:5,
14,19 37:6 38:14 39:3
49:13,14 51:23 56:4
58:19 59:11 62:17 66:6
67:7 75:8 86:21

recap 75:13
receive 58:22
received 10:11 124:9
receiving 15:7
recent 37:14 129:3,7
recently 41:18 129:1
recess 96:24

recognize 124:12
125:10

recollection 39:23
57:22 68:4

recommendation 5:20,
22,23

recommended 29:23

reconsideration 28:5

record 8:6 20:535:7
57:10 64:4,7 72:24 96:21
104:22 105:11,24 114:3
119:6 121:10 124:8
126:7 158:14,17

record's 57:10 136:23
recordation 56:8
recorded 42:357:14

recovery 11:4 14:9,10,
12,18 15:1,6,8,15 50:2
51:14 58:8 60:6,9,16
71:3 747

recreate 112:21
refer 32:16 155:4

reference 110:24
129:24 132:21

referenced 18:22
133:21 147:24

referendum 84:19

referred 15:20 18:21
21:22 38:18 43:10 66:8
135:5

referring 32:22 46:19
66:10,21 90:18 109:14
110:17 119:16 132:15,19

refresh 39:23

refuse 73:15,17 74:11,
12

refused 73:13
refuses 73:14,24

regard 53:959:261:2,8
62:24 65:15,23 66:20
72:1

regular 101:9
rehab 43:22 69:24

rehabilitation 50:2 70:5
71:3

relapse 70:1,17,18,21
relate 27:4

related 21:19 61:15 67:9
112:2 130:6 163:12

relative 35:596:2

relevance 16:19 20:3
28:22 29:12 50:5 61:17,
21 65:9,12

relevancy 50:13,16 62:4

relevant 17:11 20:13
50:6,11 65:17

relies 48:7

relying 29:6

remain 30:1 49:10
remaining 96:14 114:15

remember 39:6 42:2
84:10 90:16 96:8 108:21
109:19 110:5 123:20
144:21

remembered 39:2
remove 12:22
renew 93:13 146:9,17
renewed 93:23

repeat 12:1117:16
29:14 108:22 143:6

repeatedly 43:21
rephrase 151:9

report 34:24 35:5,11
36:11 51:8 65:5 66:22
69:19 112:11 117:7,11
120:18 121:12,22 123:7,
8,10 132:20 142:2 144:7
160:9,11 163:6

reported 57:16 67:8
163:4

reporter 5:15 163:24
reporters 56:18 57:1,10
Reporting 57:13
reports 69:17 115:21

represent 9:18 76:4
101:22

representation 64:1

representations 61:22,
23

representative 35:1,4,6
42:7,11 43:3 52:7 86:19
87:5

represented 33:24 34:1
39:12 62:19

reputation 29:7

request 4:7 127:3
128:18

requested 55:10 108:7
129:11,18 132:13

requests 100:8
require 61:6

required 21:23 22:4,7,9,
11 34:9 69:19

requirement 71:7
requirements 84:11
requires 83:20
requiring 61:9 78:1

research 37:9 139:10
152:5

reserve 138:1,13,14
144:15

reserved 13:23,24

reside 11:6 12:4 23:7,19
24:8 31:8

residence 60:16
residency 31:19,20
resident 31:8

residential 4:10 15:4
31:559:3,6,8,10,12
66:10,20 67:9

residents 18:531:13,
14,17 40:5 43:21

resources 17:8 20:19
138:6

respect 8:817:12 20:21
30:7 108:14 111:2

respected 153:14
respects 29:10

respond 20:7 65:10
95:22 104:15 108:3
111:10,21,23 134:17
141:6 143:20 147:8
151:14 152:8 155:12,24
156:10 157:13,20

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: responded..sitting

responded 150:15

responders 53:18
64:13

responding 93:24
137:11 156:21

responds 156:3

response 10:17 16:21
35:7 96:4 100:20 124:19,
23 125:18 126:21 132:2
137:14 151:1 155:3
156:11,14,16 157:8
158:3

responses 64:20
160:19

responsibility 33:6,10
35:9163:17

responsible 24:14
79:22

restricted 123:2

restrictions 65:14,22
84:5

result 33:5
return 70:10

revenue 52:1553:2,10
139:16

review 81:18 99:24
111:7

reviewed 7:21120:6
reviews 81:22
revisit 57:24
right-hand 113:6
rights 23:23

risk 72:15,18 73:1,3,8
96:14

RN 80:23 81:9

road 4:7,12 68:4,10,11,
19 130:1 153:12

Robert 98:9
Rohlwing 68:11,18
Role 4:13

rooms 36:23 85:2 86:10
Roselle 150:3 153:7

Roth 8:13 10:14 97:6,15
98:2,22 99:5 100:9,24
101:4 106:20 107:20,23
108:4 110:21 111:11
113:2114:5,11,13
136:15,18,21,23 137:2

138:20 139:1,6 140:7,16,

23 142:10,12,16,23
150:18,22 151:5 158:22
159:2,6,9,15,23

routed 154:4
routes 47:10
RPR 163:3
rule 6:15
ruling 20:8
run 34:22
running 40:17
runs 46:21

S

S-A-M-H-S-A 68:23
safety 72:14,18,21 73:1,
3,7

sake 20:5

SAMHSA 68:23 69:5,8
SAMHSA's 69:13

Sangamon 54:14,17,20
77:19 103:3,5,10 104:8,
14 105:12,16 106:1,7
107:9 116:8,14,15,22
118:4 119:4 120:4

schedule 38:2339:12
40:2 80:4,10

scheduled 127:16

school 9:11,18,22,24
10:12 16:22 17:7 20:19,
20 24:7,9,14 26:8 28:9
30:13 31:1,17 32:1,2
52:24 53:9 59:24

schooling 26:19

schools 27:21,22 31:9,
22

scope 18:13 65:15,24
107:23 108:2

screen 25:20

screener 16:12,13,15
18:15,18 23:13

screenings 18:4
search 75:14
searches 71:19
seats 1415
secondary 94:7 95:21
secure 86:3
secured 51:22 86:2
security 75:591:12 92:5
seeking 24:4 26:7
selecting 129:5
send 116:3 131:7,10

sense 44:2,19 45:9,19
87:21 131:5 133:18
153:24

separate 14:9 15:3
134:1 135:9

serve 13:6 16:23 19:17
25:11 49:11 63:7 77:10
78:24 83:7 160:5,6

served 10:22 12:9 15:15
21:131:16,17 40:4,11
49:15

serves 150:2

service 63:5,6 69:7 78:9
82:22 83:3,24 84:15,21
89:20 90:5 115:7 122:20
127:7 133:12 141:18
143:15,18 146:6,23
149:13

services 18:22,23 20:11
21:8 23:6 24:15,18 26:7,
9,13 27:10,11 32:2 50:10
54:11,14,16,19 57:13
63:8 76:22 78:1 89:15
90:2 96:3 102:20,21
107:11 117:3,17 138:7
141:23 146:11 148:17
152:9 156:1

servicing 153:6
serving 20:1
set 55:16 70:9 85:2

155:24 163:20
set-forth 93:9
sexually 72:4
share 117:13

shared 76:9 77:9,13
78:7 80:14 81:2 84:24
92:17 110:23 147:23

shifts 142:4,7
shock 37:13,16
Shocking 108:23
short 41:6
shorthand 163:4,9,24

show 104:17 105:7,19
114:4,18,24 118:21
119:22 120:21 122:11
124:3 125:1 126:8,23
128:3 130:2 148:20

showed 37:14 89:19
120:13,16 128:19

showing 106:2 131:17
150:20

shown 86:9

shows 49:4

sick 122:19

side 92:6 149:11
sidewalk 68:7
sidewalks 67:22

sign 9:544:16

signhed 151:19,23 152:2
significance 5:14
similarity 36:15

simple 110:13 111:4
146:16

simply 113:14
sir 110:18 122:4 150:16

sit 52:2 55:6 87:10 94:9,
10 147:20

site 4:812:10 21:11
36:18 59:14

sitting 98:19 101:15
155:16

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: situated..support

situated 77:22

situation 75:199:11
157:11,23 158:6,8

situations 78:4
six-year-olds 30:10

size 44:9,12 50:10,11
51:9,10 61:24

skill 70:8

slide 71:1592:198:23
99:2,18 100:5,7,10 101:7
120:15 148:11 156:13

slides 79:998:10,11,17
101:12

slow 8:5
small 50:4

Smith 9:11,12,17,21,22
10:4,8,11,16,20 11:5,10,
14,20 12:2,7,13,19,21,24
13:3,9,19,22 14:3,5,11,
14,19 15:2,8,13,19,24
16:5,8,11,15,17,22
17:16,19,24 18:3,12,19
19:3,6,9,13,16,23 20:9,
24 21:4,9,14,20 22:2,4,8,
11,13,16,19,22 23:1,5,
12,15,18,22 24:3,9,12,
17,21,24 25:2,6,9,13,17,
2126:1,5,12,18,21 27:1,
9,17,24 28:12,15,18
29:1,16,24 30:6,15,20
31:3,10 161:2,4

social 61:3,6,9
solely 80:8 123:2
sort 20:8 50:15 100:19
sound 128:10

sounds 31:12 124:2
131:3

sources 26:12
southwest 68:17

speak 44:7,9,12 47:2,5
48:20 86:1 122:17 139:9
156:2

speaking 133:8
speaks 18:9
special 4:8 39:21 40:2

42:20
special-use 61:14 63:1
specialist 21:21

specialists 16:10 21:5,
11 27:15

specialized 23:2

specific 13:17 14:17
16:14 29:20 30:22 31:21
35:16 110:24 111:1
122:21

specifically 18:9 25:10
31:11 37:3 39:3 40:2
43:9 74:6

speculative 92:14 94:4
96:17

speech 22:23

spend 66:1112:11
114:6 123:5

spent 64:19 108:8
109:15 113:16

split 62:16

spoke 477

spot 43:21

Spring 47:17
springing 120:12,19
SS 163:1

stack 97:9

staff 9:530:4,13 141:16,
22 143:13,24 144:12
154:5 155:4 160:15

staffed 79:12 142:8

stages 16:6 23:10,12
27:14

stand 97:22108:20
115:9 139:23

standard 17:1250:13

standardized 16:14
239

standards 58:18
stands 64:8

start 10:20 21:22 77:7
101:9 133:11 161:11

started 41:15118:11
starting 24:14,18 33:18

state 20:9 24:13 42:7
44:24 55:23,24 56:4,5,10
57:18,19 58:2 59:10
69:18 86:11 92:22
149:16 163:1

State's 11:18

stated 9:21 15:20 20:6
29:24 36:5 38:5,6 42:11
111:15

statement 37:18 43:11
88:24 90:8 133:3

statements 43:20 79:10
states 69:13

station 77:3
stationed 79:21

statistically 132:16
133:8

statistics 44:18

stay 10:24 11:14 13:13
14:23,24 15:6 34:2,6,18
36:8,13,16,21,24 58:22
59:15,19 60:8,12 76:24

staying 36:13 60:1,6
stenographer 56:8
step 43:5

Steve 9:15 32:8,20 76:4
101:22

stop 47:11 156:23
stopped 52:17
stopping 74:18
stops 133:17
stored 152:12
strategic 28:20

Stream 148:3,13,18
150:4,6,14 151:13 153:6

streamline 158:19

street 32:11 105:13
106:1 144:13

strengths 87:8

strike 38:24
strip 68:16
strong 49:4
student 20:15
student's 20:13

students 20:121:1
24:13 30:1,2 31:14

study 34:867:4
subject 100:21 152:19
submission 35:12

submissions 37:22
49:24 51:6

submit 8:16

submitted 10:12,14
34:8,20 35:10,11 38:17
52:371:10,11,15

substance 27:8 45:4
58:7 69:6,9,14 70:1

substantiate 140:9
success 29:7 70:5
successfully 69:24
suffice 129:15
suggest 100:16 140:11
suggested 34:23
suggesting 142:20,23
suggestions 136:18
suggests 140:7

suit 163:13

Superintendent 10:4
28:1

Superior 90:16,21 91:4
supervises 21:4
supervision 82:6,10
supervisor 21:9,10,15
supervisors 21:6
supplement 99:10,21
supplemental 100:3

support 10:13 17:22
23:2 26:19,22 27:18 28:6
29:17 31:24 33:11,22

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: supports..truth

35:12 137:6
supports 10:1,5
suppose 138:4
supposed 104:2
Supreme 6:10

surprise 47:16,20
49:16,19 58:21 62:18,22

surrounding 42:21
sustain 143:14

sustained 106:22
140:22

swear 150:24

Swets 4:18,19 73:12,22
74:11,13,17,24 161:19

Swets' 75:13

system 11:16 18:24
19:3,21 28:9,17 89:24
90:11 107:3

T

table 8:1953:15
takes 35:9 100:1
taking 68:2

talk 43:183:13 93:5
123:14

talked 31:2067:12 87:3
112:7 118:12

talking 14:13 40:23
46:14 49:22 67:13 99:10
108:8 109:12 110:19
113:16 119:12 135:5

tax 52:1553:2,10
taxing 52:14
teachers 22:14

team 33:19,21 74:7 75:4
81:23 82:1 86:23 87:2
94:6,15 135:4 155:1

television 5:17
telling 136:14
tendency 7:24
term 18:22

termination 145:15
terminology 59:8

terms 9:9 49:11 54:22
60:19 108:17

Teska 34:12,15,19,24
35:1,4,5,6,11,22 36:5,15
65:4,8,15,22 66:23 67:2,
3,711

test 57:22

testified 8:21 10:2317:6
18:19 23:18 26:5 27:24
28:3 45:22 53:21 55:13
66:3 75:15 86:13 88:19
93:6 103:20 108:1,5,11,
15 110:15,18 111:6
132:11 134:24 144:19
147:2

testify 102:13 107:10,21
140:17 145:18

testifying 53:16 55:3
59:12 63:15 109:16
140:8 142:13,14 150:18
154:18

testimony 5:20 6:4
20:18 29:9 37:6,8,9
49:24 51:7,23 61:1 73:2
86:15 90:14 91:7 96:1,2
98:15 99:22 101:18
104:7 107:2,24 109:19
110:5 123:14,16,21
142:24 144:8,21 147:24
150:23

therapists 22:17,20,23
thereof 163:14

thing 6:24 43:8 50:15
93:4 96:3 100:3 110:8
138:10

things 5:9 6:14 20:22
85:288:9 91:7 94:6
108:8 110:1 120:12
131:14 133:4 147:20
148:3

thinking 137:9
Thorndale 152:13 155:7
thought 85:1 147:6
threw 133:4

throw 76:23

throwing 114:7
tied 84:195:19 96:15

time 5:10 7:21,22,23 8:2,
39:710:24 20:12,13
27:6 30:12 36:11 40:16
44:16 67:5 73:23 80:5
81:16 84:14 86:18 87:3
94:11,12 96:22 99:2,11
105:5 108:8 109:15
110:12 111:6 112:11,15
113:11,16 114:6 115:3,
12,18,20 121:18 123:5
126:2 128:15,19 130:10
131:4 133:16,17 135:12
136:8 137:9 144:17
145:19 152:23 155:11
156:5,11,14,16 157:6,8
158:3 159:20 161:10
163:9

times 21:138:341:1
81:1,6 92:12 112:24
138:21 150:16 151:13
152:7

today 5:1252:277:9
87:11 94:9 97:9 147:20

told 38:12 51:15 64:11
85:11 145:2 151:20
155:6 156:6 158:2

tonight 6:4,511:11
32:22

tool 16:1218:15

top 15:1158:14 108:24
128:7

total 51:16 77:13 107:19
118:3 122:4 128:5
160:17

totally 42:22
touch 37:5
touched 88:23

town 44:1950:3,11
51:10 52:4

towns 52:19

track 25:6 56:19
traditional 12:17
Traditionally 71:20
Trail 152:14 155:7

train 48:8,9 67:23 77:3
157:17

trained 16:10 75:5
157:12,22 158:5

training 21:24 22:7
154:2,15,23 157:24

trains 46:13,18

transcript 32:12,15 37:3
56:12 57:4,7,16 58:21
59:22 163:8

transcripts 56:16,18
58:2 163:16

transformed 53:3
transition 19:21 30:2,10
transparent 102:14,19

transport 19:1 44:3
45:20 47:10 48:12 72:11
73:15 74:10 84:16 89:1

transportation 19:24
20:12 42:24 43:2 45:23
46:3,10,12 47:7,23 48:7,
15 73:16,24 74:12,15

transported 20:13 73:4,
7 89:5

trappings 5:18

treat 27:4 62:20 74:1
78:19 92:6

treated 62:15

treatment 12:20 14:10,
23 15:5,7 25:19 27:7,8
31:21 49:1 51:13 59:12,
13,23 69:9 70:7,8,12,16
72:14,18 73:13,14,17
74:4 75:18

trending 128:24
trial 5:16,18
trigger 70:1,13
triggered 70:15
triggers 70:21,24

true 31:19 63:17 85:5
87:2,24 104:9 116:6
136:1 138:2 145:7
158:21 163:8

truth 115:5

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET

Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019 Index: turn..work

turn 8:9 13:15,16 56:2
68:3

turned 64:572:10,14,17
75:9 85:14 135:2

turning 30:3 72:19
turnover 13:13 40:24
two-and-a-half 53:22

type 23:268:10 74:15
81:10 82:3 90:15 113:12
119:19 153:15

types 61:568:5 77:22
78:3

typically 76:19 111:24
112:2

U

Uh-huh 11:22 23:17
24:16 38:20

UIC 19:22,24 21:2
ultimate 158:9
ultimately 14:1555:13
unaware 9:3

unclear 135:13 159:15

understand 5:11,13
6:7,18 7:2,7,9,20 8:5
17:2 20:17 57:3 58:24
62:5 73:23 77:21 83:17,
19 84:4 87:15 93:12,16
94:8 95:14,18 98:22
101:1 102:4 104:6
106:17 107:1,5 111:3
134:1 135:8,11 136:10
137:23 139:11,19 141:5,
7,8 142:3,6 143:2 144:8,
11 145:17 146:3,7
148:16 152:20 154:6,20
158:7 159:3,4 160:24

understandable
159:10

understanding 31:6,7
52:2,13 60:21 64:2 83:14
101:24 137:6 138:3
141:21 142:11,18
152:16,17 155:23

understands 6:2 17:14
57:2 64:4 113:7 159:4,18

understood 121:8
148:12

undue 90:10
unequal 61:24
unfair 50:20
unfortunate 160:10
unique 35:15

unit 112:1,17,19,23
113:5,6 119:20

units 113:5,10 116:10
135:9

University 19:5
unlimitedly 83:24
upgraded 110:2,3

usual 27:3

\Y

vague 110:24 159:10
van 72:20
vans 48:11

variable 13:13 14:22
59:19

variety 17:2188:9
vast 26:1
venture 63:1
venues 68:5 70:24
version 57:12,18

versus 82:4 153:17
154:21

vice 21:7

video 41:19,23 42:6
43:12 57:13 68:19

videoed 42:3
videotaping 92:2
viewing 101:12

Village 5:8,22,24 33:19
55:9 88:10 89:14 93:17
104:12 106:18 107:4
108:7 117:7,10,23 118:9
120:18,19 123:19 129:13
136:3 137:16 146:4

150:7

Village's 106:15 121:22
160:9,11

villages 52:19 83:11
90:21 92:18 93:1

violence 74:6
violent 72:4,9 73:1
visited 86:3
volume 95:1
volumes 110:22

voluntarily 74:575:18
76:15,18

voluntary 69:19 76:12
voted 52:3

W

wait 156:5
waiving 23:23

walk 37:19 63:20 73:17
74:2,18 76:15 77:3

walked 63:1067:15,16,
17,18 74:1

walking 37:11 38:1 68:1,
6

walks 72:7 73:13,14

wanted 8:20 42:23
85:12 93:4 97:4 117:6,9,
22,24 118:8,12 137:10
152:3

wanting 117:12

Washington 37:554:2,
7,9 77:17 102:24 104:13
105:1,15 116:13,22

waste 126:1

watched 6:23

ways 26:16 53:1
weaknesses 87:8
website 41:14,19 60:21
websites 118:13

week 42:1 77:9 79:8,22
86:13 90:14 103:20

109:13 110:15 112:8
113:17 118:11 119:12
123:15 140:6 142:9
143:10

weight 50:14
welfare 50:9

west 4:6,11 25:12,15
28:14 29:10 37:5 40:11,
16 44:23 46:22 47:1
48:6,19 54:2,7,9,11 63:5
67:16 68:10,11 75:17
77:11,17 102:24 104:13,
24 105:15 116:13,22
127:7

whatsoever 114:8

Wheaton 44:11 48:3
61:15 62:9,15 63:7,17
64:5 89:12 90:3

WHEREOF 163:20
who've 16:10
willfully 55:6

Willow 32:10

win 155:13

Windsor 148:13 150:7
wing 85:6

wise 117:21
withdraw 136:19
withdraws 136:24
witness's 57:22 99:22
witnesses 6:4,7 7:3
woman 12:15

women 11:19 12:23
13:1,9,10,23 14:3,7 15:9,
14 38:6 60:22

women's 17:22

word 67:6,7 78:15
112:24 113:20 119:16

words 41:1

work 18:2419:2,19
28:10 30:13 52:18,23
53:4 73:19 74:8,9 80:8
88:11 89:23 94:11
103:18,21 115:5,24
117:10,24 142:4 143:8

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services

(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com




IN RE: THE MATTER OF HAYMARKET
Report of Proceedings - 11/06/2019

Index: worked..zoning

157:12 158:6

worked 27:21 29:20
52:6 53:8 88:22 120:10

working 57:7 90:1 98:11
160:10

works 30:4
wrap 8:4
write 156:18

written 10:8 49:23 51:6
81:11 82:8,10 156:18,19

wrong 56:14 79:16
88:21

wrote 57:13

X

X's 122:24

Y

year 41:7 88:1129:8,14
140:6

years 24:2,1155:10
108:1,13

z

zoning 59:9 63:17,20
114:5

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060

www.groveandassoc.com



	Transcript
	Cover
	Caption
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78
	Page 79
	Page 80
	Page 81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84
	Page 85
	Page 86
	Page 87
	Page 88
	Page 89
	Page 90
	Page 91
	Page 92
	Page 93
	Page 94
	Page 95
	Page 96
	Page 97
	Page 98
	Page 99
	Page 100
	Page 101
	Page 102
	Page 103
	Page 104
	Page 105
	Page 106
	Page 107
	Page 108
	Page 109
	Page 110
	Page 111
	Page 112
	Page 113
	Page 114
	Page 115
	Page 116
	Page 117
	Page 118
	Page 119
	Page 120
	Page 121
	Page 122
	Page 123
	Page 124
	Page 125
	Page 126
	Page 127
	Page 128
	Page 129
	Page 130
	Page 131
	Page 132
	Page 133
	Page 134
	Page 135
	Page 136
	Page 137
	Page 138
	Page 139
	Page 140
	Page 141
	Page 142
	Page 143
	Page 144
	Page 145
	Page 146
	Page 147
	Page 148
	Page 149
	Page 150
	Page 151
	Page 152
	Page 153
	Page 154
	Page 155
	Page 156
	Page 157
	Page 158
	Page 159
	Page 160
	Page 161
	Page 162
	Page 163

	Word Index
	Index: $350,000..932
	$350,000 (1)
	$500,000 (3)
	$800,000 (2)
	1 (9)
	10 (16)
	10-minute (1)
	100,000 (2)
	108 (6)
	10:00 (1)
	11 (2)
	12 (2)
	12,000 (4)
	120 (10)
	124 (7)
	13 (4)
	13th (2)
	14 (3)
	144 (1)
	1466 (1)
	15 (7)
	16 (7)
	16-bed (1)
	163 (1)
	172 (1)
	18 (5)
	188 (1)
	19 (5)
	19-014 (1)
	1989 (1)
	2 (4)
	2.3 (2)
	20 (6)
	2000 (5)
	2015 (2)
	2017 (3)
	2018 (7)
	2019 (9)
	224 (1)
	22nd (1)
	24 (3)
	24,000 (2)
	24-hour (2)
	240 (1)
	250 (4)
	250-bed (1)
	25th (2)
	260 (1)
	269 (1)
	27 (1)
	28 (4)
	28-day (3)
	28th (17)
	290 (2)
	3 (6)
	30 (3)
	32 (4)
	350,000 (1)
	355 (2)
	365 (10)
	365-day (1)
	37 (1)
	376 (6)
	4 (3)
	4,750 (1)
	400 (2)
	45 (1)
	45-year (1)
	4500 (1)
	4th (4)
	5 (4)
	50 (1)
	50,000 (1)
	500 (1)
	53 (2)
	6 (4)
	6/30/2019 (1)
	605 (2)
	63 (4)
	649 (2)
	68 (1)
	68-month (1)
	6th (3)
	7 (7)
	7/1/2018 (1)
	70 (2)
	700 (1)
	7:00 (2)
	8 (6)
	80 (5)
	80-percent (1)
	84-004363 (1)
	860 (4)
	863 (5)
	8th (2)
	9 (3)
	90 (16)
	90-day (1)
	90-percent (1)
	911 (16)
	920 (1)
	932 (14)

	Index: 943..application
	943 (1)
	99 (2)
	9th (3)
	ability (1)
	above-entitled (1)
	absolutely (6)
	Abuse (2)
	accepted (1)
	access (7)
	accessibility (2)
	accessing (3)
	account (2)
	accountant (2)
	accreditation (1)
	accredited (3)
	accuracy (1)
	accurate (13)
	ACDC (1)
	ACF (1)
	acknowledge (4)
	acknowledged (1)
	across (1)
	Act (1)
	acted (1)
	action (1)
	active (3)
	activities (1)
	activity (1)
	actual (5)
	actually (21)
	add (3)
	added (1)
	addictions (1)
	Addison (5)
	addition (2)
	additional (10)
	Additionally (1)
	address (29)
	addressed (1)
	addresses (9)
	Administration (1)
	Adult (1)
	adults (1)
	advance (2)
	affect (1)
	affiliated (3)
	affirmatively (1)
	afflicted (1)
	afield (1)
	aforesaid (1)
	afoul (1)
	after (2)
	again (26)
	against (3)
	age (7)
	aged (1)
	ages (4)
	aggravated (1)
	agree (32)
	agreed (2)
	agreement (7)
	ahead (2)
	aid (4)
	alcohol (2)
	alleviate (1)
	allowable (1)
	allowed (5)
	ambulance (66)
	ambulances (10)
	among (2)
	amount (5)
	amounts (1)
	analysis (20)
	analyze (9)
	analyzed (5)
	analyzing (2)
	and/or (2)
	anecdotal (2)
	anecdotally (1)
	annual (8)
	annually (4)
	answer's (1)
	answers (3)
	anticipate (2)
	anticipating (1)
	anticipation (1)
	anymore (1)
	apologize (4)
	apparatus (2)
	apparently (1)
	appeared (1)
	appears (4)
	applicant (1)
	application (14)

	Index: applies..bring
	applies (3)
	apply (6)
	appreciated (1)
	appropriateness (2)
	approval (2)
	approved (4)
	approximately (4)
	area (6)
	areas (3)
	arguing (1)
	argument (1)
	Arlington (1)
	arms (2)
	Army (2)
	articles (1)
	asks (1)
	aspect (4)
	assessment (5)
	assessments (3)
	asset (1)
	assigned (2)
	assist (2)
	assistance (1)
	assistant (1)
	assisted (1)
	Associates (9)
	assume (5)
	assumed (1)
	assumes (2)
	assumption (2)
	assumption's (1)
	attached (2)
	attack (1)
	attempted (1)
	attorney (7)
	attorneys (10)
	attract (1)
	audience (3)
	audited (1)
	audits (1)
	author (1)
	authority (1)
	average (3)
	averaged (1)
	averaging (1)
	avoid (1)
	aware (13)
	ayes (1)
	B-2 (1)
	bachelor's (1)
	back (16)
	background (7)
	backup (4)
	backyard (1)
	bad (2)
	balance (1)
	Baldwin (218)
	Baldwin's (2)
	bargaining (2)
	barred (1)
	barriers (6)
	base (1)
	based (14)
	baseline (1)
	Basically (1)
	basis (8)
	bed (1)
	beds (24)
	before (9)
	begin (2)
	behalf (7)
	believes (2)
	Belmont (1)
	benefit (2)
	Benes (2)
	bet (1)
	big (2)
	bit (6)
	blank (2)
	blanks (1)
	Bloomingdale (5)
	Board (3)
	bodies (1)
	body (1)
	bond (1)
	boss (1)
	bother (1)
	Boulevard (1)
	breadth (1)
	break (1)
	breaks (1)
	briefly (2)
	bring (4)

	Index: broken..collar
	broken (1)
	budget (2)
	build (1)
	building (8)
	buildings (3)
	built (1)
	bunch (2)
	burden (10)
	burden's (1)
	burdens (1)
	Burke (7)
	bus (6)
	buses (3)
	business (15)
	businesses (3)
	buttons (3)
	buy (15)
	calculations (1)
	call (32)
	called (2)
	calling (1)
	calls (69)
	cameras (1)
	canceled (5)
	canine (1)
	capacity (8)
	car (3)
	care (7)
	Carello (4)
	CARF (4)
	carol (9)
	case (10)
	categorized (1)
	causing (1)
	ceased (2)
	center (11)
	CEO (1)
	certification (1)
	certifications (1)
	certified (2)
	certify (2)
	cetera (1)
	Chairman (25)
	chance (5)
	change (2)
	characterized (1)
	charge (1)
	chart (4)
	check (1)
	checks (4)
	Chicago (9)
	Chief (7)
	child (18)
	child's (2)
	child-find (1)
	childcare (1)
	childhood (2)
	children (37)
	children's (1)
	choice (1)
	chorus (1)
	chose (4)
	Chuck (2)
	circumstances (1)
	cite (1)
	cites (1)
	citizens (6)
	city (11)
	claiming (1)
	clarification (3)
	clarifications (1)
	clarified (1)
	clarify (5)
	clarifying (1)
	Class (1)
	clear (10)
	clients (4)
	clinical (9)
	clinically (2)
	clinics (1)
	close (1)
	closer (2)
	closest (1)
	closures (1)
	co-addictions (1)
	coaches (1)
	code (2)
	codes (25)
	coed (1)
	coincidence (2)
	collar (10)

	Index: collective..created
	collective (2)
	column (2)
	combined (3)
	comment (8)
	commenting (1)
	comments (2)
	commission (27)
	Commission's (1)
	commissioner (7)
	commissioners (3)
	communities (1)
	community (5)
	company (3)
	compare (9)
	comparing (1)
	comparison (3)
	comparisons (2)
	complete (3)
	completed (1)
	completely (2)
	complicating (1)
	component (1)
	concentration (1)
	concept (1)
	concern (2)
	concerned (2)
	conclude (1)
	conclusion (2)
	condominium (1)
	conducted (1)
	conducts (1)
	conflict (1)
	confusion (1)
	connected (1)
	Conroy (3)
	conscious (2)
	conservative (2)
	consideration (1)
	considered (4)
	consistently (2)
	Consolidated (5)
	consortium (3)
	constant (1)
	consult (1)
	contacted (1)
	contemplated (3)
	contemplating (1)
	context (1)
	continuation (1)
	continue (6)
	continuing (1)
	contraband (1)
	contract (34)
	contract's (1)
	contracts (4)
	contradictory (1)
	contrast (2)
	control (1)
	controls (1)
	convalescent (1)
	convenience (1)
	conversation (1)
	conversations (1)
	convince (1)
	coordination (1)
	coordinators (1)
	copies (3)
	copy (4)
	corner (1)
	corners (1)
	correct (277)
	correctly (2)
	cost (1)
	counsel (20)
	counsel's (5)
	counselors (1)
	count (2)
	counted (1)
	counties (10)
	County (9)
	couple (2)
	court (5)
	cover (2)
	covered (2)
	CPA (1)
	Craig (2)
	create (1)
	created (1)

	Index: criteria..diligence
	criteria (1)
	critical (2)
	cross-examination (26)
	cross-examiner (7)
	cross-examining (4)
	crowd (1)
	CSR (1)
	curious (1)
	current (4)
	curriculum (5)
	curriculums (1)
	daily (1)
	Daly (5)
	Dan (5)
	data (39)
	data-fueled (1)
	dataset (7)
	date (8)
	dated (1)
	day (14)
	days (25)
	DCFS (2)
	deal (2)
	dealing (4)
	dealt (1)
	Deb (1)
	decide (3)
	decided (6)
	decides (1)
	deciding (2)
	decision (12)
	decline (1)
	dedicated (4)
	deep (1)
	deescalate (1)
	defer (1)
	define (2)
	defines (1)
	definition (4)
	degree (1)
	degrees (2)
	delays (7)
	deliberate (1)
	delve (1)
	demonstrate (1)
	denied (2)
	deny (2)
	departing (1)
	department (3)
	depend (2)
	depending (5)
	depends (2)
	describe (2)
	designation (1)
	designed (4)
	desk (1)
	details (1)
	detector (1)
	determination (1)
	determine (3)
	detox (6)
	detoxification (1)
	development (5)
	developmental (17)
	developmentally (3)
	DI (360)
	diagnose (1)
	DICKSON (23)
	dictate (1)
	dictated (1)
	differ (1)
	difference (4)
	differentiate (1)
	diligence (5)

	Index: diminish..Ellenbecker
	diminish (1)
	diminished (1)
	Dinolfo (9)
	direct (2)
	directed (4)
	direction (1)
	directly (3)
	director (6)
	directs (1)
	disability (1)
	disagree (1)
	discharged (1)
	disciplinary (1)
	discipline (2)
	discrepancy (1)
	discuss (1)
	discussed (5)
	discussion (3)
	disorder (2)
	disorderly (1)
	disorders (2)
	dispatch (9)
	dispatched (6)
	dispatcher (1)
	dispatches (2)
	disposition (3)
	disrepair (1)
	distributed (2)
	district (101)
	district's (5)
	districts (6)
	Division (1)
	doctor (7)
	doctors (1)
	document (27)
	documentation (3)
	documents (10)
	donors (1)
	door (2)
	double-check (1)
	downtown (7)
	dramatically (1)
	draw (1)
	drawn (2)
	drinking (3)
	drive (2)
	driven (1)
	driving (1)
	drop (1)
	drove (1)
	drug (1)
	Drummond (3)
	DU (1)
	DU-COMM (1)
	due (7)
	Dupage (26)
	duplicated (1)
	duplicates (1)
	duty (1)
	e-mail (2)
	earlier (1)
	early (4)
	easier (2)
	east (5)
	easy (1)
	echoed (1)
	economic (2)
	Edstrom (2)
	education (13)
	educational (12)
	Edward (1)
	effort (1)
	efforts (1)
	either/or (1)
	element (1)
	elementary (1)
	eligible (5)
	Elite (45)
	Elite's (2)
	Elk (1)
	Ellenbecker (198)

	Index: Ellyn..fewest
	Ellyn (1)
	Elmhurst (1)
	emergency (13)
	emphasis (1)
	empirically (1)
	employ (1)
	employee (1)
	employees (2)
	EMS (12)
	encountered (1)
	end (3)
	endeavoring (2)
	ends (2)
	enforced (1)
	engaged (1)
	engagement (1)
	engine (3)
	enhance (3)
	enter (5)
	entered (4)
	entire (1)
	entities (2)
	entity (4)
	environment (3)
	equal (1)
	equals (1)
	equate (1)
	ESPEDIDO (7)
	essential (1)
	establish (1)
	establishment (1)
	establishments (1)
	estimate (6)
	estimated (1)
	evening (7)
	event (4)
	events (1)
	evidence (12)
	exact (1)
	examine (2)
	Excel (1)
	exceptions (1)
	excess (1)
	excited (1)
	exclude (3)
	excluded (1)
	Excuse (1)
	exhibit (51)
	exist (3)
	existence (2)
	exists (1)
	exit (1)
	expect (3)
	experience (6)
	experienced (3)
	experiences (1)
	experiencing (2)
	expert (5)
	expertise (1)
	expires (1)
	explain (1)
	explore (1)
	explored (1)
	exposure (1)
	extended (11)
	extrapolation (1)
	faced (1)
	facilitate (1)
	facilities (7)
	facility (62)
	facility's (1)
	fact (10)
	factor (8)
	factors (1)
	facts (6)
	fair (32)
	fairly (4)
	fairness (2)
	faith (1)
	fall (3)
	falls (1)
	familiar (2)
	families (2)
	family (6)
	fashion (1)
	fast (1)
	faster (2)
	fathers (1)
	favor (1)
	featured (2)
	features (2)
	federal (1)
	Feeds (1)
	feel (1)
	feels (1)
	feet (3)
	felt (1)
	females (1)
	fewest (1)

	Index: field..Haymarket
	field (1)
	figure (1)
	filed (1)
	filings (1)
	fill (2)
	final (1)
	Finally (1)
	finance (1)
	financial (2)
	financials (1)
	find (3)
	fine (7)
	finish (3)
	finished (1)
	fire (103)
	firefighter (1)
	fiscal (1)
	fit (1)
	fits (1)
	five-year (5)
	five-year-olds (4)
	fly (1)
	focus (1)
	focused (3)
	focusing (2)
	FOIA (17)
	FOIAED (9)
	FOIAS (2)
	folks (1)
	follow (3)
	follow-up (1)
	foot (3)
	force (1)
	foregoing (1)
	Forestview (1)
	forgot (1)
	form (6)
	forma (1)
	forward (6)
	found (2)
	foundation (3)
	fourth (1)
	frame (4)
	frequently (2)
	front (4)
	frustration (1)
	full (2)
	functional (1)
	functioning (1)
	fund (2)
	funding (5)
	funds (4)
	gambling (8)
	gaming (1)
	gap (1)
	gave (5)
	gender (1)
	generate (2)
	generated (4)
	generates (1)
	gentleman (2)
	gesture (3)
	give (13)
	giving (3)
	glean (1)
	Glen (1)
	Glendale (2)
	goal (13)
	good (23)
	government (1)
	grant (3)
	granted (2)
	grants (10)
	granular (1)
	great (1)
	greater (1)
	greatly (1)
	grounds (1)
	group (1)
	Grove (3)
	guarantee (2)
	guess (8)
	guidance (2)
	guide (1)
	guided (2)
	guidelines (1)
	guys (3)
	hailed (1)
	half (4)
	hand (6)
	handed (1)
	handle (15)
	handled (1)
	handling (1)
	Hang (1)
	Hanover (1)
	happen (5)
	happened (1)
	happening (1)
	hard (1)
	Haymarket (78)

	Index: Haymarket's..intend
	Haymarket's (6)
	hazard (1)
	head (2)
	health (5)
	healthcare (2)
	hear (3)
	heard (11)
	hearing (8)
	hearings (1)
	heart (1)
	Heights (3)
	held (2)
	helped (1)
	hereunto (1)
	Hervas (88)
	hey (1)
	high (2)
	higher (1)
	highest (1)
	hire (6)
	hired (1)
	histories (1)
	history (4)
	Hoffman (1)
	hold (7)
	Holiday (23)
	Holmes (2)
	home (10)
	homeless (6)
	homelessness (1)
	homes (9)
	honest (1)
	honestly (3)
	hope (1)
	hospital (3)
	hospital-like (1)
	Hospitality (1)
	hotel (6)
	hotels (1)
	hour (1)
	hours (4)
	human (2)
	hypothetically (1)
	i.e. (1)
	idea (3)
	ideal (1)
	identification (11)
	identified (19)
	identify (7)
	idol (1)
	Illinois (12)
	illustrate (1)
	imagine (3)
	impact (20)
	impacted (1)
	impacts (1)
	important (11)
	imposed (1)
	improving (1)
	inappropriately (1)
	include (3)
	included (1)
	including (3)
	inclusive (1)
	incomplete (1)
	incorrect (2)
	increase (1)
	indifferent (1)
	indirectly (1)
	individual (4)
	individuals (17)
	information (17)
	initial (1)
	Inn (23)
	inquire (2)
	ins (1)
	inside (3)
	instance (2)
	instrument (1)
	instrumental (1)
	insurance (1)
	integrated (1)
	intend (3)

	Index: intention..lost
	intention (3)
	interested (2)
	interesting (1)
	interrupting (1)
	intervention (1)
	interventions (1)
	introduce (2)
	investigated (1)
	investigation (2)
	invite (2)
	involved (2)
	irrelevant (1)
	Irving (6)
	issue (9)
	issues (4)
	Itasca (123)
	item (1)
	James (4)
	Janet (1)
	January (2)
	JARMUSZ (2)
	Jennifer (2)
	job (2)
	join (1)
	joined (1)
	judgment (2)
	July (9)
	jump (2)
	juxtaposition (1)
	keeping (1)
	key (1)
	kind (2)
	kindergarten (2)
	Kischner (18)
	kitchen (1)
	kitchens (1)
	knew (2)
	knowing (2)
	knowledge (3)
	Kruse (2)
	Lake (2)
	language (1)
	large (1)
	larger (3)
	largest (6)
	Lastly (1)
	late (1)
	law (2)
	laws (1)
	lawyer (1)
	lawyers (2)
	laying (2)
	layout (1)
	lead (3)
	learn (1)
	learns (1)
	lease (2)
	leave (4)
	leaving (1)
	left (1)
	legal (7)
	Legrand (1)
	length (9)
	lessen (1)
	letter (1)
	letting (1)
	level (4)
	liberal (2)
	license (1)
	licensed (8)
	licensing (2)
	licensures (1)
	life (1)
	limit (1)
	limitations (3)
	limited (1)
	lines (3)
	list (8)
	listed (3)
	listing (1)
	listings (1)
	live (2)
	lives (4)
	living (1)
	LLC (2)
	load (2)
	local (1)
	located (3)
	location (19)
	locations (4)
	locked (1)
	logic (1)
	logical (1)
	logically (1)
	long (6)
	longer (3)
	longer-term (1)
	looked (8)
	Loop (16)
	loss (1)
	lost (1)

	Index: lot..mutual
	lot (7)
	low (2)
	lower (1)
	LPN (1)
	lulls (1)
	Lustig (385)
	Lynette (1)
	MABAS (3)
	made (23)
	main (2)
	maintain (2)
	maintained (1)
	majority (1)
	make (38)
	makes (5)
	making (5)
	males (1)
	malls (1)
	manage (1)
	managers (1)
	manipulate (1)
	manner (1)
	mark (5)
	marked (7)
	market (9)
	master's (1)
	match (2)
	material (2)
	math (2)
	mathematician (1)
	mathematics (1)
	matter (8)
	matters (1)
	mayor (6)
	mayor's (1)
	Mckinney-vento (1)
	Meaning (1)
	means (2)
	medical (18)
	meet (3)
	meeting (8)
	members (1)
	men (4)
	mental (3)
	mention (1)
	mentioned (12)
	met (5)
	metal (1)
	Metra (3)
	microphone (2)
	middle (1)
	Mike (1)
	miles (5)
	mind (1)
	mine (1)
	minute (3)
	minutes (7)
	mischaracterized (1)
	mislead (1)
	missing (11)
	misstatement (1)
	mistakes (1)
	mixed-use (1)
	model (3)
	mom (3)
	moment (5)
	money (2)
	month (7)
	months (1)
	mothers (4)
	motion (2)
	move (7)
	Moving (1)
	multiple (7)
	multitude (1)
	mutual (4)

	Index: name's..option
	name's (3)
	named (1)
	names (1)
	Naperville (10)
	Naperville's (1)
	natural (1)
	nature (6)
	Neal (1)
	necessarily (9)
	necessitate (2)
	needed (11)
	needing (1)
	negatively (1)
	neighbor (1)
	neighborhood (4)
	neighboring (1)
	news (1)
	nice (2)
	night (2)
	NOLFO (360)
	normal (2)
	north (21)
	northeast (1)
	northwest (1)
	not-for-profit (1)
	note (2)
	noted (1)
	notes (1)
	notice (1)
	November (9)
	number (39)
	number's (1)
	numbering (1)
	numbers (10)
	nurses (1)
	nursing (2)
	Oak (1)
	oath (1)
	object (3)
	objecting (1)
	objection (23)
	objections (2)
	obligation (6)
	obligations (2)
	obtain (2)
	occupational (1)
	occupy (1)
	occur (2)
	occurs (2)
	October (20)
	odd (1)
	offer (14)
	offered (11)
	offering (4)
	officer (1)
	official (4)
	offset (1)
	oftentimes (1)
	older (1)
	one's (1)
	one-year (2)
	open (6)
	operate (5)
	operated (1)
	operates (3)
	operating (5)
	operation (1)
	operational (1)
	opportunities (2)
	opportunity (10)
	opposed (2)
	option (3)

	Index: order..prefacing
	order (12)
	orderly (1)
	organization (1)
	original (1)
	originates (1)
	outcome (1)
	outcomes (2)
	outpatient (11)
	outreach (2)
	outs (1)
	overburden (1)
	overestimating (1)
	overly (1)
	owner (4)
	owns (1)
	p.m. (2)
	pages (2)
	paint (1)
	papers (1)
	Pappas (1)
	paragraph (1)
	parallels (1)
	paramedic (1)
	paramedics (2)
	parent (2)
	parents (2)
	park (11)
	parked (1)
	parking (2)
	parse (3)
	part (19)
	parties (2)
	partner (9)
	partners (4)
	parts (1)
	party (1)
	pass (1)
	passage (1)
	passed (2)
	past (4)
	patient (16)
	patient's (2)
	patients (22)
	pattern (1)
	pay (1)
	PC (1)
	Peacock (3)
	Pearl (1)
	penalty (1)
	pending (1)
	people (18)
	percent (25)
	percent's (1)
	percentage (6)
	perfect (1)
	period (15)
	permissible (1)
	permission (1)
	permit (3)
	permits (1)
	permitted (1)
	person (11)
	person's (1)
	personally (2)
	personnel (1)
	perspective (1)
	pertains (2)
	petition (3)
	petitioner (2)
	petitioner's (2)
	phased-in (1)
	physical (2)
	physician (1)
	pick (3)
	picked (3)
	picture (10)
	piece (4)
	pieces (1)
	place (7)
	placement (1)
	plan (20)
	planned (1)
	planning (1)
	plenty (2)
	point (14)
	points (1)
	police (10)
	populated (1)
	population (8)
	portion (3)
	pose (5)
	poses (1)
	position (2)
	possibility (2)
	possibly (1)
	posted (3)
	postings (1)
	postpartum (1)
	potential (2)
	potentially (2)
	power (1)
	Powerpoint (6)
	practice (2)
	practices (1)
	precisely (1)
	predetermined (2)
	prefacing (1)

	Index: prefer..quote
	prefer (1)
	pregnant (1)
	preliminary (1)
	prepared (6)
	preschool (1)
	prescribed (2)
	present (6)
	presentation (6)
	presentations (1)
	presented (4)
	presenting (3)
	president (2)
	pretty (2)
	Prevention (1)
	previous (1)
	previously (5)
	primarily (5)
	prior (3)
	priority (1)
	private (12)
	pro (1)
	problem (3)
	problems (1)
	procedure (1)
	proceed (9)
	proceeding (6)
	proceedings (3)
	process (34)
	processes (1)
	produced (4)
	producing (1)
	professional (3)
	professionals (3)
	profit (1)
	program (34)
	programs (12)
	progress (1)
	progressive (1)
	prohibitive (1)
	project (8)
	projected (3)
	projections (1)
	promote (1)
	proper (1)
	properly (1)
	property (7)
	proposed (13)
	Protection (62)
	proven (1)
	provide (16)
	provided (7)
	providing (3)
	provision (1)
	public (41)
	public's (1)
	purely (2)
	purpose (1)
	purposes (12)
	put (9)
	putting (1)
	qualifications (3)
	qualifies (1)
	qualify (1)
	quantitatively (1)
	question (114)
	question's (3)
	questioning (1)
	questionnaire (1)
	questions (34)
	quick (3)
	quicker (1)
	quiz (1)
	quote (1)

	Index: raises..respond
	raises (1)
	randomly (1)
	range (3)
	rare (1)
	rate (1)
	Ray (2)
	re-ask (3)
	reach (1)
	reached (2)
	read (4)
	reading (2)
	ready (1)
	reality (2)
	reason (9)
	reasons (1)
	recall (19)
	recap (1)
	receive (1)
	received (2)
	receiving (1)
	recent (3)
	recently (2)
	recess (1)
	recognize (2)
	recollection (3)
	recommendation (3)
	recommended (1)
	reconsideration (1)
	record (18)
	record's (2)
	recordation (1)
	recorded (2)
	recovery (17)
	recreate (1)
	refer (2)
	reference (3)
	referenced (3)
	referendum (1)
	referred (7)
	referring (10)
	refresh (1)
	refuse (4)
	refused (1)
	refuses (2)
	regard (9)
	regular (1)
	rehab (2)
	rehabilitation (3)
	relapse (4)
	relate (1)
	related (6)
	relative (2)
	relevance (9)
	relevancy (3)
	relevant (6)
	relies (1)
	relying (1)
	remain (2)
	remaining (2)
	remember (10)
	remembered (1)
	remove (1)
	renew (3)
	renewed (1)
	repeat (5)
	repeatedly (1)
	rephrase (1)
	report (24)
	reported (3)
	reporter (2)
	reporters (3)
	Reporting (1)
	reports (2)
	represent (3)
	representation (1)
	representations (2)
	representative (9)
	represented (4)
	reputation (1)
	request (3)
	requested (5)
	requests (1)
	require (1)
	required (7)
	requirement (1)
	requirements (1)
	requires (1)
	requiring (2)
	research (3)
	reserve (4)
	reserved (2)
	reside (6)
	residence (1)
	residency (2)
	resident (1)
	residential (11)
	residents (6)
	resources (3)
	respect (6)
	respected (1)
	respects (1)
	respond (19)

	Index: responded..sitting
	responded (1)
	responders (2)
	responding (3)
	responds (1)
	response (18)
	responses (2)
	responsibility (4)
	responsible (2)
	restricted (1)
	restrictions (3)
	result (1)
	return (1)
	revenue (4)
	review (3)
	reviewed (2)
	reviews (1)
	revisit (1)
	right-hand (1)
	rights (1)
	risk (6)
	RN (2)
	road (8)
	Robert (1)
	Rohlwing (2)
	Role (1)
	rooms (3)
	Roselle (2)
	Roth (44)
	routed (1)
	routes (1)
	RPR (1)
	rule (1)
	ruling (1)
	run (1)
	running (1)
	runs (1)
	S-A-M-H-S-A (1)
	safety (6)
	sake (1)
	SAMHSA (3)
	Samhsa's (1)
	Sangamon (22)
	schedule (5)
	scheduled (1)
	school (23)
	schooling (1)
	schools (4)
	scope (5)
	screen (1)
	screener (6)
	screenings (1)
	search (1)
	searches (1)
	seats (1)
	secondary (2)
	secure (1)
	secured (2)
	security (3)
	seeking (2)
	selecting (1)
	send (3)
	sense (8)
	separate (4)
	serve (11)
	served (9)
	serves (1)
	service (21)
	services (37)
	servicing (1)
	serving (1)
	set (5)
	set-forth (1)
	sexually (1)
	share (1)
	shared (10)
	shifts (2)
	shock (2)
	Shocking (1)
	short (1)
	shorthand (3)
	show (17)
	showed (5)
	showing (3)
	shown (1)
	shows (1)
	sick (1)
	side (2)
	sidewalk (1)
	sidewalks (1)
	sign (2)
	signed (3)
	significance (1)
	similarity (1)
	simple (3)
	simply (1)
	sir (3)
	sit (6)
	site (5)
	sitting (3)

	Index: situated..support
	situated (1)
	situation (6)
	situations (1)
	six-year-olds (1)
	size (7)
	skill (1)
	slide (12)
	slides (5)
	slow (1)
	small (1)
	Smith (106)
	social (3)
	solely (2)
	sort (3)
	sound (1)
	sounds (3)
	sources (1)
	southwest (1)
	speak (10)
	speaking (1)
	speaks (1)
	special (4)
	special-use (2)
	specialist (1)
	specialists (4)
	specialized (1)
	specific (10)
	specifically (8)
	speculative (3)
	speech (1)
	spend (4)
	spent (4)
	split (1)
	spoke (1)
	spot (1)
	Spring (1)
	springing (2)
	SS (1)
	stack (1)
	staff (11)
	staffed (2)
	stages (4)
	stand (4)
	standard (2)
	standardized (2)
	standards (1)
	stands (1)
	start (6)
	started (2)
	starting (3)
	state (18)
	State's (1)
	stated (9)
	statement (5)
	statements (2)
	states (1)
	station (1)
	stationed (1)
	statistically (2)
	statistics (1)
	stay (20)
	staying (3)
	stenographer (1)
	step (1)
	Steve (5)
	stop (2)
	stopped (1)
	stopping (1)
	stops (1)
	stored (1)
	strategic (1)
	Stream (8)
	streamline (1)
	street (4)
	strengths (1)
	strike (1)
	strip (1)
	strong (1)
	student (1)
	student's (1)
	students (6)
	study (2)
	subject (2)
	submission (1)
	submissions (3)
	submit (1)
	submitted (11)
	substance (7)
	substantiate (1)
	success (2)
	successfully (1)
	suffice (1)
	suggest (2)
	suggested (1)
	suggesting (2)
	suggestions (1)
	suggests (1)
	suit (1)
	Superintendent (2)
	Superior (3)
	supervises (1)
	supervision (2)
	supervisor (3)
	supervisors (1)
	supplement (2)
	supplemental (1)
	support (13)

	Index: supports..truth
	supports (2)
	suppose (1)
	supposed (1)
	Supreme (1)
	surprise (7)
	surrounding (1)
	sustain (1)
	sustained (2)
	swear (1)
	Swets (9)
	Swets' (1)
	system (9)
	table (2)
	takes (2)
	taking (1)
	talk (4)
	talked (5)
	talking (12)
	tax (3)
	taxing (1)
	teachers (1)
	team (12)
	television (1)
	telling (1)
	tendency (1)
	term (1)
	termination (1)
	terminology (1)
	terms (5)
	Teska (21)
	test (1)
	testified (28)
	testify (5)
	testifying (10)
	testimony (33)
	therapists (3)
	thereof (1)
	thing (8)
	things (14)
	thinking (1)
	Thorndale (2)
	thought (2)
	threw (1)
	throw (1)
	throwing (1)
	tied (3)
	time (68)
	times (12)
	today (7)
	told (9)
	tonight (4)
	tool (2)
	top (4)
	total (7)
	totally (1)
	touch (1)
	touched (1)
	town (5)
	towns (1)
	track (2)
	traditional (1)
	Traditionally (1)
	Trail (2)
	train (6)
	trained (5)
	training (6)
	trains (2)
	transcript (10)
	transcripts (4)
	transformed (1)
	transition (3)
	transparent (2)
	transport (10)
	transportation (17)
	transported (4)
	trappings (1)
	treat (5)
	treated (1)
	treatment (30)
	trending (1)
	trial (2)
	trigger (2)
	triggered (1)
	triggers (2)
	true (12)
	truth (1)

	Index: turn..work
	turn (5)
	turned (7)
	turning (2)
	turnover (2)
	two-and-a-half (1)
	type (9)
	types (4)
	typically (3)
	Uh-huh (4)
	UIC (3)
	ultimate (1)
	ultimately (2)
	unaware (1)
	unclear (2)
	understand (59)
	understandable (1)
	understanding (16)
	understands (7)
	understood (2)
	undue (1)
	unequal (1)
	unfair (1)
	unfortunate (1)
	unique (1)
	unit (8)
	units (4)
	University (1)
	unlimitedly (1)
	upgraded (2)
	usual (1)
	vague (2)
	van (1)
	vans (1)
	variable (3)
	variety (2)
	vast (1)
	venture (1)
	venues (2)
	version (2)
	versus (3)
	vice (1)
	video (6)
	videoed (1)
	videotaping (1)
	viewing (1)
	Village (24)
	Village's (4)
	villages (5)
	violence (1)
	violent (4)
	visited (1)
	volume (1)
	volumes (1)
	voluntarily (4)
	voluntary (2)
	voted (1)
	wait (1)
	waiving (1)
	walk (7)
	walked (7)
	walking (4)
	walks (3)
	wanted (13)
	wanting (1)
	Washington (11)
	waste (1)
	watched (1)
	ways (2)
	weaknesses (1)
	website (3)
	websites (1)
	week (17)
	weight (1)
	welfare (1)
	west (33)
	whatsoever (1)
	Wheaton (11)
	WHEREOF (1)
	who've (1)
	willfully (1)
	Willow (1)
	win (1)
	Windsor (2)
	wing (1)
	wise (1)
	withdraw (1)
	withdraws (1)
	witness's (2)
	witnesses (3)
	woman (1)
	women (12)
	women's (1)
	word (6)
	words (1)
	work (25)

	Index: worked..zoning
	worked (6)
	working (4)
	works (1)
	wrap (1)
	write (1)
	written (8)
	wrong (3)
	wrote (1)
	x's (1)
	year (5)
	years (5)
	zoning (4)



